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Financial summary

Group revenues of £1,879m 2008. £2,029m

EBITA before exceptional items of £202m 2008 £211m
Adjusted cash flow of £358m* 2008: £158m

Profit before tax of £25m 2008: Loss before tax of £2,732m
Earnings per share of 2.3p 2008: Loss per share of 659p
Adjusted eamings per share of 1.8p* 2008: 1.8p

Net debt of £612m 2008: £730m

* See definitions on page 32

ITV's Business review The Business review s prepared in kne with the relevant In setting out the s rmawn asks and uncertamties,
The Business review explains in detal how we have provisions of the Cormpanses Act 2006. In the an ndication of Ekety developments, and w other
E:mnedmsgearmsetsmnafanrmofw Business review the Compariy has had r to content, thes report and accounts contamns statements
balanced and comprehensive analyss of our 1ssued by the Accounting S o Board m s whach, by thesr natixre, cannot be consdered ndications
performance the use of finanaal and inanaal key ng Statemnent on namatrve reporting. The Business of Ekelhood or certanty. The statements are based on
performance ndicaters to explan how much progress review s intended 1o provide shareholders with a greater the knowledge and information avaiable at the date of
we have made, a descnption of the panapal rsks and understanding of the Company, of s posibion i the preparaton of the Business review and what are believed
uncertanties faang the Company, and an ndication markets within whch 1t operates, and of its prospects. to be reasonabie padgements. A wide range of factors may
of Bkely future developments. cause the actual outcomes and resuits to differ matenally

from those contaned withen, or ymphied by, these vanous
forward-ooking statements. Nor should amy of these
statements be construed as a profit forecast.
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Chairman’s statement

Dear Shareholder

| am delighted to have joined ITV as Charman on 1 January
2010 Whlst the business faces many difficult challenges, it
remains an exciting place to work with a unique role in national
Iife Its revitalisation 1s important, not just to shareholders,

but to millions of viewers across the country My cbjective 1s to
work with the executive team to transform the Company so as
to enable it to prosper in a rapidly changing media landscape

Progress in 2009

ITV came through a very challenging year in 2009 Not only
was It the worst television advertising recession on record,
but the difficulties of the leadership succession provided a
distracting context for the business and the executive team

Against this background, ITV delivered a remarkably resilient
performance, very much as a result of decisive management
action to reduce costs and strengthen the balance sheet

As a consequence, the business avoided a serous hiquidity
¢nisis and EBITA before exceptional iterns fell anly rarginally
Adjusted cash flow increased by £200 mulhon and net debt
reduced by over £100 milion ITV's debt repayments have
been rescheduled and its pension scheme habihties have
been stabilised In the hight of the continuing econormic
uncertainty, the Board is not proposing payment of a final
dividend However, financtally we now have a more stable
platform from which to address the challenges ahead

Inresponse to the advertising downturn, the programme
budget was cut by over £100 millon Nenetheless, ITV ended
the year with a strong schedule performance Although ITV1
continued to lose audience share, the ITV channel farmily held
its share overall There were some significant programming
successes, notably The X Factor, but also Law & Order UK,
Whitechapel, Dancing on Ice, and Britain's Got Talent

Both our valuable long-runming soaps, Coronation Street

and Emmerdale, rermain in good health Such programming
success 1s cntical to sustaming ITV's share of the free-to-ai
advertising market

Qur content business, ITV Studios, held profits, with increased
international production offsetting a decline in the UK business
Internal ITV comrmissions in particular came under some
pressure, as the ITV1 programming budget was reduced
Nevertheless, ITV Studios 1s making progress with tts third party
business and remains a hive of creative talent.

Overall therefore, [TV has weathered the storm The business
has a manageabte balance sheet, a strong brand and a talented
broadcasting and creative team

Future challenges

Aganst this recent context, it 1s clear that ITV now faces an
imperative for change The traditional free-to-air advertising-
fuelled television model will see long-term decline in share of
viewing and share of UK media revenues To secure and grow
shareholder value, we need to ensure we use the extraordinary
talent base of ITV to compete, not only in conventional
broadcasting, but also as a developer and exploiter of content
across multiple platforms in the UK and internationally
Seizing the opportunities ahead will require changes to {TV's
organisation, systems, people and culture

Our first challenge will be to sustain the creative and commeraal
health of our free-ta-air broadcast business In doing so, we face
intense competition from the BBC, whose taxpayer-funded
revenue has been unaffected by the economic downtumn, and
from BSkyB, whose satellite platform continues to grow and,

as It does so, erode the share of traditional free-to-air viewing

The rapid development of digital media means that the British
public will Increasingly view television through the internet, via
internet-enabled television, personal computers and mebile
devices 1TV currently has a small share of online video, lagging
behind our competitors Furthermare new competitors, such
as Google, are strongly positioned to play a leading role,
potentially displacing broadcasters as the inibal point of access

As the market for content globalises and rights ownership
becomnes a more important part of the value chan, the
Integrated broadcaster-producer model should be a source

of competitive advantage However, ITV Studios, our content
creation and distnbution business, has lost market share,
both within ITV and the wider UK market, partly as a result of
reduced internal commissions Restoring growth at ITV Studios !
and reinvesting In talent 1s a vital part of our future

Finally, desprte successive reviews by the Government and
Ofcomn, ITV remains one of Bntamn's most heavily regulated
businesses Consequently our freedorn to operate is severely
lwted, i particular compared to our new media competitors
The adverse impact on the profitabiity of all free-to-ar
broadcasters Is resulting in dediming investment in UK content
with senious iImplications for Britain's creative industnes




TV pic Report and acoounts 2009 Chairman's statement

03

Picture removed

Archie Norman
Chairnan

Platform for change

The task therefore for the new management team at ITV 1s to
take advantage of the opportunity last year's changes have
created and to address resolutely the challenges ahead | am
therefaore delighted that Adam Crozier will be joining from
Royal Mail Group as Chief Executive shortly Adam has an
outstanding track record of transformational managerment,
has worked successfully with creative and medra talent, and
has long expenence of dealing wath regulators and government

As we embark on this journey, we inhent a platform for
change created out of the fire of recession by my predecessor,
Michael Grade, and by John Cresswell, the Intenm Chief
Executive Michaet has been an iconic figure at the helm of ITV
and handed over a business with a spring once more in Its step
He arnved at a very difficult ime for ITV and leaves a business
strengthened in many respects Throughaout, John Cresswell
has provided calm and strong leadership We are grateful

to thern both

Since my arnival we have moved to streamiine the Board

to prepare for the journey ahead and to create a strong

and very engaged team As a result some very distinguished
non-executive directors have stood down These include

our Deputy Chairman, Sir George Russell, who made a
substantial contnbution to ITV from the days of the merger
Sir James Crosby played an important role as ITV's Senior
Independent Director, a position which has now been taken
on by Mike Clasper Agniés Tourane and Heather Killen also
stood down from the Board towards the end of the year

1 would hke to thank them all for ther contnbution

Adam Crozier

Picture removed

which he had joined in 1988

Adam Crozier will join ITV as Chief Executive on 26 Apnl 2010

Adam jons ITV from Royal Mail Group, where he has been Group Chief Executive since 2003,
leading the modermisation of the group, transforming it from a heavily loss making position
to profitability and reducing the cost base by £15 bilion

From 2000 to 2002, Adam was Chief Executive at The Football Association During hus trme

at the FA, turnover doubled and finanang for the new Wembley Stadium was secured
Between 1995 and 1999, Adam was Joint Chief Executive of Saatdu & Saatch Advertsing,

Outlook

in my short tme at ITV, | have met many highly talented
people at all levels of the organisation There is a shared
recognition that the business will need to change substantially
going forward If we are to return to sustained growth Inthe
coming manths we will outhne In more detail the outcome
of our current strategic review and the journey ahead
Whilst this new phase i the development of ITV 15 gong

to be a challenging one, we enter it with a vibrant pipeline
of programmes, a very strong brand and a talented team
Ours 1s a people business and, with the nght pecple, culture,
motivation and leadership, the future of ITV will he in our
own hands

Archie Norman

Adam is a non-executive director of Debenhams plc, a non-executive director of Camelot
Group plc, and Chairman of the Employers’ Farum for Disability Adam Croazer s 46 and holds
a BA In Business Organisation from Heriot Watt University
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ITV operates a famil 5) of UK television channels,
including ITV1, and delivers pro é)rammes online via
itv.com and TV Player. ITV Studios produces and

distributes programmes in the UK and worldwide.

Broadcasting & Online

ITV Broadcasting operates ITV's family of
channels: ITV1, ITV2, ITV3, ITV4 and CITV.

ITV1 15 the largest commercial television
channel in the UK in terms of both audience
share and advertising revenues In peak
viewing time, ITV1 attracts the largest
audience of any UK broadcaster, including
BBC1.{TV’s digital channels are avallable

on all multi-channel platforms and continue
to grow their audiences year-on-year.

Across its channels, ITV invests around

£1 billon each year in network and regional
programming, with the majonty spent

on original UK production

ITV's channels are delivered free of charge
to consumers, funded by advertising

and sponsorship revenues, which totalled
£1,350 million in 2009

ITV’s broadcast assets include the multiplex
operator SDN, which leases out digital
terrestnal capacty to channet operators on
the UK’s largest broadcast platform, Freeview.

ITV's online operations include itv.com and
video on dermand services on cable television
and other ‘closed’ platforms itvcom delivers
ITV programming and clips to internet users
via TV Player, funded by online advertising
and sponsorship.

Onhne revenues, pnmarnly from online
display and video advertising, and including
Friends Reunited, totalled £37 million in 2009

More on page 18 -»

Graph removed

Graph removed
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ITV Studios

ITV Studios produces programming for
ITV’s own channels and for other UK and
international broadcasters. ITV Studios
also distributes programming, formats
and merchandising in the UK and
worldwide on multiple platforms.

ITV Studios makes more original programming
for ITV than any other producer, including
five of the top ten titles on ITV1 In 2009

In addition, ITV Studios produces programmes
for the BBC, Channel 4, Five, Sky and other
UK broadcasters

ITV Studios has a growing portfolio of
International production offices around
the world, Including in the US, Germany,
Australia, Sweden, Spain and France

In 2009, revenues from international
production were £138 mullion.

ITV Studios Clobal Entertainment 1

ITV’s international distribution, home
entertanment, publishing, merchandising
and licensing business with offices in
London, Cologne, Hong Kong, Los Angeles,
Rio de Janeiro and Sydney.

With over 35,000 hours of onginal and
formatted programming from [TV Studios
and leading independent producers, Global
Entertainment distributes programmes to
broadcasters in 240 territornies worldwide

ITV Studios external revenues in 2009
totalled £335 million with an additional
£262 millon of revenues from sales of
programming to ITV

More on page 24 =

Graph removed

Graph removed
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2009 at a glance

ITV’s priorities in 2009 were to strength

enthe

balance sheet by focusing on cash; to deliver
substantial cost savings; and to maintain operational
progress across the core business.

February

‘Cash and financial position

Scheduled debt
repayments to

2014 of around

£700m

Cost savings

£40m per annum
savings delivered
over 2006-08

Core business

Secured ten-year
loan of £50m

PSB review
confums [TV plan
to reduce regional
costs by £40m

March

Repaid £250m
bond and drew
down £125m

covenant free loan

£155m cost saving
target set for 2009,

nchuding on and

off-screen savings

Apnl

May

Raised over £50m
via bond tap

extending existing

2015 bond

June

Reduced 2011
repayment by
around £200m via
bond exchange

Digital Britain
report confirms
scope for further
5avings in
regional news

Broadcasting & Online
Winter drama ITV Player Freesatsellsover  Third senes of Best ever month ITV2 overtakes
launches include launches on Virgin -~ 300,000 recervers 8ntain's Got on tvcom with Five in terms of
Law & Order: UK, Media television Tatent launches 12 8m unique volumes with
Whitechapeland  platform and becomesthe  users and 50m younger audiences
Above Suspicion most successful video views
seres to date
Logo removed Loge rernoved Logo removed Loga removed Logo removed

TV Studios
Coronation Street  Cormne Dine With Peak audience of Foxannounce'm  Talkin’ '‘Bout Your  Entertainment
reachesits 7000th  Me commissioned 12 4m viewers A Celebrity USA Generation pilots, The Chase
episode and forafurthersenes watchthefinalof  line up, format launchesin and The Fuse air
remains toprating by Channel 4 Dancang on lce later sells to Australia as the onTvi
UK soap Swedenandindia  highest rating

comedy senes

prermiere ever

Logo remaoved Logo remaved Logo removed Logo removed




[TV pic Report and accounts 2009 2009 ata glance

07

July

Reductionin
programme stock
drives £100m
working caprtal
gain over first half

August

ITV announces sale
of Fnends
Reunrted subject
to regulatory
clearance

September

Consultation on
pension Initiatives
to reduce defiait
by around £100m

Government
confirms Digital
Economy Bill to
address financing
for ITV regonal
news

October

Launch of
convertible bond
which raised
£135m

Ofcom consult on

review of ITV

licence payments

November

Over £100m
of borrowings
repaid early

December

Repayments to
2014 reduced by
£371m to £326m
over the course
of 2009

Targeted savings
delivered and
headcount
reduced by

over 1,200

ITV1 schedule The X Factor A peak of 98m TV News ITV secures full Project Canvas
changes, with soap  returns forits most  watch England announces ownership of receves provisional
moves and successful series qualify for the relaunch, with breakfast franchise  approval from
Wednesdaymight  with the final World Cupin 2010 2009 ratings up GMTV the BBC Trust
football peaking at 19 3m 6% on 2008
viewers
togo removed Logo removed Logo remaved Logo removed

Hell’'s Kitchen USA  Four Weddings This Moming ITV Studios The Prisoner airs Ninth senes of
returns for sixth sold to Germany relaunchesonITV1  launchesinSpain on AMCinthe US,  Pm A Celebrty UK
seasononFoxand  and US, following  and onfine with with France ahead of TV peaks with
now watched in UK run on Living ratings up 8% to follow launch n 2010 11 5m viewers
over 90 territories

Logo removed Logo removed Logoremoved
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The UK television advertising market experienced
record declines across 2009. We executed a concerted
response which ensured that ITV entered 2010 as a
leaner, fitter business, with a stronger balance sheet.

2009 was a very challenging year for ITV UK television
advertising revenues fell by 9% in the final quarter of 2008
and weakened further across the first half of 2009, with ITV
advertising revenues falling by 15% Such was the level of
market uncertainty, even then we could not be confident
that we were at the bottormn of the downtum

Given our high levels of financial and operational geanng,
iTV rapidly put in place an action plan, with three
over-arching pnonties

First and foremost, we needed to stabilise the finances of the
business to ensure that we could weather the economic storm

Secondly, we needed to reduce our costs We set out plans
to deliver savings in 2009 equivalent to 9% of our cost base

Thirdly - and crucially - we were determined to maintam the
progress the business was starting to make Cutting investment
or making savings by undermining ITV's long-term health
would represent a false econorny for our shareholders

A year on, with some greater stability in the market, we have
delivered tangible progress against each of these objectives

Cash and the balance sheet

With television advertising accounting for almost 70% of ITV
revenue, we had to work hard to ensure that the downturn
did not put undue pressure on cash and debt levels

Whilst our EBITA before exceptional items reduced shightly,

we managed stock levels tightly and increased our adjusted
cash flow by £200 million As a result, we reduced our net debt
by over £100 milkon at the year end

We have also ensured that our debt 1s repayable over a longer
timeframe We raised around £250 million of new borrowings
repayable over five to ten years, induding a convertible bond
We reduced our 2011 debt repayment by nearly 90% All our
debt 1s covenant free and cash on the balance sheet 1s
sufficient to cover all repayments to 2015

Whilst the iImmediate funding pressure has been reduced,
challenges remain The pension defiat has increased, reflecting
actuanal changes We are actively managing this nisk, reduang
habihities by £110 milion through benefit changes The next
major funding valuation 1s due in 2011

Further details on the action we have taken to strengthen
the balance sheet are set out In the Finanaal review

Cost savings

Across the three years to the end of 2008, iTV delivered
£40 million in cost savings In the face of the econormic
downturn, we committed to new savings cf a different
order of magnitude, with a target of £155 rnilhon for 2009

There are three elernents to this cost reduction regional
programming, network programming, and efficiencies
off-screen

In regional programming, we reduced costs by £44 miflion

We did this whilst maintaining service qualty by simplifying
the regional map and reduang non-news output, both with
regulatory consent Further regional savings may be deliverable
over time given the political consensus that the cost of our
licence commitments need to return to balance with reducing
licence benefits Additional savings such further derequlatton
would yreld are not included mn our savings targets

We reduced network programming costs by £75 milllon during
the year Qur investment in oniginal programming rernained
substantial at £540 million, but reduced year-on-year by
almost £70 millon Nonetheless, ITV1 performed well, reducing
share of commeraial impact decline compared to 2008 and
launching a number of successful new serles, Including Law &
Order UK, The Cube, Abave Suspiaon and Whitechapel

Ofi-screen we delivered £50 rmulion of savings Staff headcount
was reduced by over 1,200 posts and we closed operations where
further investment could no longer be justified We have also
simplified our structure by integrating our Online business wath
Broadcasting We are seeking to dispose of the joint venture
Screenwviston US and have agreed to sel! Fnends Reunited, subject
to final regulatory approval

In total across 2009, we exceeded our target and delivered
£169 million in savings These savings have protected our
profits in the face of revenue decline, but have alsc funded
important investments, including high definition, video on
demand and other emerging platforms and services, which will
continue into 2010
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John Cresswell

Intenm Chief Executive

Core operating performance

In 2008 ITV held its share of audience and advertising,

whilst establishing its online video proposition and growing

its international production revenues Asimportant as it

was to reduce our cost base and to stabilise our finances,

we were determined to mamntan this operational momentum
into 2009

in fact, with our focus on delivery unwavering, we succeeded
in delivering further progress during the year across all of
our key business areas

As well as holding our audience share once agamn, we increased
our share In peak viewing hours We started to win back share
of the television advertising market from our competitors
Online viewing of catch-up programming and dips started to
achieve consistent scale, driving revenue growth

Our studios business continued to grow Its external revenues,
leveraging successful UK productions overseas, and —in a tough
market context — held its profits year-on-year

Further details of the operating progress made i 2009 are
set out aver the following pages

2010 and beyond

As set out in the Forward lock on page 26, 2010 will be another
chailenging year for ITV But we are focused on delivering
further progress agamnst our stated priorities

In terms of our core operating performance, we will seek to
continue to hold our broadcast audiences and advertising
market share, whilst building our online reach The breadth
of our service offenng will increase with the planned launch
of an ITV1 HD service and ITV1+1, and continuing progress
towards bninging the Project Canvas video on demand service
to market Qur ITV Studios business has secured an extended
pilot deal with ITV channels and will look to leverage its UK
successes in the international market.

With respect to cash and the balance sheet, we will look to
maintain profit to cash corwversion in excess of 90% on arolling
three year basis We will continue to manage our balance
sheet and our tnterest costs, whilst seeking to further de-nisk
the pension Liability

We are continuing to keep a tight rein on costs, with the
review of licence payments and the next stage of regional
news reform of fenng further potential upside

But whilst we have made progress and are clear on our
short-term prionties, the business continues to face some
considerable challenges over the longer term

Whilst we are seeing year-on-year growth n the market in
early 2010, the outlook for UK televiston advertising remains
uncertain ITV needs to look to protect its performance and
profits from the impact of advertising volatility by developing
alternative revenue streams Online, we need to be explotting
fully our deep programming archive, as well as catch-up and
chips ITV Studios needs to deliver successful new international
formats, which will dnve margin iImprovement alongside
revenue growth

Such 1ssues are being addressed In a strategic review which

1s now underway In the meantime, with a strong operating
performance, a ighter cost base and a number of key
commercial rivals under pressure, ITV 15 well positioned to

take full advantage if the stabilisation in the market continues
and we start to see a sustained economic recovery

I am confident that the progress we have delivered over the
past year - in an unforgiving market context - means that ITV
15 @ leaner and fitter business in early 2010 than it was going
into the downturn in late 2008 1TV now has a stronger
platform to effect what will need to be an even rmore radical
transformation of the business over the next several years

Signature removed

John Cresswell
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4 Joanna Lumley. Catwoman 4 Whitechapel
V1 ™1
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1 1 + Bntain's Got Talent
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Graphic removed

Britain’s Got Talent final attracted
an audience of 20 million viewers
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4 What Katre Did Next
mv2
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1 3 4+ The Xtra Factor + Tour de France 4 Ladies of Letters
ITV?2 ITV4 + ImvV3
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Picture removed

Picture removed

Graphic rermoved

£1 billion invested in programming
across the ITV family of channels




ITV plc Report and accounts 2009 Operating review

1 ll' 4+ England World Cup qualifiers

Graphic remaoved

150% rise in itv.com video views year-on-year
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+ This Moming

4+ Danangon lce

+ Coronation Street

Picture removed
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1 6 4 The Pnsoner 4+ Hells Kitchen USA
ITV1/AMC Fox

Picture removed

Prcture removed

Graphic removed

ITV Studios Global Entertainment represents

35,000 hours of content -
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+ Kandisdjungein + Popstar to Cperastar
Tv4, Sweden ™1

Picture removed

Picture removed




ITV pic Report and accounts 2009 Operating review

18 Broadcasting & Online

In a tough market, ITV's channels outperformed their
commercial competition in terms of viewing and
advertising share. ITV’s core online service, itv.com,
grew its users, video views and revenues.

UK advertising came under considerable pressure dunng 2009,
with total revenues decliming by 13% Total UK television
advertising revenues declined by around 11%, slightty increasing
their share of the total advertising market to around 24%
Growth tn UK onhine advertising revenues was more muted than
recent years at around 3% Nonetheless online advertising now
accounts for nearly a quarter of totat UK advertising spend

ITV outperformed the wider television advertising market
sigrificantly over 2009 As a result, although (TV's telewision
advertising revenues dechined by 9%, ITV's share of the total
market increased frorn 43 8% in 2008 to 44 7% This increase
followed ITV holding its market share year-on-year for the
first time n over two decades in 2008

Across the year, there was considerable market volatility
Over the first half, ITV net advertising revenue {NAR) was
down 15%, with year-on-year decline easing to 11% in the
third quarter In the final quarter ITV NAR actually increased
year-on-year, with revenues in Decemnber up by 14%

Graph removed

ITV's outperformance in revenue terms across 2009 reflected
a positive negotiating round with advertisers, after TV held
1ts viewing share across all its channels in 2008 In addition,
ITV was well pasitioned to compete for late monies as ITV's
channels again held therr viewing share in 2009 In peak
viewing hours, ITV's channels actually increased therr share
frarm 278% in 2008 to 28 2% 1n 2009

This increase 1n peak share was delivered despite the continuing
pressure on ITV1 viewing from nsing digital penetration

During the year around 1 2 million UK homes converted

to digital mulechannel Three UK reqions - the Borders, the
West Country and the North West — completed therr transition
ta digital, with analogue transmisston ceasing Across the UK,
by the end of 2009, around 95% of viewers were in multichannel
homes, with the remaining 5% due to convert by the conclusion
of switchover in 2012

The main terrestrial channels, including ITV1, experience
viewing share decline as homes convert to multichannel
However, this effect 15 easing as the UK approaches 100% dignal
penetration Since 2006, growth n viewing te ITV's digital
channels has offset decline in ITV1 viewing share

Of the different television platforms avatlable to viewers, digital
terrestnal television, predominzantly Freeview, accounts for 39%
of pnmary set reception, around the same level as satellite,
which 15 largely subscnption but includes Freesat Digital cable
-~ which 15 exclusively pay-TV - accounts for a further 13% of
homes A small number of UK homes also subscribe to smaller
pay-TV operators, ncluding Top Up TV and BT Vision

UK televiston viewing levels remained flat in 2009, with the
average adult watching four hours of telewision a day With the
BBC losing share, viewing of commeroal television registered a
small increase, rising by 1% compared to 2008

ITV channels delvered 326 billion commeraal tmpacts -
individual adult viewings of 30 second televiston commercials -
an increase of 1% over the previous year However, the volume
of commercial impacts across the market icreased by 4%,
reflecting increased commeraal viewing and more viewing

of digital channels carnying a higher volume of advertising

As aresult, ITV's channels’ share of commeraal impacts was
down shightly year-on-year at 40 0% (2008 410%)




ITV pic Report and accounts 2009 Operating review

19

Logo removed

™1

On-screen performance

Across 2009, ITV1 delivered a 16 6% share of total UK viewing
compared to 17 2% in 2008 ITV1’s share of commercial viewing
(excluding the BBC) was 26 6% (2008 278%) BBC1, BBCZ and
Channel 4 all suffered greater proportionate dedlines than {TV1

(TV1 performed particularly strongly in peak viewing hours -
defined as 700 pm to 1030 pm ITV1 delivered a 23 7% peak
share overall (2008 239%) and a 377% share of commercial
viewing 1n peak (2008 38 6%) Again, ITV1's main terrestral
rivals all suffered proportionately greater declines ITV1 delivered
nearly double the share in peak of Channel 4 and Five combined

Share of commercial impacts 1s an important measure for
advertisers as 1t represents the proportion of all viewing of UK
commercials delivered by a channel ITVT's share of cornmercial
Impacts in 2009 was 28 4% (2008 300%) Across upmarket
ABC1 vtewers and younger 16-34 year old viewers, ITV1
outperformed both its main commergial nivals, Channel 4

and Five, year-on-year

Programming

The foundation of [TV1's strong viewing performance in 2009
was a raft of successful new and returning programming,
within a significantly reformed schedule architecture Although
the programme budget was reduced by 12% year-on-yJear,

ITV1 invested over £850 million in programming, ncluding
£540 mithon in onginal UK commusstons ITV1 maintained

its spending on entertanment, but tnmmed investment
indrama, with a focus on the soaps and 900 pm drama

In entertainment, ITV1 had an exceptional year wath each of
its four main entertainment events - Dancing on Ice, Brtain's
Got Talent, The X Factor and 'm A Celebnity - building their
audience The final of the third series of Britain's Got Talent
peaked wrth a 75% audience share, and was the most watched
non-sports programme on UK telewsion for over five years

In its sixth series, The X Factor mtroduced audrtions before

a live audience and split its final stages over Saturday and
Sunday rights The result was 1ts most successful series

to date with the final attracting 19 3 mullion viewers

Cutside the four big franchises, entertainment successes
included Piers Morgan's Life Stories, All Star Mr & Mrs,
The Royal Vanety Perforrmance and Ant & Dec’s Saturday
Night Takeaway [TV also launched a successful new
entertainment format for Saturday rughts, The Cube

ITVT's soaps continued to deliver robust ratings Coronation
Street averaged 9 2 million viewers (2008 9 5 million), well
ahead of Eastenders on BBC1 Emmerdale averaged 6 7 mullion
(2008 69 million)

Alongside the soaps, ITV1 delivered a number of highly
successful new 900 pm dramas Whitechapel was the highest
rating new drama on any channel since 2006 Collision was
stripped across a week and peaked with 8 4 milhon viewers
Law & Order UK, a British version of the highly successfut and
long-running US seres, delivered an audience of 70 million

In total, seven of the UK's top ten new dramas across the year
were on ITV1, with a number of the most successful - including
Whitechapel, Above Suspicion and Law & Order UK —returning
in 2010

Top ten new dramas on UK television

Audierce
Title Channel (milbon)
Whitechapel V1 93
Collision I 84
Above Suspicion 1 80
Unforgiven ™1 78
Murderland ITv1 73
The Day of the Triffids BBC1 70
Law & Order UK Imv1 70
Demons 1TV 63
Hope Springs BBC1 63
Hunter BBC1 58

In comedy, a third series of Beridorm, with episodes extended
to an hour, delivered an average audience of 6 5 million

Harry Hill's TV Burp returned for a ninth senes and averaged

6 7 million viewers

The best perforrming sports programme on [TV1 10 2009 was
the UEFA Champions’ League final between Manchester United
and Barcelona, which peaked with 10 6 rrullion viewers Other
high performmng sports programmung mcluded the FA Cup
and England home internationals

Csven the pressure on the programming budget, the ITV1
schedule included a greater ernphasis on lower cost factual
programming Strorg factual performers Included Pers Morgan
on , Martin Clunes. Islands of Britain and Billy Connolly
Journey to the Edge of the World The best performing factual
programme 1n the year was Dancing on Ice The Story of Bolero
which attracted an audience of 77 million viewers
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Daytime programming delivers over 20% of total ITV1 viewing
During 2009, This Morning relaunched with Holly Willoughby
Joining the presenting line-up and a range of editorial changes
Ratings for the show improved with audrences in 2009 up 8%
Other key daytime trtles, The Jeremy Kyle Show and Loose
Women, held their audience shares on 2008

In November 2009, ITV acquired the remainmng 25% of GMTV
held by Disney Full ownership of the breakfast franchise will
allow greater integration and crass-promotion between ITV1
and GMTV Across 2009, GMTV held its audience share at 1 2%
(2008 12%)

ITV reduced its mvestrment in regional programeing to

£68 milion (2008 £112 million), as Ofcorn approved
modernisation of ITV's regional news services Nonetheless
ITV1's main regional news programmes at 600 pm continued
to deliver an average audience of 33 million viewers (2008

34 milion)

National and international news remains a key part of the ITV1
schedule ITV invested in a significant marketing campargn to
support a relaunch of its national news pragramming during
the year News at Ten's average audience increased by 6%
compared to 2008 Across the year, ITV1's main news
programmes delivered an average daily reach of 78 miflon,
compared to 1 8 rmilton for Channel 4 News and 17 milhion

for Sky News

Craph removed

The ITV1 network’s viewing figures across the year were
negatively impacted by the underperformance of the
independent ITV1 hcensee, STV Group plc STV Increased sts
level of opt outs from ITV1 drarnas, including The Bill and
Doc Martin, and reduced 1ts finanaial contnbution to the
ITV1 network STV's share of commercial impacts fell by 12%
across the year

Revenues

ITV1 television advertising revenues were £993 million, down
12% on 2008 Compared to recent years, ITV1 revenue growth
ran much closer ta the overall market, where revenues were
down 11%

The 2009 revenue performance was achieved despite the
continuing iImpact of Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) CRR allows
advertisers to reduce thewr commitment to ITV1 in ine with the
channel’s share of commercial impact dedline in the previous
year ITV1's share of commercial impact decline in 2008 was 6%
However, 2009 ITV1 NAR decline ran relatively close to the
overall market decline, reflecting a strong on-screen performance
and a successful outcome to the advertising deal round

The Competrtion Commussion undertock a review of CRR during
2009 and, in early 2010, provisionally ruled that CRR should be
maintained TV had argued that CRR should be abolished
entrrely and the outcome of the review Is therefore disappointing
ITV continues to believe that CRR 1s a disproportionate remedy
with negative consequences extending well beyond ITV

The Competition Comrssion has provisionally conduded

that CRR should be amended to permit the indusion of

an ITV1+1 and ITV1 HD service within CRR (see Forward look

on page 26)

ITV’s sponsorship revenues — predorminantly in connection
with ITV1 programming — were £59 muthion in 2009 (2008

£58 milhon) Sponsorship revenues were considerably more
resiient than NAR, reflecting longer term contracts and the
value to advertisers of allying themselves with successful

ITV programming Major contracts in 2009 included esure’s
sponsorship of the National Weather and Harvey's sponsorship
of Coronation Street In addrtion, ITV secured important
contracts for 2010, induding Lucozade and Hyundar's
sponsorship of the 2010 World Cup

ITV's Interactive revenues, primarily raised from competitions
and phone voting around ITV1 programmes, were £30 mition
In 2009 (2008 E£34 rmilion) There were almost 100 mullion
viewer Interactions, entries to competitions and votes across
the year The X Factor final alone generated over 10 rmiltton
votes, up 28% year-on-year
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Digital channels

ITV's family of digital channels - ITV2, ITV3,1TV4 and ATV - put
tn another strong performance in 2009 Thew combined share
of viewing was 5 3%, compared to 4 3% for the BBC's digrital
channels and 4 1% for the Channel & digital farmily

ITV's digital channels are broadcast free-to-air on Freeview,
digital satellite and cable and are entirely funded by advertising
and sponsorship Notwithstanding wider market weakness,
ITV's digital channels increased therr tetevision advertising
revenues by 1% to £245 rmilkion, raising their share of the total
UK television advertising market to 8 5% (2008 75%) Across the
year, ITV's digital channels generated more advertising revenue
than the UK's third largest commercial channel, Five

Although ITV's digital channels delivered increased viewing,
advertising revenues and share across 2009, investment in
programming for the channels was held at £110 rmiilion
(2008 £112 million) This reflects (TV's strategy of seeking
to contain its programming gosts

mv2

ITV2, together with a timeshifted sister service, ITV2+1,

15 particularly targeted at the younger 16-34 year old
dermographic, with a schedule including a mix of onginal
commussions, spin-offs from ITV1 programming, movies,
US acquired series and repeats

In 2009, ITV2 retained 1ts position as the UK's top multichannel
station in terms of its share of commercial impacts, with a

12% increase In adult commercial Impacts translating into

2 4 3% share of total market impacts ITV2 increased s

share of viewing to 2 4% (2008 21%)

Impacts across ITV2's target younger audience increased by
15% on the previous year, with ITV2 overtaking the terrestnal
channel Five in this commeraally valuable demographic

ITV2 also delivers more upmarket impacts than any other
UK digital channel and improved its audience profile further
dunng 2009 with ABC1 impacts increasing by 13%

ITV2 had a number of programmung successes dunng the year
The Xtra Factor attracted the channel's highest ever peak
audience of 3 5 million viewers, ahead of the Britain's Got More
Talent final episode which peaked at 3 3 milhion viewers Other
programming successes included Peter Andre Going It Alone,
which peaked with 2 4 million viewers

Logo removed

Imv3

ITV3 s airmed at an upmarket audience, with a schedule
including repeated ITV drama, acquired programming, filrms
and some onginal programming

In 2009, 1TV3 retained its position as the UK's second largest
muttichannel station in terms of commercoal impact share,
with ashare of 34% (2008 31%) and impact volurmes up

by 16% year-on-year

Across the year, 241 ITV3 programmes achieved an audience
of more than 500,000, compared to 147 programmes in 2008
ITV3 had its best ever programming performance in 2009 with
Ladies of Letters delivering 1 3 rullion viewers and an 8 2%
viewing share Other successful programmes included Lewis
and Poirot, which both had episodes with audiences of over
10 million

Graph removed
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V4

ITV4 targets young male viewers, with a schedule including live
football, darts, Tour de France cycling, classic repeated drama
and US acquisitions

[TV4 grew its impacts by 8% in 2009 and was the UK's seventh
largest multichannel station in terms of commercial impact
share, with a 1 5% share of commercial mpacts

ITV4's top performing programme of the year was the UEFA
Cup match between Manchester City and Hamburg, which
attracted a peak audience of 2 7 million viewers and averaged
a 13% share of male viewers The top non-sport programme
on ITv4 was the action movie Crank, which attracted a peak
audience of 10 million viewers and a 10% share

Cmv

CITV 15 ITV's channel for younger viewers and features a range
of UK and imported children’s programming In 2009, CITV's
share of commeraal impacts for children increased by 6%

to 31%, with its volume of children's impacts up by 6%

SDN

SDN Is a digital terrestnial television (DTT) multiplex operator
wholly owned by ITV SDN earns revenues by leasing out
capacity on the DTT platform to channel providers, generally
on long-term contracts Channels carried on the SDN multiplex
include QVC, Five and CITV

SDN holds one of six digital terrestral muttiplex licences
Dunng 2009 the licence was renewed by the regulator Ofcom
and the second licence term runs to 2022 No spectrum fee
I1s payable until the end of 2014 at the earliest.

In 2009, SDN revenues increased by 33% to £44 mullion,
reflecting improved terms for a channel contract renewed
in early 2009 and the accommodation of a tenth broadcast
channel from May 2009

Having constdered the sale of SDN earlier in the year, in October
200917V announced that preliminany discussions had been
opened with the Trustees of the ITV Pension Scheme over a
partnership arangement under which SON would provide asset
backing to the pension scherme Such a partnership could serve
to reduce the pension deficit on a funding basis, with ITV
continuing to consolidate SDN's revenues and cash flows
Discussions regarding this proposal are continuing

Freeview, Freesat and Project Canvas

ITV 15 a shareholder in Freeview, which markets the highly
successful UK free-to-ar DTT platform By the end of 2009,
Freeview was the primary means of television reception in
101 rmullion UK homes, with a further 59 mullion homes using
Freeview on one or More Non-primary sets

[TV 15 also a joint venture partner in Freesat, which markets
subscription-free digital satellite television Freesat was launched
in early 2008 by TV and the BBC to provide free-to-air access
to digital satelite, Induding HD services from the BBC and ITV
By the end of the year, subscription-free digital satellite

was the pnmary means of television reception in § 7 rmillion
UK homes

ITV's backing for Freeview and Freesat reflects ITV's strategy
to future-proof the digital platforms on which ITV's family of
channels performs strongest Consistent with this strategy,
ITV 1s also a partner In Project Canvas, which aims toset a
standard for on demand services delivered via internet-
connected set-top boxes and televisions

Project Canvas will allow all digital viewers — free-to-air as well
as pay — access to video on demand programmung on the
television set ITVs partners in the project include the BBC,
BT, Five, Channel 4 and Talk Talk Having been prowvisionally
approved by the BBC Trust in late 2009, preparations for

the launch of Project Canvas are continuing

Graph remaoved
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Online

The UK online advertising market continues to grow as
broadband penetration has reached 70% of UK households
with faster broadband connections, the demand for online
video has increased and a number of new online video services
have been launched Digital cable subscnibers can already
access services, including ITV Player, via therr television

New services, such as Project Canvas, promise to accelerate
further the conwergence of online video on demand and
television platforms

ITV's focus has been on bullding the reach of its onfine video
services delivered wia itv com and a number of partnerships

In 2009, 1tvcom unigue users averaged 8 7 million per month,
increasing by 33% on 2008 Online wideo viewing of ITV
programrming has also continued 1o grow rapidly Including
catch-up and short form chps, video views across the year on
itvcom totalled 215 mullion, up 150% from 2008 Both metnics
peaked in May, with Britain's Got Talent boosting uruque
users to 12 8 rmullion and wideo views reaching 50 rrullion

for the month

Graph removed

Video on demand deals with Virgin Med:a and BT Vision allow
therr combined 3 5 million subscribers access to hundreds of
hours of ITV content via their televisions on an on demand
basis ITV also has a partnership with ITunes which makes
ITV's prograrnming avatlable for paid-for download

Early in 2009, the Competition Commusston blocked Project
Kangaroo, the proposed joint venture between the BBC, [TV,
Channel 4 and Five to deliver an online video archive service
Since that deciston, ITV has been pursuing alternatwve means
of exploiting its extensive wideo archive via itvcom and
potential third-party partnerships

During 2009, the online dvsion was integrated into ITV's
wider broadcasting operations, generating significant savings
As with [TV's existing digital channels, there 15 an opportunity
to leverage ITV's nvestment in content and [TV1's cross-
promotional power to drive traffic and revenues to online
and on demand services

Onhne revenues totalled £37 rmillion in 2009, up 3% on 2008
Excluding Frends Reunited, itv com revenues were £24 million,
up 33% on 2008 The largest single element of ity com revenues
15 accounted for by wideo advertising, with the balance induding
payments from video on demand deals with pay-TV platforms

Fnends Reunited's revenues declined by 28% to £13 mullion,
impacted by the decline in onhine display advertising prices
and the loss of subscription revenues from the core reunions
site following its relaunch in 2008

In August 2009, ITV announced that it had agreed to sell Friends
Reunited to Brightsolid for £25 millon The proposed disposal
15 currenthy being reviewed by the Competition Commission
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2009 was a challenging year for the UK and international
television production market The economic downtum
impacted demand for onginal production from broadcasters
with their own advertising revenues falling, commissioners
sought to apply downward pressure on producers’ prices

and margtns or replaced onginal commissions with cheaper
acquisitions and repeats

Despite the downturn amongst its broadcast customers, ITV
Studtos increased its external revenues by 9% to £335 million
(2008 £306 million) However, overall revenues fell by 4%

o £597 millon (2008 £622 mullion), reflecting a significant
reduction in internal ITV commussions Following a similar
pattern of increased external revenues and reducing

ITV commissions the previous year, for the first time in

2009 external revenues represented the majority of overall
ITV Studios’ revenues

EBITA before exceptional tterns was held at £91 miliion
(2008 £90 milkion), with efficiency savings, international
growth and some exchange rate gains offsetting lower
internal supply

Graph removed

UK Production

Internal revenues, largety commmussians for ITV1, fell by

£54 milhon to £262 millon The reduction in internal
commissions partly reflected a reduction in ITV1's budget
However ITV Studios' share of ITV1 commusstons fell to 47%
in 2009, compared to 51% in 2008

The most significant reduction in internal commissions was in
drama, with a number of established titles, induding A Touch
of Frost and Heartbeat, not broadcast or transrmitted in shorter
runs In other cases, Including Albert’s Memonal and Identity,
transmission has been delayed into 2010 Nonetheless ITV
Studios continued to deliver more ITV1 drama than any other
producer, with returning titles ncluding Lewis and Blue Murder,
and new commussions including Gunrush and The Fattest Man
in Britain

Entertainment commussions for ITV1 also reduced, but included
I'm A Celebnity, Dancing on [ce and The Krypton Factor

Two new shows — The Fuse and The Chase — were delivered
under an TV pilot deal, which 1s being extended in 2010

With ITVY's programme budget under pressure, more cost
effective factual programmung has been a focus 1TV Studios
detiveries included Real Crime, Arline and Countrywise

ITV Studios also continued to produce the key pillars of
ITVT’s daytime schedule, including The Jeremy Kyle Show,
This Marning, toose Wormen and 60 Minute Makeover

[TV Studios’ two soaps — Caronation Street and Emmerdale -
remained ITV1's most effective ratings drivers aver the course
of 2009 Coronation Street reached its 7,000th episode in
January 2009 and celebrates its 50th birthday in 2010

Trading conditions beyond ITV were tough with other UK
broadcasters also cutting programme budgets Reflecting |
these trends, ITV Studios external UK production revenues

reduced by 15% to £58 miflon However, successful third-party

commuissions included The Street, Eggheads and University

Challenge for the BBC, Come Dine With Me and Countdown for

Channel 4 and two new formats for Living, My Ugly Best Frtend

and Four Weddings

Resources revenues from ITV's studio faalittes and post-
production business were £13 milhen (2008 £17 millon),
reflecting the decline in UK production activity and closure
of studios in Leeds

ITV Studios won 45 awards in 2009 (2008 61 awards), with
winners induding Ant & Dec’s Saturday Night Takeawa),
The Street and Loose Women
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Despite the downtum amongst its broadcast
customers, ITV Studios increased its external
revenues by 9% to £335 million and held EBITA
before exceptional itemns at £91 million.

Intemational Production

ITV has been seeking to diversify its production revenues over
recent years International production has been a particutar
focus with ITV seeking to move from distnbuting programming
or seling format nghts to producing onginal programming

in local markets for international broadcasters In more
challenging trading conditions, ITV's international praduction
bustnesses were able to mamtan strong growth across 2009,
with revenues Increasing by 41% to £138 million (iIncluding
some foreign exchange benefit)

This growth has been founded on ITV's ability to deliver locally
adapted versions of proven UK hits to the international market
ITV Studios produced Come Dine With Me - cnginally made

by ITV Studios for Channel 4 in the UK - for VOX in Germany,
for TV4 in Sweden and for Lifestyle in Australia During the year,
ITV produced local versions of 'm A Celebrity for NBC mn the
USA, RTL in Germany, Sony Entertainment Television in India
and TV4 in Sweden - as well as on ITV1

The largest of ITV's international production businesses, ITV
Studias USA, delivered a strong slate of programming ncluding
Hell's Kitchen and Kitchen Nightmares for Fox, Roorm Raiders
for MTV and Steven Seagal Lawman for ARE.

Alongside ITV Studios’ existing production offices in Germany,
Australa and Sweden, ITV opened a further production base
In Spain and, early in 2010, in France

Graph removed

[TV Studios Global Entertainment

iTV's distnbution and exploitation business, ITV Studios Global
Entertanment, held its revenues broadly flat in 2009 at

£126 million (2008 £123 mullion) This was despite challenging
trading conditions, in particular in the UK DVD market, and
reflected some benefit frarm foreign exchange movernents

ITV Studios Clobal Entertainment represents mare than
35,000 hours of onginal and formatted programming from
ITV Studios and leading independent producers and distnbutes
to broadcasters in more than 240 terntones worldwide

Major revenue earners in 2009 included Coronation Street,
Emmerdale, Poirot and Heartbeat, with Australia, Ireland,
Canada, the USA and Scandinavia the major temtories

A new version of The Pnisener, co-produced by ITV Studios

and AMCn the US, will be broadcast on ITV11n 2010

Major format sales include Cormie Dine With Me, which has
been scid to countnies including Sloverua, Sweden, Australia
and Norway New ITV Studios format Four Weddings has also
delvered international format sales following its UK success

ITV Studios Home Entertainment markets a portfolio of over
3,000 television, music, film and publishing titles across formats
mncluding DVD, Blu-ray, and downlcads m the UK and
internationally Major UK revenue earners induded Harry Hill’s
TV Burp, Al Murray The Pub Landlord, Coronation Street
Romanian Holiday and Inspector Morse
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Although the wider economic environment may be more
stable n 2070, the outlook remains highly uncertain and
ITV faces another challenging year

Broadcasting & Online

In early 2010, the television advertising market has returned
to growth Across the first quarter, ITV expects its television
advertising revenues to be up 7%, In line with the wider UK
television advertising rmarket

Into the second quarter, the level of Government spending
on UK television advertising may be impacted by the generat
election However it 1s hoped that this should be offset by
the positive impact of the football Warld Cup Whilst ITV

has limited wisibility on advertising beyond the first quarter,
ITV 15 seeking to hold 1ts share of the total market for a third
year In succession

Craph removed

ITV has continued to deliver a stable ratings performance
inearly 2010, with the ITV family mantaming its share of
commercial Impacts year-on-year over the first six weeks
Over the same period, ITVT's share of commeraal impacts was
287% (2009 29 4%), reflecting the success of programming
induding Above Suspiaon, Take Me Out and Dancaing on Ice

As well as the start of the football World Cup, the second
quarter includes the fourth senes of Britain's Got Talent.

Following the Competition Commussion review of CRR, ITV
antiapates launching ITV1+1 and the ITV1 HD channel later In
2010 ITV1+1 and the HD services will strengthen ITV's channel
Iine up and the channel offering on DTT, the platform on
which ITV's channels perform best. Preparations for the launch

of dewvices allowing free-to-arr access to video on demand
services via the television, as part of Project Canvas, will
also continue

With the CRR review completed, Ofcom intends to review

the rules on advertising rminutage Currently 1TV (@longside
Channet 4 and Five) 1s required to broadcast a lower volume of
advertising than other UK commercial channels and must sell
all its inventory ITV believes that it could potentially benefit
from greater flexibility with respect to such restnctions

Ofcom (s also set to consult on the imited introduction of
product placement to UK television later in 2010 While there 15
uncertainty as to the scale of the market, product placement
represents an apportunity for further revenue diversification

The requirement on ITV1 to broadcast regional news services
remains a costly obhgation which ITV believes 1s unsustainable
i its current form Government has confirmed a pilot scheme
which may see TV plc relieved of regional news costs in two
regions as early as 2010/11 and a framework for external
funding of regional news across ITV by 2013 The Conservative
Party opposes these specific proposals, but has also supported
a reduction N {TV's public service broadcasting obligations

ITV1 has been required to make payments to the Treasury

for 1ts Channel 3 licences, which in 2009 totalled £22 million
{2008 £30millon) An early review of the level of these licence
payments is currently underway with new rates expected

to be retrospectively applied from January 2010

ITV Studios

Trading for ITV Studios 1s expected to remain tough dunng
2010, reflecting pressure on commussioning budgets amongst
broadcasters worldwide Internal commussicns will be iImpacted
as ITV’s programme budget accommodates additional
investment on the football World Cup In international
production, a number of commissions secured in 2009 are

not expected to be recomrmuissioned for 2010, but may

return for 201

Strategic review

Early in 2010, {TV faunched a major strategic review The review
will set out the journey ITV needs to embark on to delver its
strategic objectives The new Chief Executive Adam Crozier

15 expected to set out the new strategy for the business later
in 2010

Having exceeded Its cost savings target for 2009, ITV s
continuing to keep a tight rein on costs in 2010, with total
schedule costs expected to be flat and further off-screen
savings In train TV continues to make targeted nvestrment,
in particular to support the launch of ITV1 HD, ITV1+1 and
Project Canvas
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ITV’s major stakeholders include shareholders,
employees, suppliers, viewers and online users, UK
and international broadcasters, and advertisers.

Employees

Gven the difficult econormic environment, ITV has seen its
headcount fall significantly dunng 2009 As at 31 Decernber 2009,
the Company had 4,026 employees (2008 5,232 employees)

In tough market conditions, building employee engagement
and commitment s an even greater priority for the Company
In 2009, ITV undertook regular staff surveys to track staff
opinion, commitment and engagement (see page 33)

People development

Ensuning that staff have the necessary skills and expenence to
deliver the Cornpany's corporate objectives in rapidly changing
market conditions 1s a priority for ITV

The Company's performance management process seeks to
ensure that ITV employees have clear and aligned objectives
which are evaluated each year All managers are required to
undertake a formal Performance and Development Review
with their staff tn 2009, ITV refined its core traiing portfolio
to focus on those core skills that best meet the priorities

of the business

ITV has also implemented a number of initiatives in 2009 that
give employees broader expenence and enhance company-
wide commitment These include the relaunch of the
volunteering scherne which allows employees to use their
creative and media skills through a range of volunteering
opportunities A 12 month Fast Track scheme allows

talented ITV staff at the beginring of therr careers to

build expenence and skills on an accelerated basis

Rewards and incentives

In order to attract, retain and motivate the best talent, ITV
aims to offer all employees a competitive package of pay,
benefits and incentives In January 2010 ITV completed its
annual pay review and concluded that there should be no
increase In base salary for any ITV employees However, to
provide recognition to its employees for their hard work
and loyalty shown durng a difficult year, ITV made a share
award to the value of £340 to all eligible employees and
provided an extra day's holiday

ITV offers a number of iniiatives as part of its benefits
package to incentimvise all employees

- an annual bonus scheme for all ITV employees, which
15 dependent on ITV's performance against key financial
and non-finanaal targets,

- an allemployee reward scheme, Create, which rewards
employees for any new 1deas that generate profit
or tmprove the way [TV does business, and

— a Save As You Earn schermne which gives all employees
the chance to save and build a stake in the Company

Diversity

ITV's civersitty policy aimns to ensure equahity of opportunity
iwrespective of gender, marntal status, race, ongin, nationalrty,
religious belef, disability, age or sexual onentation N requitiment,
learming, development and promotion Thus also covers the
arrangements for continued employment of and appropriate
training for employees who become disabled whilst working

at the Company

ITV 15 an active partictpant in the major diversity forums
Through these and direct actvities undertaken by TV regionally
and nattonally, the Company is comrmitted to working towards
achieving a workforce fully reflecting the audiences it serves
The table on page 29 gives further Information on ITV's
workplace profile

Communication

ITV recognises that creating an effective workplace requires
free circulation of Information at all levels across the Company
Employees are kept informed about sigmificant business issues
and the Group’s performance using emails, the Company
intranet — The Watercooler — and open forums with members
of the Management Board at each main location Regular
monthly leadership breakfasts are held for semor management,
who are asked to cascade the information to therr teams

The Watercooler also provides a platform on which employees
can interact, discuss current corporate I1ssues and register

any matters of concern

The Cormnpany has a framework for consultation and information-
sharing, under which Communication Groups on each ITV site
are responsible for mantaining a regular two way dialogue
with management on all 1ssues concerning employees

Health and Safety

The health and safety (H&S) of employees, contractors and
visitors at ITV 55 always a ugh pnonty A management system
has been developed by the internal H&S team to meet the
specific nisk profile of the business and 1s supported by a
comprehensive training programme H&S Is communicated
throughout the organisation by a network of local Commuttees,
who report to the ITV H&S Steening Group The table on page
29 gwves further mformation on ITV's H&S statistics
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Customers

Our key customers are our viewers, our advertisers and
other broadcasters

The heart of our business lies In delivering first-rate content
to viewers, either directly wia our famuly of channels, or via
the sale of our content

To understand ITV viewers and their expectations of us more
fully, throughout 2009 we continued to commission an
independent research company Lo recruit and survey our Vision
Panel —a fully representative panel of 10,000 adult television
viewers — and a smaller independent panel, My Digital Life, to
obtain feedback from the online market This enables ITV to
measure audience reaction to our programmes and content
on a daily basis and to achieve an in-depth understanding of
viewer reaction and preferences It also allows ITV to ask regular
questions about the family of digital channels, using the panel
to test new ideas and to find out pecple’s views on broader
media issues The success of the research has led it to be used
by a wide range of areas within the business In 2009 for the
first time 1t was used to help develop programme-related
merchandising opportunities

Viewers must be confident about the quality and appropniatensss
of ITV’s content and scheduling ITV observes the 900 pm
watershed and alerts viewers to matenal that may cause
offence via announcements immediately before relevant
programmming ITV has detalled compliance processes and an
in-house compliance team that provides support and advice
for programme makers and commissioners before and dunng
preduction ITV mantains a responsive complants handling
service via ITV's Viewer Services team, and viewers can raise
any issues directly with Ofcom In 2009, 797 1TV programmes
were complained about to Ofcom, compared to 1,026 in 2008,
and 13 Ofcom adjudications found breaches compared to
1610 2008

The relationship with advertisers 1s essential to drive advertising
revenues [TV continues to build close relationships with the
advertisers and agencies, to gain a better understanding

of therr objectives and to enable ITV to meet those needs
more efficently and effectively

ITV Studios has supplied programming to broadcasters and
commussioners worldwide The business works closely with its
partners to produce and supply the highest quality content,
which 1s commeraally appealing and rewarding

Suppliers

ITV conducts business with a large vanety of supplers and
believes that its terms are considered fair and reasonable
To ensure ITV contracts with responsible supplhers,
environmental and health and safety questionnares are
required to be completed as part of all tender processes

A green and sustainable procurement agenda will continue
to be a key focus for the centralised procurement team

Pracurermnent plays a sigrificant rele in driving corporate
performance A significant transformation withun the
function and better accounting systems have enabled ITV's
procuremnent function to be integrated more effectively into
the way ITV conducts its business Procurement manages
spending along category lines enabling it to manage spend
more effectively There are central contracts in place for
technology, broadcast, praduction and marketing spend,
with local deals only being used where a justification has
been agreed

ITV has a vanety of supphiers who are key to the business

A nurnber of the Company’s major supphers are involved

in the broadcast of ITV's family of channels and include Arqiva,
TNS, SES Astra and BT Key suppliers of programming and
broadcasting programme nights include ITN, who provides ITV's
national news pragrammes, Fremantle who produce 8ritain’s
Got Talent and The X Factor for ITV1, the Football Asscciation
and NBC Universal Studios ITV has recently signed a five year
outsourcing contract with Accenture for them to provide ITV
with technology operations and support services Services will
be transitioned to Accenture dunng 2010 ITV ensures dose
engagement with these suppliers and seeks to manage the
nsks tnvalved in the reliance upon them, where possible holding
long-term contracts Other key supplers inctude those who
provide the technology for outside broadcast, for example

021 Telewision and SIS ITV has de-risked its exposure to these
supptiers by moving away from rellance on a single partner

Community

ITV 1s committed to engaging viewers acrass the country on
1ssues that affect their ives and have an impact on the
communsty in which they ive Both on and off-screen, ITV's
network and regional teams play an important role in initiatives
which seek to encourage tndmduals to improve therr lives,
support commuruty projects or promote integration of
munonty groups within therr region

In 2009 ITV was an active partner tn the cross-industry

and government campaign to improve the nation’s health
and fitness As a founding member of the Business4Life
rmovement, ITV supported the Change4Life campaign both
on-screen and onlne by launching The Feelgood Factor

This initiative involved network and regional programming
with a focus on helping viewers make positive changes to
achieve a heatthier ifestyle for themselves and therr farmihes
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In 2009 the ITV regional news programmes across the UK
helped give away £3 5 million of lottery funding in the People’s
Millions competition Arcund 70 community projects received
awards of up te £50,000 from the Big Lottery Fund Now nits
fifth year, the People’s Milions competition within regional
news programmes has helped give away more than £21 miflion
with hundreds of good causes benefiting as a result

ITV engages in Diversity and Disability inttiatives including

our award-winning In-house signing faclity, Signpost,

which provides online signing services, news, Information,
entertanment and education in and about sign language

In 2009, Signpost won a national RADAR Award - the Disability
Network’s People of the Year Awards for ‘Doing it Differently’

Environment

Careful managerment of environmental matters 1s a priority
for {TV During 2009, ITV undertook a range of activities as
part of our environmental managernent prograrnme, such
as supply chain and carbon management

ITV continued to measure and monitor 1ts carbon footprint
and environmental impact dunng 2009 The reshaping of the
business during the year, coupled with the ongoing focus en
resource management, has led to a reduction in beth the
consumption of water and the size of the carbon footprint

of certain parts of the business This decrease reflects changes
in the property profile of the Company and changing
operational practices

Environrmental legislation continues to evolve and ITV has
procedures m place to ensure new regulatory requirements
are identified, understood and proactively managed TV 15
prepanng to meet the regulatory requirements of the CRC
Energy Efficency Scheme A cross business working group
has been established to manage both the nsks and
opportunities presented by the requirements In preparation
for this legislation ITV has identified a wide range of
organisational responses

ITV continues to operate an iNnnovative waste management
contract with an external organisation that encourages waste
reduction and the recycling of matenals This contractual
arrangement has been in place since 2008 and the work
associated with it has been recognised with ITV winning a
Corporate Responsibility Award from the Management
Consultancy Association During 2009 ITV saw an increase

in the percentage of waste that was diverted from landfill
and instead sent for recycling

Donations

The Company made contributions to chanties and equivalent
organisations amounting to £2 mullion (2008 £2 mithon) in cash
and £10 milion (2008 £5 millior} in kind, totalling £12 mullion
(2008 £7 mthon) Further details will be set out In our
Corporate Respansibility report

It 1s the Company’s policy not to make cash contnbutions {o
any political party However, within the normal activities of the
Group’s natronal and regional news gathenng operations there
are occasions when activity may fall within the wide defirution
of politscal expenditure contained in the Compantes Act 2006
Shareholder authonty for such expenditure was given at the
Annual General Meeting 1n 2009 and a similar resolution will be
proposed at the 2010 Annual General Meeting Durning the year
the Group made no payments falling within the defirnition of
political expenditure (2008 £7968)

Corporate Responsibility

ITV recognises the importance of Corporate Respansibility
Fulldetails on ITV's Corporate Responsibility objectives and
activities will be set out In the separate Corporate Responsibility
report avallable on the Company’s website, www itvplc comn
The table below provides a summary of performance against
key Corporate Responsibility performance indicators

2009 2008
Protecting the environment’
€0z emussions from business
travel (tonnes)® 6,831 5867
Total C0:z emissions (tonnesy 46383 50471
Total waste (tonnes) 2,195 1,900
Total waste recyded 65% 36%
Total water use (m?) 86656 93,175
Workplace profile (%)
Fernale ermployees 482 490
Ethnic minonty employees? 91 90
Employees with a disability* 31 20
Ermployees aged over 50 129 150
Health and Safety’
Acadents requinng more
than three days off work 6 5
Mayor acadents 5 2
Fatal acadents 0 0
Access Services for ITV1 (% of programmes)
Subtithng 94.5 955
Audio description 173 132
Signing 56 53

(1) UK onfy, induding landiord managed stes. Assstance with data compilation by Mason
Hardy Ltd.

(2) Caladlated m accordance with the WRLUWBCSD Greenhouse Gas Protoool methodologyy

(3) Percentage of those who disdosed therr ethniaty.

(&) Percentage of those who disdosed therr drabdity,.

(5) Staff acadents excludng contractors.
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ITV operates in a market which is being transformed
by digital technologies. The broader economic
environment is also uncertain. In addition, ITV is
subject to requlatory risk.

The Company works hard to identify and manage the These nsks do not necessarlly comprise all the major risks to
major nsks to which the business is subject acrass all areas which ITV s subject and they are not set out in any order of
and induding both finanaal and reputational risks priority The business may be subject to nisks and uncertainties

ITV employs an Enterprse-wide Risk Management (ERM)
programme In order to identify and monitor major nsks

which are not known to ITV or which are currently judged
to be immatenal

impacting the business and in order to ensure that thesensks ~ Further details on governance arrangerments by which nsks
are appropriately managed with adequate mitigating actions in ~ and uncertainties are monitored and managed are set out
place The nisk factors below were identifted as most significant  in the Audit Committee report

from the 2009 ERM prograrnme

Group

Risk description Impact Matigation

Strategy execution

ITV needs to deliver the three core objectives - Loss of market share - Strategy review launched in early 2010 will

set out In response to the downturn — and
to develop its strategy for long term growth

produce clear ptans for delivery of strategic
objectives across all relevant areas

- Regular review of progress against plans

- Reduction in EBITA before exceptional items
— Deterioration in cash flows

Structural nsk

Wwith the mecha market undergong rapid
structural change and new platforms and
technalogies constantly developing, ITV needs
to ensure that broadcasting and content
revenues and profits are not eroded

- Reduction in television advertising revenues - Implernentation of strategy to strengthen ITV’s

- Reduction in EBITA before exceptional itemns favoured platforms
- Dewising new products and services to take
advantage of emerging opporturuties

Market conditions

As a business with a high reliance on
cychcally-exposed television advertising revenues,
1TV needs to adapt to any potential detenoration
In economic and market conditions puttin
pressure on ITV's revenues, profits and ¢ash flow

~ Lower audience for ITV programming - improving return on investment for
and channels programming spend
- Loss of volurne and share of impacts - Ensuring appropriate compaosttion and targeting

of ITV's channel portfolio

- Loss of telewision advertising market share
- Building strong customer relationstips with

agencies and advertisers
People
ITV's success 1s critically dependent on its ability - Business underperformance - Appropnate employment terms for on
to attract and retain key people across the - Reduced staff engagerment and off-screen talent

business at afl levels on and off-screen

— Investment in traming and development
- Staff surveys and communication programmes

Balance sheet

tn an uncertan economic context and 2
transforming medsa market, ITV requires a robust
balance sheet, inducing pension obligations,
norder to be able to respond to market
opportunities and meet its long-term

funding obligations

- Limited access to finanang and reduced iquidity  — Extending debt matunties to ensure no
- Inability to fund potentially profitable short-term hquidity pressure

Investment opportunities - Ensuning appropriate funding across debt
- Dwversion of cash flows to interest and equity
and pension payments - Reqular contnbutions to pension scheme

and initiatves to address pension nsk
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2
e
» . =2
Broadcasting & Online 2
Risk descaption tmpact Mitigation E
Maintaining performance 2
To ensure that its channels’ audience and - Lower audience for ITV programmung — Improving return on investrment for
advertising share are both maximised, ITV needs and channels programming spend
to sustain and improve the quality of its — Loss of volume and share of Impacts - Ensuring appropriate composition and targeting

programming schedule, ncluding by secunng key

externally produced pragrammes, and to optimige  — Loss of television advertising market share of ITVs channel portfalio

Its sales performance _ — Building strong customer relationshups with o
p toss of key externally supplied programming agencies and advertisers %
- Maintaining high level of internal commussions 3
to reduce reliance on extemnal producers 2
»
Compliance
To deliver on Its regulatory obligations and - Damage to the ITV brand - Appropnate compliance processes and
maintain the trust of its viewers and advertisers, . | qwer audience commutment to TV management
ITV needs to meet comphance requirernents - Legal Input Into all business contracts
applying to its broadcasting licences, in particutar
withrespect to premium-rate telephone services ~ Reporting to Ofcom on artime sales -
=
X
Regulation 2
In a context of rapid market change, ITV needs - Lower audiences for ITV programming - Communicating to Government and requlator o
to ensure that inflexible regulation does not and channels the case for regulatory reform z,
prevent the Company delivenng economically — Loss of volume and share of impacts - Extending broadcast revenue opportunities 3
viable deals with its suppliers, network partners via appropriate regulatory reform &
and customers — Lower broadcast revenues 9 2
~ Managing remaining regulatory hurdtes v
to minimise negative business impact
ITV Studios
Risk description Impact Mitigation
Rights ownership and explotation
With the Company’s success cntically dependent  — Reduction in [TV Studios EBITA before - Ensure approprate employment policies
onits abilty to develop valuable programming exceptional items o attract and retain the best tafent
praperties, ITV needs to sustain and exploit - Continue to build ntemational production
commercially a creatwve pipeline of new formats bases and wider broadcaster relationships

and onginal commissions
9 - Exploit and extend exnstm? cntical mass of
e

internal ITV commussions {e g via ptlot deals)

Margin protection and growth

With pressure on broadcasters’ budgets, induding - Reduction in 1TV Studios EBITA before - Development of co-production and

ITV's own, delivening sustainable marqins on exceptional items co-development partnerships

production requires innavation with respect ~ Delivery of efficiency review savings targets

to funding models, managernent and cost
9 9 - Explotation of commeraial oppartunities

beyond programming and format sales




TV pic Report and accounts 2009

32 Key Performance Indicators

ITV’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are used
by the Company to assess its own performance
against objective financial and non-financial criteria.

As detailed in last year's Annyal Report, ITV has reviewed 1ts
KPIs to ensure that they reflect the focus of the business on
cash and the balance sheet and on delivering public cost
savings targets, as well as maintaining the core operating
performance As aresult, three new KPIs have been introduced
for cash conversion, cost savings and for market share

Finandial KPls

ITV’s financiat KPIs prowide yardsticks for assessing the finanaal
performance of the Group overall and across its major business
areas Further detail on ITV's financial performance can be
found in the Operating and Ftnancial reviews

Revenues and market share

2009 2008
£1,879m £2029m

Total TV revenues

ITV net advertising revenues £1,291m_ £1425m
ITV share of UK television advertising market 44 7% 438%
ITV Studios revenue (including internal) £597m £622m
Online revenues (exduding Friends Reunited) £24m £18m

Total revenues declined by 7% in 2009, with a fall In television
net advertising revenues (NAR) of fset partially by an increase
in external studios and online revenues

ITV NAR represents 69% of total ITV revenues In 2009, ITV NAR
declined by 9% to £1,291 million Notwithstanding this decline,
ITV substantially outperformed the wider UK television
advertising market which suffered its sharpest decline
onrecord, with revenues falling 11%

Television advertising market share has been added as a new
financial KPL, reflecting the fact that wider market growth is
not under ITV's control In 2009, ITV NAR represented 44 7%
of the total UK market, compared to 43 8% the previous year

ITV Studios revenue 15 a KPI reflecting ITV's focus on increasing
total revenues from external customers and internal
commusstons Total studios revenues were down 4%, with
growth in international production offset by a significant
reduction in UK production

Online revenues represent a further key focus for growth
Reflecting its proposed disposal, Friends Reunited revenues
have been excluded On this basis, online revenues — largely
from itvcom and video on demand deals — increased by 33%
to £24 million

Profits, costs and cash !
2009 2008

Cost savings £169m -

ERITA before exceptional items £202m £211m

Adjusted earnings per share 18p 18p

‘Profit to cash’ conversion 177% 75%

Cost savings targets of £155 million were set out for 2009,

as a key element in ITV's response to the economic downturn
ITV met this target delivering £169 million of savings over

the year

Eamings before interest, tax and amortisation {(EBITA)
before exceptional items remains (TV's key profit indicator,
reflecting more accurately the business performance of

the Group In 2 consistent manner and in line with how the
business 1s managed and measured on a day-to-day basis
Despite a decline in Group revenues of £150 million, EBITA
before exceptional items declined by only £9 million to

£202 million, reflecting the impact of significant cost savings
across the business

Adjusted eamings per share represent the adjusted profit

for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders Adjusted
profit 1s defined as profit for the year attnbutable to equity
shareholders, befare exceptional items, impairment of
intangibtes, amortisation of intangible assets acquired through
business cormbinations, adjusted financing costs (see page 38)
and prior period and other tax adjustments Adjusted earpings
per share have remained at 18 pence, with the decine in EBITA
before exceptional items offset by reduced losses from joint
ventures and associates

‘Profit to cash’ conversion has been another key focus in
2009 and has therefore been induded as a KP! ITV 15 seeking
to maximise the proportion of EBITA before exceptional items
converted into a measure of adjusted cash (defined as cash
generated from operations before exceptional itemns less cash
related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment -
see page 39) in 2009, with a significant positive working capital
movement, adjusted cash represented 177% of EBITA before
exceptional items, compared to 75% in 2008 1TV 15 seeking

to keep this ‘profit to cash’ conversion ratio as hugh as

possible — and tn excess of 90% on a rolling three year

basis ~ going forward
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Non-finandal KPls

ITV’s non-financial KPIs provide metncs for assessing the
underlying operating performance of the Group Whilst success
against each of these measures may not Immediately be
reflected in ITV's financial performance, each s ¢ritical

to the Group's delivery of sustainable long-term success

A number of non-financial KPIs reflect ITV's performance

with respect to audiences of its channels and online

Audience and reach

Staff engagement

2009 2008

Staff engagement 65% 68%

2009 2008
ITV channels' share of commeraial mpacts 400% 410%
ITV1 volume of commergal impacts 232bn 236bn
ITV1 brand health 31% 34%

TV channels’ share of commeraal impacts represent

the proportion of all UK viewmngs of 30-second television
commeraals accounted for by ITV channels In 2009, ITY
delivered a 40 0% share of commercial Impacts Towards the
end of the year in particular, 1TV channels delivered a very
strong performance, with farmily SOCI running at 41 8%

over the fourth quarter

ITV1 adult impact volume represents the absolute number
of viewings of commercials generated by TV1 and reflects
ITV's focus on mantaining the reach of the UK's largest
commercial channel In 2009, ITV1 delivered 232 bilhon
adult impacts, down 2% on the previous year

MW brand health reflects the outcome of a regular survey
of viewers' association between ITV1 and the drvers of
television viewing Over and above ITV1's retrospective viewing
performance, brand health allows the long-term strength

of ITV's key channel brand and its resonance with UK viewers
to be tracked In 2009, ITV1’s brand health score was 31% for
the full year compared to 34% in the final quarter of 2008,
when tracking commenced A full year-on-year comparison
will be possible from 2010 and ITV continues to momitor

this KPI dlosely

staff engagement tracks the proportion of respondents

to the annua! survey of all ITV staff agreeing that they have
pride in their work, are proud to work for ITV and speak

highly about ITV's products and services The 2009 survey
showed a slight decrease in staff engagerment year-on-year
from 68% to 65% This was a year of substantial change,
including a wide-ranging redundancy process and other
difficult decisions reflecting the uncertain economic outlook
The senior team 1s currently working on plans to drive a positive
improvernent in engagement with staff as part of the business
planin 2010

Strategy review

ITV is currently undertaking a strategic review As a result,
there may be further revision of ITV's KPI framework durning
20190 to ensure continuing consistency with the Company’s
core strategic objectives
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Having delivered targeted cost savings, generated
more cash, improved the debt maturity profile and
taken steps to reduce the pension risk, ITV has
entered 2010 in better financial health.

2009 was a challenging year for ITV UK television advertising
suffered Its worst year-on-year dechine on record and month
to month trading was volatile and uncertain Aganst this
backdrop, ITV's focus on its core operating perfarmance,

on cash and on costs is evident in the finanaal results

The following review focuses on the adyusted results as, in
managernent’s view, these show more accurately the business
performance of the Group in a consistent manner and reflect
how the business 1s managed and measured on a daily basis

A reconaliation from the statutory to adjusted results is set out
later in thus review

Adjusted profit 1s defined as profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders, before exceptional iterns, impairment of
intangibles, amortisation of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations, adjusted finanang costs and prior
penod and other tax adjustments

The definition of adjusted finanang costs has changed in 2009
to exclude the non-cash imputed pension interest cost and
mark-to-market movernents on swaps and foreign exchange
movements on bonds, and other financing costs (see page 37)
2008 has been restated on the same basis

Total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
7% lower at £1,879 million (2008 £2,029 millton) Despite the
substantial fall in revenues, EBITA before exceptional items
was down only 4% at £202 rmilllon (2008 £211 rmillion) as
£169 miltion of cost savings helped to mitigate the revenue
dechine Most of the key profit measures were held leading
to adjusted earnings per share of 18p (2008 1 8p)

Revenue and EBITA before exceptional itemns by reportable
segment are as follows

2009 2008  Change
£m £m fm
Broadcasting & Online revenue 1,543 1,683 {140)
Broadcasting & Online EBITA* 11 120 {9)
ITV Studigs revenue 335 306 29
ITV Studios EBITA” bl 90 1
Qther revenue 1 40 (39)
Other EBITA” - 1 {1
Total reveriue 1879 2029 {150)
Total EBITA" 202 211 (9)
Adjusted profit 70 71 ()
Adjusted eamings per share 1.8p 18p -

“Before excepbional terns.

Broadcasting & Online

Broadcasting & Online revenues

Broadcasting & Online revenues comprise net advertising
revenue (NAR), sponsorship incame, nteractive revenues
{from premium rate telephony services and red button
services), SDN, online and other revenues

T Th
ITV1 993 1,127 (134)
TV digital channels 245 242 3
CMTV 53 56 (3)
TV plc NAR 1,291 1,425 (134)
Sponsarship 59 58 1
Minorty revenue 47 63 (16)
Media sales, PRS and other income 69 68 1
SDN &dy 33 n
ity com 24 18 6
Fnends Reunited 13 18 (5)
Intra-segment revenue (&) - {4)
Total Broadcasting & Online Revenye 1,543 1,683 (140)
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Picture removed

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director

The television advertising market overall was down 11% 10 2009,
following a decline of 5% in 2008 ITV plc outperformed the
wider market with NAR decline of 9% and, as aresult, increased
its share of UK television advertising to 44 7% (2008 43 8%)
Nonetheless ITV NAR decreased by £134 milhon to £1,291 mullion
(2008 £1,425 milhon) In effect, ITV's outperformance of the
market was worth £26 rmilllon compared to the decline in ITV's
revenues had they performed in hne with the overall market
{see below)

Picture removed

Under the Contract Rights Renewal remedy, advertisers are
entitled to reduce therr advertising share commutment to ITV1
in proportion to the dedline In ITV1's share of commercal
impacts (S0CI) the previous year For all adults, ITV1 S0
dechined by 6% dunng 2008 In the event, across 2009 ITV1 NAR
dechine ran relatively close to overall market decline, down by
12% at £993 million (2008 £1,126 milhion), reflecting a strong
on-screen performance and a successful outcome to the
advertising deal round

ITV's digital channels — ITV2, ITV3, 1TV4 and CITV — increased
their advertising revenues by 1% to £245 miflion (2008

£242 mullion) In the context of significant market dedine,
this represents a strong performance and reflects consistent
growth in digital channel SOCI, which in 2009 reached 95%
(2008 8 8%) GMTV NAR was down 5% GMTV outperformed
the wider telewision advertising market as revenues include a
high proportion of categones, induding retail and food, which
were stronger than the wider market across the year

Sponsorship Income was £59 milhion (2008 £58 millon)
Although closely related to advertising, sponsorship tends
to be cormmitted under longer term contracts which can
mitigate the impact of advertising market movements

in the short-term

Minority revenues comprise ITV Network programme sales to
Channel 3 licences not owned by ITV (STV, UTV and Channel)
Minority revenues were £16 milhon lower than in the prior year
partly reflecting lower schedule costs, but also as a result of
STV's decision to opt out of more of ITV1 drama

Media sales, PRS and other income comprise revenues from
premium rate telephony services, airtime sales on behalf of
third-parties and interactive transactions associated with ITV
and GMTV programming Revenues were held flat desprte the
weak market. whilst the volume of viewer interactions increased,
PRS revenues declined due to an increase in the use of free
online voting

SDN revenues were £44 million (2008 £33 million) The increase
in revenues reflected the launch of a tenth videostream and
new contracts with Discovery and Virgin Media coming into
effect dunng the year

Onhine revenue, which primarily comprises itv com advertising
revenues, revenues from video on demand deals with BT and
Virgin Media and Friends Reunited revenues, was held flat

for the year

Revenues from itv com increased by 33% to £24 million,
reflecting increased wdeo advertising revenue 1tvcom video
views were up by 150% to 215 million over the year, with key
programme drivers including Bntain's Got Talent, The X Factor
and Coronation Street Pnces for itvcomn video advertising
retained a premium to telewsion and other market competitors,
but reduced duning the year as online video Inventory increased

Friends Reunited revenues fell by 28% to £13 rmillion, due In
part to the loss of subscription revenues from the core reurmons
site follawing 1ts move to a fully advertising funded model In
May 2008
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Broadcasting & Online costs
Broadcasting & Online costs break down as follows

2009 2008 Change
£m fm im
™1 797 867 (70)
Regtonal news and non-news 68 112 (44)
Total ITV1 865 579 (114)
ITV2,ITV3, ITV4, CITV 110 112 (2
GMTV 3 34 (3)
Total schedule costs 1,006 1,125 (1%
Other costs 426 438 12
Total costs 1,432 1,563 13n
Schedule costs

Total ITV schedule costs reduced by £119 million in 2009 to
£1,006 rmulion (2008 £1,125 mullion) with ITV exceeding its
stated savings targets of £105 million across network and
regional programming

ITV1 schedule costs declined by £70 million Digital channels
and GMTV schedule costs reduced by £5 rmilkon in total In
February 2009, ITV launched the new regional service moving
from 17 separate 6 00 pm regional news half hours to mine
programmes As a result of this [TV delivered £44 rmallion

of savings

Other Broadcasting & Online costs

Other Broadcasting & Online costs of £426 million (2008

£438 million) iInclude industry and regulatory costs, as well as
staff and overhead costs The year-on-year decine 1s from cost
savings delivered as part of the efficiency review and lower
hcence fees of £22 million (2008 £30 million) Sorme of these
savings were offset by mncreased investment in transmission,
HD and cther development nvestment

Broadcasting & Online EBITA before exceptional items
Broadcasting & Onfine EBITA before exceptional iterns for
2009 was £9 mullion lower at £111 mullion (2008 £120 muflion),
with the decline in NAR offset by the delivery of targeted
efficiency savings, Increased SDN profits and the closure

of underperforrming online businesses

TV Studios
TV Studios revenues

2009 2008 Change

£m im m

UK production 58 68 (10}
Resources 13 17 (&)
International production 138 98 40
Distribution and exploitation 126 123 3
Total external revenue 335 306 29
Onginal supply to ITV 262 316 (54)
Total revenue 597 622 (25)

ITV Studios revenue iIncludes onginal productions for the UK
and international markets, the distrbution and explortation
of internally generated and acquired nights, and studios
and facilities revenue

Total external sales were £335 mullion (2008 £306 muilion)
Including onginal supply to TV, total revenues were
£597 milhon (2008 £622 million)

Onginal UK producticn for other broadcasters was £58 mullion
(2008 £68 mullion), as other UK broadcasters reduced
commissioning budgets and changed genre rmix

International production revenues increased by 41% to

£138 million (2008 £98 mifion} Growth was particularly strong
in the US and Swedish production businesses, reflecting local
versions of I'm A Celebrity for the US, Sweden and india
Commusstoning cycles suggest that these productions are
unlikely to return in these terntones in 2010, but they remain
active prospects for 2011

Distnbution and explortation sales were £126 mllion (2008
£123 million), including a significant co-praduction deal for
The Pnsoner for AMC DVD sales in the UK were relatively
robust but international sales declined year-on-year

External revenues benefited from a favourable £16 million
foreign exchange movement across interational production
and a further £7 mullion positive maoverment n distiibution
and explotation

Programming made by ITV Studios for ITV channels 1s not
induded in reported ITV plc consolidated revenue as it represents
aninternal programming cost of sale In 2009 ternal
programming amounted to £262 mithon of ITV network
programme spend (2008 £316 million) As [TV responded

to the advertising downturn by reducing its schedule costs,
there was a loss of, or reduction in, episodes for a number

of established TV commissions, nduding Heartbeat, Lewis
and The Roya! These losses were only partially offset

by new commsssions, such as Piers Morgan’s Life Stories
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ITV Studios EBITA before exceptional items

{TV Studios EBITA before exceptional iterns was £91 mithon
(2008 £90 millon) Underlying margins have been impacted
by the change in programme mix and reduced ITV supply, and
by pricing pressures in production and distribution worldwide
However, these pressures have been offset by delivery of
sigrificant targeted cost savings and a trading forergn
exchange gain of £3 milkon In addition, 2 £2 mithon increase
In developrment generated a range of options, pilots, and new
business streams that are live prospects in 2010 and beyond

Operating exceptional items
2009 2008
£m £m
Reorganisation and restructuring (40) (40)
PRS - (6)
Pension scheme changes 110 -
Onerous contract provision (1) (50)
Onerous property provision (14) -
Kangaroe dosure costs (2) {1
Total operating exceptional items 53 (87}

Net operating exceptional income in the year was £53 miflion
(2008 cost of £97 rmulhon)

These include £40 rmithon of reorgarisation and restructunng
costs assoaated with the previously announced efficiency
savings programmes

Pension scheme changes have taken place following consultation
with the scheme members to implerment a cap on increases

to pensionable salary levels for active members and to offer
retired members the option of altenng the structure of ther
pension by receving an uplift now in return for gving up

nghts to future annual Increases Both of these changes will
reduce the future costs and nisks of operating the pension
schemes and have resulted tn a gain of £110 muilion to the
Income statement.

The onerous property provision 1n 2009 of £14 million relates
to the vacation of large parts of the Grayy’s Inn Road office,
following headcount reductions and consolidation of ITV's
London property into the Southbank

STV Group plc (STV)

Over the course of 2009, ITV and STV have becorne invelved in
asenies of legal disputes with pleadings filed by each side

Based on its view of these matters, ITV believes that it s owed
approximately £20 milon net under these claims 1TV 1s
confident in the basis of its daims, supported by legal opimion
and advice, and intends to pursue resolutton of these issues 1o
a satisfactory outcome Therefore no provision has been made
In reaching this view [TV notes that STV has recently completed
a re-financing of its business In not providing against the
recoverability of these balances, ITV is relying on its expectation
that STV will file unqualified financial statements prepared

on a going concern basis In due course

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Total Intangible assets at 31 December 2009 are £1,030 milion
(2008 £1,140 milion), being goadwll of £711 million (2008

£749 mithon) and acquired and internally developed intangible
assets of £319 milion (2008 £391 million) The net movement
i goodwill of £38 million has resulted from the transfer of

£34 million to assets held for sale regarding Friends Reunited
and £4 milhon in relation to the disposal of Enable Media Limited

No impairment charge for goodwill has been recognised in
2009 (2008 £2,695 million including £57 millior as required by
1AS 12) The total amortisation charge for the year on acquired
and internally developed intangible assets s £59 rrullion

(2008 £66 milhon)

Net financing costs
2009 2008
£m fm
Finanaing costs directly attrbutable to bonds (74) (99)
Cash-related net financing income 1 24
Cash-related financing costs (73) {75)
Amortisation of borids (6) (2)
Adjusted finanang costs (79) (77)
Mark-to-Market on swaps and foreign exchange (7) 3
Imputed pension interest (15) 16
Other finanaing incorme/{costs) 10 (30)
Net finanang costs 91) (60)

Reparted net finanang casts are £91 mullion (2008 £60 million)
Adjusted finanang costs on the new defirution are £79 million
(2008 £77 rmulhon)
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Cash-related financing costs directly attnbutable to bonds

of £74 million (2008 £99 million) have reduced in the year due
to the changes made to the Group’s debt profile and lower
interest rates Other net mcome 1s lower In 2009 due to lower
interest rates In 2009, cash on deposit was earming an average
return of less than 1%, compared to 5% across 2008 Non-cash
amortisation principally relates to the 2014 Eurobond, 2015
Bond tap and 2016 Convertible Bond, each of which will accrete
up to par value over the Iife of the bond

The difference between the reported net financang costs and
adjusted financing costs largely relates to mark-to-market

on swaps, foreign exchange on bonds, the imputed penston
interest and other financing costs The £7 million charge
(2008 £31 millon gain) relating to mark-to-market on swaps
and foreign exchange on bends, 15 as a result of increases in
the implied interest rates at the end of 2009, compared to
the end of 2008

The 2009 charge for non-cash imputed penston Interest was
£15 milhlon, a movernent of £31 million compared to 2008
This 1s as a result of a combination of a reduction in the
expected return on pension assets and an increase in the
expected interest cost on habilities

Other finanang costs indlude the amortised cost adjustrment of
£10 milhon, representing the unwind of part of the £30 millien
charge taken in 2008, when decline in ITV's credit rating to sub
Investment grade resulted n & step-up in the coupen rate of
some of ITV's bonds These costs alse include the gans and
losses from bond buy-backs duning the year and the bond
exchange in June, and the effective interest on the unwind

of the discount ¢n the sparts provision

Results of joint ventures and associates

The total value of the Group’s Investments in joint ventures
and associates at 31 December 2009 1s £5 million (2008

£66 milllon) The decline in the value pnmanly relates to the
transfer of Screenwision US (£47 million} to assets held for
sale following the decision to actively market the investment.
Losses of joint ventures and associates recognised in the
income statement in the year are £7 million (2008 loss of
£15 milhon) The losses tn 2009 largely related to Screenvision
US, Freesat and ITN

Non-operating exceptional items

Loss on sale and impatment of non-current assets

The charge of £22 millon (2008 £17 million) results from
the impairment of non-current assets, pnmarly leasehold
improvements, relating to the regional news restructure
and the partial vacation of the Gray's Inn Road butlding

Loss on sale, net of impairment, of subsidianes

and investments

There 15 a £51 rmillion net Tess on the sale and impairment
of subsidiaries and investments for the year (2008 gain

of £6 mullion), which largely relates to the impairment of
Friends Reurited (£32 mithon), but also impairments to the
Group's iInvestment I1n 1ts associate ITN, and Carlton Screen
Advertising

Tax

The total tax credit of £69 mullion (2008 credit of £178 million}
arises as a result of the resolution of pnor penods’ tax habilities,
principally in the US

The adjusted rate of tax on adjusted profits 15 32% as
shown below

2009
£m
Profit before tax as reported 25
Operating exceptional iterns (net) (53)
Amortisation and impaimment of intangible assets* 51
Non-operating exceptional items 73
Adjustments to net financing costs 12
Adjusted profit before tax 108
2009
£m
Tax credit as reported 69
Net charge for exceptional and other items 21
Credit In respect of amortisation and impairment
of intangible assets* (14)
Credit in respect of adjustments to net finanang costs (3)
Credit in respect of prior penod items (82)
Other tax adjustments (26)
Adusted tax charge {35)
Adjusted rate of tax 32%

*Arnortisabon of intangible assets ansing firam business combmations.
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Eamings per share

Basic earmings per share are 2 3 pence (2008 loss per share of
659 pence) Adjusted earnings per share (as defined earlier)
are 18 pence (2008 18 pence)

Recondliation between reported and adjusted eamings

Reported Adjustments  Adjusted
im £m £m

EBITA pre exceptionals 202 - 202
Exceptional items (20) 20 -
Arnortisation and impairment (59 51 {8)
Financing osts (97) 12 9
JVs and associates {7) - 6]
Profit before tax 25 83 108
Tax 69 (104} (35)
Profit after tax 94 (21) 73
Non-controlling interests (3) - (3)
Eamings 91 - 70
Number of shares 3882 3,882
Earnings per share 23p 18p

The £20 mithon exceptional items are the operating exceptional
profit of £53 million less £22 mullion loss on sale and iImpairment
of non-current assets and less £51 million of loss on sale, net

of impairment, of subsidianes and investments as described
earhier i this review

The tax and financing costs secttons of this review explain
the adjustments to these balances

Dividend

At the 2009 intenm results the Board deaided that, due to the
uncertain economic context and its impact on the UK television
advertising market, it was prudent to not declare an intenm
divdend The trading cutlook remains uncertain and ITV still
has significant debt and pension obligations As a result, the
Board 15 not proposing the payment of a final dvidend

The total dvidend for the year 15 therefore nil pence per
share (2008 0675 pence per share)

Assets and disposal groups held for sale

During the year the Group confirmed that it was actively
marketing for sale its 100% owned subsidiary, Friends Reunited,
the joint ventures, Screenviston US and Screenwvision Europe,
and ITV properties in Bedford, Birrmungham and Bristol

Cash flow, working capital management
and net debt

Cash flow and working capital management

Cash and warking caprtal management has been a key focus
tn 2009 Although EBITA before exceptional items were broadly
flat, ITV's adjusted cash flow 15 £200 mullion more than the
previous year The key to this was a sigrificant improvement
in working capital where there was an inflow of £121 milhon
(2008 outflow of £67 million) The rajonty of the working
capital improvement came through reduced inventory levels
for pragramme and distribution rnights, as a result of managing
commitments and just-in-time commissioning The ‘profit to
cash’ ratio increased substantially from 75% in 2008 to 177%

N 2009 Going forward, it 15 expected that the ‘profit to cashy’
ratio on a rolling three-year basis will be at least 90%

2009 2008
£m £m

EBITA before exceptional tems (‘profit’) 202 21
Decrease/(increase) in programme rights
and other inventory and distnbution nghts 125 {82)
Decrease/(increase} in recevables 1 {(34)
(Decrease)inaease in payables {15) 49
Working capital movement 121 {67}
Depregation 38 36
Share-based compensation 11 10
Cash generated from operations* 372 150
Acquisiion of property, plant and equipment
(‘capex) (14) (32)
Adjusted cash flow 358 158
‘Profit to cash’ ratio 177% 75%

“Before excepbional items.
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Net debt

Net debt has fallen by £118 mullion to £612 milion with
£358 mullion of adjusted cash flow, ansing from the focus en
working capital management, which has more than offset
some significant one off cash payments required in 2009

£m
Net debt at 31 December 2008 (730)
Adjusted cash flow 358
Net interest pad (76)
Exceptional cash (63)
Taxation net receipts il
Equity divdends pad (25)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 73)
Defined benefit pension deficit funding 31
Other (13)
Net debt at 31 Decernber 2009 (612)

The man one of f cash outflows were £63 millton of cash costs
in relation ta the cost of change and efficrency review, net tax
receipts of £41 mullion reflecting taxation repayrments for prior
pertods which more than offset pagments made for the
current period, equity dividends of £25 million relating to the
2008 intenm dwidend, £50 mithon final payment due under
the Friends Reunited earn out, and £23 million for acquinng
the 25% of GMTV not already owned

Liquidity risk and going concermn

The sections on pages &0, 41 and 42 regarding hquidity risk
and going concern form part of the audited accounts

See section 11 - Basis of preparation in Accounting pohices
The Group’s finandial nsk factors are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements

The Group has a high degree of operational geanng and is
exposed to the economic cycle It 1s also highty requlated, in
particular in respect of television advertising sales it competes
for advertising revenues, not only with other commercal
television channels, but also with other forms of display
advertising, in particular online These factors combined with
technological change, In particular the migration to digital
television, have resulted in declining profitabibty since 2005
and consequent downward pressure on ITV's credit rating

tn the second half of 2008, ITV's credit ratings were lowered
from investrent grade (BBB-/Baa3) to sub investment grade
(BB+/Ba1) as the economy weakened and television advertising
revenues declined

With the decline in telewision advertising revenues and the
wider economic uncertainty, ITV faced sigrificant funding

nsk at the start of 2009 Gven the operational geanng of the
business, ITV was at risk of further credit-rating downgrades
and of breaching financial covenants under the Group's
undrawn £450 million syndicated bank faality In the context
of wider credit market conditions, ITV could not take for
granted that it could obtain finance from the capital markets,
nor could it expect 1ts banks to relax the financial covenants in
the bank faciity Whilst ITV had sufficient cash to repay the
£250 mullion bond in March 2009, 1t needed to strengthen its
hquidity position to ensure that it could caver the repayment
of the €500 mithon 2011 bond and thus allow the Group scope
to restructure and recover

Funding

Alongside the cost saving programme and concerted focus

on working capital managerment, ITV also ran a number of
Intiatives dunng 2009 to strengthen kquidity, extend its debt
matunty profile and improve the Group’s financial ratios
These comprised raising further covenant-free finance
without going to the public markets, undertaking a tender and
exchange offer and various bond buy-backs The table below
sets out these initiatives and further detatls can be found In
note 22

Transaction date £m
2019 New hilateral facility February 2009 50
2009 Eurcbond repaid March 2009 (250)
2013 Loan drawdown march 2009 125
2015 Bond tap May 2009 58
2011 Bond tender and exchange June 2009 (69)
2013 Loan repayment Qctober 2009 {75)
2016 Convertible bonds Novernber 2009 132
2011 Bonds partially repaid Nov/Dec 2009 (102)

ITV also retired its £450 million revolving credit faality dunng
the year

Since the year end ITV has bought back €27 milion of the 2011
bands and £42 million of 2015 bonds
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As a result of these initiatives, ITV's scheduled five year debt ITV 15 financed using debt instruments with a range of 3
repayments {post swaps) were reduced from £695 miflion maturities ITV's borrowings at 31 Decernber 2009 (net of 3
at the start of 2009 to £324 million at the year end currency hedges and secured gilts) are repayable as follows 3
Amount repayable fm Matunty <

€118 million Eurgbond* 38 October 2011

£110 milhen Eurobond 110 March 2013
£50 milion bank loan 50 May 2013 =
€188 million Eurobond* 126 June 2014 2
£425 million Eurobond 425 October 2015 3
£135 million Convertible bond 135  November 2016 2

£250 mithon Evrobond 250 January 2017

£200 mullion bank loan** 62 March 2019

Graph removed Finance leases 73 Varous

Total repayable 1,269

* Net of Cross Currency Swaps.
* Net of £138 million (nominal) Gilts secured against the loan

At the balance sheet date at 31 Decernber 2009 ITV had
£582 million of cash and cash equivalents This figure exdudes
£4 milion of cash held within the disposal group but indudes
£96 million of cash equivalents whose use 15 restricted to
finance lease commitments and unfunded pension promises
Cash and cash equivatents also include £50 milhon held
principally in overseas and part owned subsidianies, which 1s
therefore not readily accessible At the reporting date [TV had
a £75 million undrawn, covenant free, bilateral bank faclity
secured on advertising recenvables available to May 2013
There are no finarcial covenants on any of ITV's debt
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Going concern

As a result of the funding activities undertaken and the
improvements in working capstal, the Group has reduced 1ts
current level of net debt and has also improved both its
short-term and mediuvm-term liquidity position The Group
continues to review forecasts of the television advertising
market to determine the impact on ITV's hquidity position
At 31 December 2009, while the television market continues
to present challenges to the Group’s lquidity, ITV has taken
decisive actions to mitigate this impact and, dunng 2010, wall
continue to evaluate opportumities to push out matunty and
create further headroom The Group's forecasts and projections,
taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance, show that the Group should be able to operate
within the level of its current financing ITV's forecasts

have been prepared on a more cautious basis than external
rmarket expectations

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going concern
basis in prepaning its consolidated financral staternents

Treasury operations and policies

A centrat department in London manages the Croup’s treasury
operations, following policies and procedures laid down by the
Board The most significant treasury exposures faced by ITV
are raising finance, managing interest rate and currency
positions and investing surplus cash in high quality assets
Treasury policies have been approved by the Board for
managing each of these exposures including levels of authority
on the type and use of financial instruments Transactions

are only undertaken If they relate to underlying exposures

The treasury department reports regularly to the Audit
Commuttee and treasury operations are subject to perodic
reviews Despite not having a lending facility ITV has
established and retains strong relationships with a number

of banks to ensure a balanced spread of nisk and to faclitate
future funding requirements

Set out below are ITV's princtpal treasury polaes

- Finanang [TV's financing policy 1s to fund stself long-term
using debt instruments with a range of maturities LS
substantially funded from the UK and European capital
markets and has a bilateral bank facility,

- Interest rate management: the Group’s nterest rate policy
Is to have between 50% and 70% of its total indebtedness
at fixed rates over the mediwum term in order to provide a
balance between certainty of cost and benefit from low
floating rates ITV uses interest rate swaps and options in
arder to achieve the desired mix between fixed and floating
rates The funding and hquidity activities undertaken by
ITV in 2009 resulted in the issuance of fixed rate debt and
the retirement of a portion of floating rate debt ITV has
apphed the policy to total gross indebtedness thereby
excluding cash which is currently treated as a deduction
frorn floating rate debt and on which low levels of interest
are being achieved,

- Currency management: where currency exposures exist,
the Group's foreign exchange policy ts to hedge foreign
currency denorminated costs at the time of commitment
and to hedge a proportion of fareign currency denominated
revenues on a rolking 12-month basis The policies sigrificantly
reduce the Group's earnings and batance sheet exposures
to changes in exchange rates,

- Investment in cash: ITV operates stnct investment guidelines
with respect to surplus cash and the emphasis is on
preservation of capital Counterparty imits for cash deposits
are largely based upen long-term ratings published by the
major credit rating agencies and perceived state support
Under the guidelines ITV can deposit up to £100 mifhon
for a perod of three to six months with remaining deposits
having a maturity of up to three rmonths

Pensions

Reduang pension nsk and uncertainty

As part of the strategy to manage the nsks associated with the
pension schemes, the Group implemented a programme of
measures to manage the cost of providing the defined benefit
arrangements and to provide greater securrty for the benefits
that members have built up These Initiatives form part of a
long-term strateqy to manage the group pension habilities

and reduce the prinapal risks and uncertainties
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The Group offered existing pensioners the opportunity to uphft
part of therr pension, in return gmving up any nights to future
annual Increases on this part of therr pension This resulted in
a past service penston credit of £38 millon The Group also
launched an offer to active members to redesign therr pension
benefits Members were offered a choice of capping any
increases to ther pensicnable pay to a maximum of 1% per
year or opting out of the defined benefit sections of the
scheme to join the defined contribution section This resulted
in & curtalment gain of £72 mullion These gains totalling

£110 milion are disclosed as exceptional operating incorme
and have offset the deficit to an equal extent The changes
rmade will reduce the future costs and risks of operating the
pension schermes

Since the year end we have also announced the launch of
an enhanced transfer programme aimed at the deferred
pensioner population, which if successful will further reduce
the pension funding habilities

IAS 19

The Group’s defined contribution schermes gave rise to an
operating charge m 2009 of £4 million (2008 £4 milion)

The aggregate I1AS 19 defitit on defined benefit schemes

at 31 Decemnber 2009 was £436 mullion (2008 £178 rmllion)
This increase was primarily driven by a decrease in the discount
rate applied to habilities and an increase in the expected rate
of inflation partially offset by hugher than expected returns

on scheme assets and the benefits from the actions taken

In the year as set out above

Graph removed

Actuanal valuations and defiat funding

Full actuarial valuations are camed out every three years The
latest completed actuanal vatuations of Sections B and C of the
main defined benefit scheme were carned out as at 1 January
2007 and, on the bases adopted by the trustees, both were

in surplus with a combined surplus of £23 million or 5% of the
lkabihities in those sections As a result of these surpiuses no
deficit funding payments are currently being paid into these
sections Actuarnal valuations of Sections B and C are being
undertaken as at 1 January 2010

An actuanal valuation of Section A of the man defined benefit
schemne was carned out as at 1 January 2008 and, on the bases
adopted by the trustees, that section was in defiat to an
amount of £190 million or 9% of the habilities in that section
This deficit 1s being addressed by a recovery plan agreed with
the trustees, under which the Company continues to pay

£30 millhion in each of the five calendar years to 2013 The next
valuation of Section A s due at 1 fanuary 2011

Trustees’ investment strategy

The trustees continue to review the investment strateqgy for
the main defined benefit pension scheme The asset allocation
has changed dunng 2009 and holdings of equities have been
moved to other return seeking assets At 31 December 2009,
47% of the assets of the defined benefit pension schermes were
mvested in return seeking assets and 53% N bonds and other
interest-bearing investments The trustees also use denvative
instruments to hedge partial exposures to movermnents I
interest rates, inflation and foreign exchange rates

International Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU The parent company finanaal
staternents continue to be reported under UK GAAP They have
been included in this report after the results of the
consolidated group

Signature removed
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Archie Norman

Charman

Picture removed

Mike Clasper CBE

Senior Independent Director

Appointment to the Board: 1 January 2010
Age 55 (1 May 1954)
Commuttee membership Audit, Nermination (Chairman), Remuneration

External appointments

~ Adwviser to Wesfarmers Limited (2009)

- Deputy Chairman of Coles Group (2007)

- Chairman of H5S Hire Senvices Group (2007)

- Founder, Aungo Management Partners LLP (2006)

~ Senior Adwiser to Lazard (2003)

= Trustee of Cystic Fibrosis Trust (2009)

— Governgr, National Institute of Economic and Social Research (1997)

Previous expenence

- Chairman of Energis (2002-2005)

- Member of Parliament {1997-2005) Chief Executive and Deputy Chairman
of the Conservative Party (1998-1999), Shadow Minister for Europe (1999-
2000}, Shadow Secretary of State for Department of Emaronment, Transport
and the Regions (2000-2001), Founder, Policy Exchange (2001)

- Chief Executive (1991-1996) and Chairrman (1996~1999) of ASDA Group plc

~ Finance Director of Kingfisher plc (1986-1991}

- Chairman of Chartwell Land pic (1987-1991)

- Non-executive director of Bnush Rail {1992-1994), Railtrack plc (1994-20003,
and Geest plc (1988~1991)

- Partner, McKinsey and Co (1976-1986)

Qualfications MA, MBA

Picture removed

Andy Haste

Non-executive director

to the Board 3 January 2006

Appountment
Age: 56 (21 Apnl 1953)
Commuttee membership: Audit, Norminatien, Remuneration

External appointments.

— Chairman of Which? Ltd (2008}

- Chairman of HM Revenue & Customs (2008)
- Charrman of West London Consortium (2006)

Previous experience

— Member of the Investor Board of EM! Group (2007-2008)

- Operational Managing Directar of Terra Firma (2008}

- Member of the National Employment Panel (2006-2008)

— Founder member, Corporate Leaders Group on Cimate Change

- Chief Executive (2003-2006) and Deputy Ghief Executive (2001-2003) of BAA plc
- President of Global Home Care, Procter & Gamble (1999-2001)

Qualifications. MA

Picture removed

Rupert Howell
Managing Director,

ITV Brand and Commeraal

Appointment to the Board: 11 August 2008
Age 48(1 January 1962)
Committee membership Normination, Remuneration

Externat appointiments:
Growup Chief Executive of RSA Insurance Group plc (2003)

Previous expertence’

- Chief Executive of AXA Sun Ufe plc (1999-2003)

~ Director of AXA UK pic (Iife and pensions) {1999-2003)

- President and CEQ, GE Capital Global Consumer Finance UX, Western Europe
and Eastern Europe (1998-1599)

- CEQ of GE Capital Clobal Consumer Finance UK {1996-1998)

- President of National Westminster Bank US Consumer Credit Business
{1995-1996), Senior Vice-President and Head of US Consumer Loan
Products Dmsion (1992-1995)

The particulars above relate to directors in office at the date of this report.
For a full list of directors who served dunng the year, please see page 48.
Details of their interests in shares and share schemnes are set out in the
Remuneration report.

to the Board 28 February 2008, joined the Groupin 2007
Age 53 {6 February 1957}
Commmittee membership: General Purpose

External appointments.
- Director of the Advertising Association (2007}
- Trustee, The Media Trust (2008)

Previous

— President, EMEA and Chatrman, UK and Ireland Group (2003-2007), Regional
Director, EMEA (2006-2007) of McCann Erckson UK Group Lirnited

- President of the European Association of Communications Agencies
(2006-2007)

- Chief Executive of Chime Communications ple (1957-2002)

- Founder, Howell Henry Chaldecott Lury (1987-1997)

- Director of the Institute of Practiioners 1n Advertising (1992-2000),
President (2000-2001)

Qualifications: B5c Management Saiences, FIPA
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Picture removed

John Cresswell
Intenm Chief Exectriive

Picture removed

lan Gnffiths

Group Finance Director

Appointmment to the Board- 16 January 2006, joined the Group in 2000
Age 48(2May 1961)
Commuttee membership’ General Purpose

Previous experience

— Finance Director (2006—2008), Intenim Chief Executive (2006-2007)
and Chief Operating Officer (2005-2006) of ITV pic

- Chief Operating Officer of Granada Content (2004~2005)

— Non-executive director of The Liverpeol Football Club and Athletic
Grounds plc (2003-2007)

- Chuef Operating Officer and Finance Director (2001-2004) and Director
of Operations (2000-2001) of Granada Content

= Chief Operating Officer (1998-2000) and Finance Director (1996-1998)
of United Broadcasting and Entertainment Lirmited

—Finance Director of Mendian Broadcasting Linmited {1993-1995)

Qualifications BSc, ACA

Picture removed

John Ormerod
Non-executive director

Appointment to the Board 9 September 2008
Age’ 43 (26 Septermber 1966}
Committee membership General Purpose

Previous expenence

- Group Finance Duector of Emap plc (2005-2008)

- Senuor finance roles held within Emap ple including Director of Financial
Control (2000-2005) and Head of Finance at Emap Busiress
Communtcations (1935-2000)

- Manager in audit and corporate finance, Emst & Young (1988-1994)

Qualifications: MA, ACA

Picture removed

Baroness Usha Prashar CBE

Non-executive director

Appointrment to the Board: 18 January 2008
Age 61 (9 February 1949)
Committee membership Audit {Chairman), Normination, Remuneration

External appointments:

- Deputy Charman and Charman of audit committee of Tribal Group plc (2009)

- Nor-executive director and Charmnan of audit commttee of
Computacenter plk (2007) and Gemalto NV (2006)

— Norrexgcutive director and Chamman of Merfin Caurms Services Holdings
Lrmuted (2007}

- Tnustee of The Design Museumn (2006)

- Seniar Independent Director and Chairman of audit committee of Misus plc
{2005)

Pravious experience:

- Non-executve director of Negative Equity Protection Holdings Limited
(2007-2009), Millen Group Lirnited (2007-2009%) and BMS Associates Limited
(2004~2008)

— Member of audit and retail nsk control committees of HBOS plc (2004-2008)

- Trustee of The Roundhouse Trust (2003-2008)

- Charman of Walbrook Group (2004-2007)

- Chairman of aydit commuttee of Transport for London (2004—2006)

- Practice senior partner, London, Deloitte & Touche (2002-2004)

— Regional managing partner, UK and Irefand and senior partner, UK,

Arthur Andersen (2001-2002)

Qualifications. MA, FCA

to the Board" 7 February 2005
Age 61(29 June 1948)
Committee membership Nomination, Remuneration (Charman)

External appomtments.
—Commttee Member of the Irag Inquiry (2009)
—Chairman of the Judiaal Appointrments Commission (2005)

Previous expenence

~Norrexecutive drector of the Cabinet Office (2006-2009)

—Chairman of the Royal Commonwealth Sooety (2002-2008)

— Chancellor of De Montfort University (1996—2006)

—First Col Service Commissioner (2000-2005)

- Non-executive director of Unite Group plc (2001-2004) and
Channel Four Television Corporation (1992-1999)

- Chairman of the National Literacy Trust {2000-2005}

- Member of the BBC Educational Broadcastng Council (1987-1988),
the Arts Counal of Great Britain (1954-1997) and the Counal Royal
Helloway College London (1992-1997)

- Trustee of BBC World Semice Trust (2002-2005)

- Chairman of the Parole Board for England and Wales (1997-2000)

Qualifications: BA, Diplorna in Social Adrministration
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ITV plc 15 subject to the requirements of the Combined Code on
Corporate Govemnance adopted by the Financial Reporting Councl (the
Code) and seeks to comply with the voting guidelines of major
Institutional investors where approprate This repart descnbes how the
Company has applied the main principles set out in section 1 of the
Code and s spiit Into the following five sections:

- The Board,

Conflicts of nterest,

Board effectiveness,

Relations with shareholders, and
How the Board operates.

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Code with the following exceptions

— Michael Grade was Executive Chairman until 31 Decernber 2009,
contrary to Code provision A2 Fallowing the appointment of
Archie Norman as non-executive Chairman and John Cresswell
as Intenm Chief Executive with effect from 1 January 2010,
the Company now complies with this provision

— Archie Norman was appomnted a member of the Audit Committee
on 2 February 2010 This s to enable the Committee to remain
quorate until Andy Haste 1s able to take up membership later in
the year At this point Archie Norman will resign as a Committee
member ensuning comphance with Code provision C 31

The Board

Composrtion and appomntments
The composition of the Board during 2009 1s set out in the table on
page 48

In Apnl 2009 Michael Grade announced his intention to step down
as Executive Chairmnan at the end of the year As a result, the Board
commenced a search for a non-executive Chairman and a Chief
Executive In Novernber 2009 the Board announced that Archie Norman
would take up the role of non-executive Chairman on 1 January 2010

0n 28 January 2010, the Board made a further announcernent that
it had appointed Adam Crozier as the new Chief Executive, and that he
would take up the role later in the year Until this time, John Cresswell
will act as Intenm Chief Executive Sir George Russell, Sir James Crosby,
Heather Killen and Agnés Touraine stepped down from the Board with
effect from 31 December 2009

The Board cumrently consists of three executive directors and five
non-executive directors. Biographical detals for each of the directors are
set out on pages 44 and 45

Roles

A surnmary of the roles of each of the Chairman, the Chief Executive
and the Senior Independent Director are shown in the table on the nght.
Full job descriptions have been agreed by the Board

Tenure

All directors are required by the Company’s Articles of Association to
be elected by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting (AGM)
following therr appeintmment by the Board Subsequently, all directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders at least every three years.
Archie Norman, who has a contract of service with the Company,

will be seeking election at the AGM on 7 May 2010

Qutside appointments

With the approval of the Board, executive directors may accept extemal
appontrnents as non-executive directors of ather companies and retain
any related fees paid to them Details of fees receved by executive
directors dunng 2009 can be found in the Remuneration report

Corporate Governance

Roke Descrphon
Chairman Archie Normian's pnncipal responsibilities are to

~ lead the Board, ensuning that it is effective in
setting and implementing the Group's direction
and strategy, and

- act as the Company's leading representative for
all key sharehoiders.

The Board 1s satisfied that his other professional
commitments do not interfere with the performance
of his duties for the Company

John Cresswell, as Intenm Chief Executive, has
responsibility for the performance of the Company's
businesses, as dictated by the overall strategy agreed
by the Board

Mike Clasper's principal responsibilities are to

— act as Chaman of the Board when the Chairman
15 conflicted,

~ act as a conduit to the Board for the
communication of shareholder concerns when
other channels are inappropriate, and

— ensure that the Chairman is provided with
effective performance feedback

Chief Executive

Senior
Independent
Director

Non-executive directors
The Board considers each of its current non-executive directors to be
independent in both character and judgernent. They constructvely
challenge and help develop proposals on strategy, and bring strong,
independent judgement, knowledge and experience to the Board's
deliberations.

The Board also considers that the non-executive directars are of
sufficent calibre and number that their views carry significant weight
in the Board's decision making

Tenms of engagement: non-executive drectors all have a contract of
service, and are appointed for an intial peniod of three years. At the third
annwersany of appointment the director will discuss with the Board
whether it \s appropnate for a further term to be served, subject to the
Board succession planning framework which prowdes that any further
term may be adjusted in length should that be in the interests of an
orderly succession of non-executive directors to the Board There-
appaintment of directors who have served for more than nine years wil
be subject to annual review

Mike Clasper completed three years as a non-executive director in
January 2009 It was agreed that he should serve a further term subject
to the Board succession planming framework.

Time commitment: non-executive directors are expected to commit
18 to 20 days per annum. This Includes attendance at Board meetings,
Board commuttee meetings, the AGM, and an annual strategy away
day The Board 1s satisfied that each of the nen-executive directors
comrnits suffiaent time to the business of the Company

Professional advice and Board support

Drrectors are gven access to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense when the directors deemn it necessary in order for
them to carmy out ther responsibilities. The directors also have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who acts as
secretany to the Board, and Group Secretanat who ensure that board
processes and corporate govermnance praciices are followed.

tnsurance and indemnities

The Company maintans liability insurance for its drectors and officers
with a cover imit of £75 million which 15 renewed on an annual basis.
The Company has also entered nto deeds of ndernnrty with s
drectors.
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Conflicts of interest

The Board 1s authonsed to approve conflicts. It has delegated the
authonsatron of conflicts to the Nomination Committee and adopted
a confiicts of interest policy.

The policy outiines how conflicts will be dealt with and the process
for directors to follow when notifyng the Company of an actual or
potential conflict. When deading whether to authonse a conflict or
potential conflict of interest, only those that have no interest in the
matter under consideration will be able to take the relevant decision
In addition, the Nomination Committee will be able to impaose
lirits or condlitions when gming authorisation where approprate

The Board has considered in detail the current external
appointments of the directors which may gve nse to a situational
conflict and has authornsed potential conflicts where appropnate
This authonsation can be reviewed at any time but will always be
subject to annual review The Board 1s confident that these procedures
operate effectively

Board effectiveness

Performance evaluation
The Board has established a formal process for the annual evaluation of
the performance of the Board, its commuttees, and indvidual directors
(wrth particular attention given to those who are due for reelection) in
accordance with the requirements of the Code The directors are made
aware on appointment that their performance will be subject toan
annual evaluation and that a director would not be put up for re-election
at an AGM unless the Chairman has decided that they continue to
perform effectively and show commitment to the role

Sorme of the actions taken during the year resulting from the 2008
evaluation include introducing rmore discussion on the corporate doman
including the competrtive and regulatory environment, giving more
attention to stakeholder pnorities and shareholder views, and reviewing
the size and composrtion of the Board

An intemat evaluation of the effectiveness of the indvidual directors
of the Board and rts committees was camed out in 2009, led by the
Senwor independent Director The evaluation process included a
confidential wntten questionnaire with questions covering a range of
1ssues such as board structure, board processes, board roles and
responsibilities, the Board's relationship with management, board
agendas, committee processes, individual effectiveness, traning and
continuing professional development.

The resuits from the evaluation process were collated and passed 1o
the Board for consideration The review made the following suggestions,
amongst others, for enhanced effectiveness.

- tosmplify board reporting, ensuring that non-artical items are
kept to a minimum allowing the Board to focus on key strategic and
operational 1ssues, and

- tofocws on succession planning and leadership development.

The Board will review the recommendations and adopt new processes
and procedures dunng the year as appropriate

Induction and continuing professional development

The Cornpany has a poliy and programme for induction and
continuing professional development. On appontment, each director
takes part in a comprehensive induction programme where they

- recewve information about the Group in the form of presentations
by executives from all parts of the business and on the reguiatory
environment,

- meet representatves of the Company's key adwisers,

= recerve information about the role of the Board and the matters
reserved for its decision, the terms of reference and membership of
board committees and the powess delegated to those committees;

- receve information about the Company’s corporate govemance
practices and procedures and the latest finanaal information about
the Group, and

— are adwsed of therr legal and other duties and obligations asa
director of a fisted company.

This 1s supplemented by visits to key locations, including studios and
regional sites, and meetings with key senior executives and with major
shareholders where appropnate

Dunng ther period in office, the directors are continually updated
on the Group’s businesses and the competitive and regulatory
environments in which they operate This s done through.

- regular updates on changes affecting the Group and the market in
which 1t operates through written brefings and meetings with senior
execUtives across the Group and from meetings with key advisers,

- regular updates on changes to the legal and governance
requirements of the Group and In relation to their own position as
directors, and

— presentations given before board meetings on business matters and
technical update sessions from extemal adwvisers where appropnate

The directors are expected to take responsibdity for identifying ther
own professional development needs and to ensure that they are
adequately informed about the Company and therr responstbilities
as directors.

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches a high pnanty to effective communication with
shareholders In addition to the final and interim results presentations
and the AGM, a senes of meetings between institutional shareholders
and senior management were held throughout 2009 n fulfilment of
the obligations under the Code, the Chairman gave feedback to the
Board on issues raised with him by major shareholders. This process wil
continue throughout 2010

The Company maintans a corporate website contatning a wide
range of Information of Interest to institutional and prvate investors.
The Company has frequent discussions with institutional shareholders
on a range of Issues affecting its performance both following the
Company’s announcements and in respanse to ndividual ad hoc
requests.

Save In exceptional arcumstances, all mermbers of the Board will
attend the ACM and shareholders are invited to ask questions dunng
the meeting and to meet with directors prior to and after the formal
proceedings. At the meeting the Charman will review the Group's
cument trading Notice of the AGM, together with any related
documents, is made available to shareholders on the Company’s
website or railed to them, If they have elected to receve hard copies, at
least 20 working days before the meeting Separate resalutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue At the meeting ali
resciutions are taken on a poll The level of votes lodged on a resolution
1s made available on a requlatory information service and on the
Company's website at www.tvplccom.

The Company regularly seeks feedback on perception of the
Comparwy amongst its shareholders and the investor community more
broadly via its corporate brokers, An independent Investor Audit was last
undertaken in 2007 to assess mvestor and wider market perception of
the Company The Company is currently considenng comimissioning
another review dunng 2010

MIARI SSaUSTY
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How the Board operates

Board

The number of meetings held during the year and attendance of
directors Is set out in the table below Board members receve all papers
tabled at meetings even if they are unable to attend The Board
approves annually a schedule of matters to be considered at each
meeting and at each meeting of its Committees.

Responsibility and delegation
Specific responsibilities are set out In a schedule of matters reserved to
the Board These indude

- setting long-term objectives and corporate strategy and approving

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the committees
detailed on the following pages. The terms of reference for each
commuttee are reviewed annually and the current versions are available
on the Company’s website at www itvplccom

Audit Committee see the report of the Audit Committee on page S0

Drsclosure Commuttee: the Disclosure Committee comprises certan
semior management of the Company. The function of the Commuttee,
In accordance with the Company's Inside Information Policy, 1s to ensure
compliance with continuing obligations under the Drsclosure and
Transparency Rules and the Listing Rules through the timely public
disclosure of matenal information

an annual budget,

— approving majar acquisitions,

— approving major divestments and capital expenditure,

— approving appointments to the Board,

— reviewing systerms of intemal control and risk management, and
— approving policies relating to directors’ remuneration

General Purpose Committee: the General Purpose Committee (formerly
the Management Committee) compnses the executive directors. The
Committee meets as required to conduct the Company's business
within the clearly defined imits delegated by the Board and subject to
those matters reserved to the Board

Nommation Comymittee: see the Nomination Committee section on
page 49

Remuneration Committee” see the Remuneration report on page 53

Board and Commuttee membership, and attendance at meetings in 2009

Attendance n 2009
Audt  Nomnation Reruneration Strategy
Board Commkice  Committee  Commitee day
Status Dmdm from mﬁm 8 6 2% 5 1
Current directors
Mike Clasper Independent 3 January 2006 8 6 2 - L
John Cresswell Executive 16 January 2006 8 - - - 1
lan Gnffiths Executive 9 Septernber 2008 8 - - - 1
Andy Haste Independent 11 August 2008 8 - 1 4 1
Rupert Howell Executive 28 Februany 2008 8 - - - 1
Archie Norman Independent "’ 1 January 2010 - - - - -
John Ormerod independent 18 January 2008 8 6 -
Baroness Usha Prashar Independent 7 February 2005 7 - 2 5 1
Directors who stepped
down in the year
Sir James Crosby independent 3 December 2003 31 December 2009 7 - 2 5 -
Michael Grade Executive 8 January 2007 31 December 2609 8 - - 1
Heather Killen Independent 8 August 2007 31 December 2009 8 - 2 5 1
Sir George Russell Independent 2 December 2003 31 December 2009 8 6 2 - 1
Agneés Touraine independent 8 August 2007 31 Decernber 2009 8 6 2 - 1
Notes

{1) Independent on apportiment 1o the Board.
(2) Arnurmber of additional Normination Cormenittee rmeetmgs were held in 2009 to disouss dhanges to the compasition of the Board,
(3) Nonrattendance has been due (o dness or unavoiable pnor comimaments.
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Nomination Committee
The Committee Is compnsed entirely of non-executive directors,
The current mermbers are

— Archie Nomian (Charman) (appointed 1 January 2010)
~  Mike Clasper

- Andy Haste

— John Omerod

— Baroness Usha Prashar

Sir James Crosby served as Chairman of the Committee until he
stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2009 and Archue
Norman took over as Chairman with effect from 1 Januarny 2010
Heather Killen, Sir George Russell and Agnes Touraine also served on the
Committee dunng the year until they stepped down from the Board an
31 December 2009 Full details of attendance at Committee meetings
can be found 0 the table on page 48

Role: the role of the Commuttee 1s to
- review the structure, size and cormposition of the Board,

~ dentify and nominate for board approval, candidates to fill
beard vacancies;

- evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on
the Board,

- consider succession planning for directors and other senior
executives, and

- consider any conflicts of interest that may be reported by directors
of the Company

Actrities in 2009 the Committee focused on succession planning for
the Board The objectives of the succession planning framework are to
ensure

— board tenure 1s approprtate and encourages fresh thinking and
new deas,

- the Board has the appropnate mix of generalist and speaalist skills
for the Company's changing requirements, and

- non-executive directors have the appropnate level of ndependence,
from the executive directors and from each other

Following Michael Grade’s announcement of his intention to step
down as Executive Chairman, the Committee commenced a search
for a Chief Executive and a non-executive Chairman with the help of a
professional search firn Archie Normian was appointed Chairman with
effect from 1 January 2010, and Adam Crozier will take up the position
of Chief Executive on 26 April 2010

The Committee will continue to review suiccession planning for key
executives throughout the Group n 2010 to ensure an appropriate
framework 1s in place
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Dear Shareholder,

On the followeng pages we set out the Audit Commrttee’s report for
2009 The report comprises four sections:

- (ommittee overview;

- Actmwties in 2009,

- Auditor's ndependence and objectivity, and
- Intemal control

Throughout 2009 the Audit Committee (the Committee) continued
tomonitor the integnty of the finanaat staterents of the Company,
to assist the Board In reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control and rsk management systerns, and to review
arrangements for its employees to raise concems in confidence

The Committee has also been responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal audit function and making
recornmendations to the Board in relation to the re-appointment and
remuneration of the Company's extemal auditor

The Committee works to a structured programme of activities
with agenda items focused to coinade with key events of the annual
financial reporting cyde, together with standing iterms that the
Commuittee 1s required to consider regularly

This report has been written to give a full descnption of our
actwities in 2009

John Ormerod
Chairman, Audit Committee
3 March 2010

Committee overview

Composttion
The Committee s compnsed entirelyy of non-executive directors, The
aurrent members are

- John Ormerod (Chaiman)
- Mike Clasper
- Archie Norman (appoirted 2 February 2010)

Mike Clasper served as Chairman of the Commuttee throughout 2009
In view of his role as Chairman of HMRC, discussions relating to the
Company’s tax position were charred by John Ormerod Following Mike
Clasper's appointment as Senior Independent Director, John Ornerod
tock over as Chaimnan with effect from 1 Januany 2010 Archse Norman
will only serve as a member of the Committee unt! Andy Haste 1s able
to take up mernbershup later in the year, in order to ensure the
Committee remains quorate

Agnés Touraine and Sir George Russell served on the Committee
dunng the year until they stepped down from the Board on 31
December 2009 Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can
be found in the table on page 48

The Code reguires the Board to be satisfied that at least one member
of the Committee has recent and refevant financial expenience The
Board considered this requirement dunng 2009, and concluded that the
wide range of business and financial expenence of the Committee
members as a whole, gained at the highest level of UK FTSE 100
companes and other blue<chip organisations, was sufficient to enable
the Committee to fulfil tts terms of reference in a robust and
independent manner Biographical details of the members of the
Commuttee including their qualifications are set out on pages 44 and 45

At the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, the Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Head of
Intemal Audit and representatives of senior managerment regularly
attend Commuttee meetings. The Committee as a whole has the
cpportunity to meet privately with the intemal and external auditors
prior to meetings as required

Role
The role of the Committee 15 to '

- monitor the ntegrity of the consolidated and parent company
financral statements,

- review the effectiveness of the Group’s intemal control and nisk
management systems,

— review the Group's arrangements for its emnployees to raise concems,
in confidence, about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or
other matters,

- monitor and review the effectiveness of the Group's intemnal audit
function, and

- consider and make recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment, re-appaintment, replacerment and remuneration of
the Cornpany's external auditor
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Activities in 2009
The Commuttee’s actmities dunng the year induded

- reviewing the Group’s financial statements (induding detailed
disclosures) prior to board approval,

- reviewing the appropnateness of the Group's accounting policies
and considenng refated accounting treatments in speaific areas such
as revenue recognition,

- reviewing and approving the annual external audit process, the
extemnal auditors strategy and plan for the audit, considering the
findings of that work and confirming that all sgnificant matters
had been satisfactorly resolved,

- reviewing the management letter arsing from the 2008 year-end
extemnal audit,

- monitoring regularly the non audit services being prowided to the
Group by 1ts external auditor The Comimittee has approved a formal
policy governing the independence of the Company’s external
auditors and defining those non-audit services that may
be provded to the Group, including those which require the prior
approval of the Commmittee This 1s explaned further in the Auditor's
independence and objectvity section below,

- undertaking a review of the mtemal audit function, its plan and
resources avatlable The internal audit plan 1s constructed by taking a
nsk based approach, encompassing financial, reputation, and broader
macro-economic risks, with the review cyde designed such that
finanaally materal operations and areas of significant change are
reviewed in a given year, with all activities rewewed at least once
every three years. A degision was taken dunng the year to use
extemal thid parties to provide iIntemal audit sernices In order to take
advantage of the specialist resources available through use of
consultants, and Deloitte were appointed to prowide such services,

- considenng internal audit reports, the actions taken to iImplement
the recommendations made in those reports and the status of
progress against prevtously agreed actions,

- reviewing the results of the Enterpnse-wide Risk Managernent
process, including consideration of a rolling programmie of nisk
and intemal control presentations made by each operating team
and central service functions,

= continuing to monitor the implernentation of the integrated
finance processes and systern,

— reviewing the Group's technology function, resulting tn a decision
to outsource this area in 2010 resulting in further cost savings and
efficiencies,

- reviewing the analysis supporting the carrying value of goodwill
before consideratien by the Board,

- reviewing the Group's cash flow forecasts and faclities to support
the going concern staternent in the annual report before
consideration by the Board The going concern statement is
contained in the Financial review on page 42,

- reviewing the effectiveness of the whistleblowing process through
which the employees may, in confidence, raise concems;

- considenng regulatory and professional develcpments in respect
of finanaal accounting and reporting; and

- recewing reports from the Treasuny department on thewr actvities

Auditor's independence and objectivity

The Committee regularly monttors the other services being prowded to
the Group by its external auditor, and has developed a formal policy to
ensure this does not imparr therr Independence or objectvity which is
avallable in full on the Company's website at www itvplc.com.

The policy 15 based on the five key pnnaples which underpin the
prowision of other services by the external audrtor These are that the
auditor should not

- audit its own firm's work,
- make management decisions for the Group,
- have a mutuality of finanaal interest with the Group,

develop a close personal relationship with the employees of
the Group, or

- be putin the role of advocate for the Group

The Comrmittee has pre-approved the categones of other services
that may be performed by the external auditors and explicitly set out
the categones of work that they may not perferrn For this purpose
audrting the accounts of subsidiaries and associates pursuant to
legislation and other services provided pursuant to legislation are
regarded as audit services.

The policy sets a 11 ratio for the annual split between audit and
other fees charged by the extemnal auditor Although the Cormrmittee
believes that awareness of the 1 1 ratio 1s i/mportant, it 1s also of the view
this should not act as a hard ceiling on non-audit fees but as a guide that
may be exceeded from time to time to ensure flexibility so that the
Cormpany recenves the best and most appropriate advice Non-audit
services will be subject to market tenders or tests and will be awarded
to the most appropnate provider Approval s required from the
Committee Charman for any engagement of the external auditor
where the fee s likely to be in excess of £0 1 mullion A report on the level
of non-audit work is provided to the Commuttee half-yearly Detalls of
the related audit and other services are set out In note 4 of the
consobidated finanaal statements.

The Commuttee performs a specific evaluation of the performance
of the extemal auditars annually, through assessment of the results of
questionnarres completed by relevant senior managerment in addition
to committee members own views of auditor performance It is the
Company's policy to camy out regular market testing either through
benchmarking or a form of audit tender

During the year the Committee considered the tenure, performance
and audit fees of the extemal auditor, and the leve! of non-audit work
undertaken, and recornmended to the Board that aresolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc for a further year as the Company’s
auditor be proposed to shareholders at the AGM in May 2009 The
resolution was passed and KPMG Audrt Pic were re-appointed for a
further year

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systerns of intemal
control and for regularly reviewing the effectiveness of those systerns
The Comrittee assists the Board in reviewing the Group's systems of
intemal control The pnmany responsibility for the operation of these
systems 15 delegated to management. Such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatermnent
of loss. Key control procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate nsk and can be summansed as follows:

- Strategy and finanaal reporbing: the Group performs a
comprehensive annual strateqy review and budgeting process.
The executive directors review budgets and strategies and the
Board approves the overall Group budget as part of its normal
responsibilities. The resufts of operating urits are reported monthly,
compared with their ndvidual budgets and forecast figures and
are reviewed.
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- Organsational structure and authonsation procedures: the Group
has an established organisational structure with dlearly stated lines
of responsibility and reporting Authonsation procedures in respect
of matters such as purchase commitrnents, capital expenditure,
investment lrmits and treasury transacttons are clearly defined

- Control envronment financial controls and procedures are
considered as part of the Group’s ongoing nsk assessment
process and are reviewed as part of the Group's Internal audit
work programme

~ Risk assessment and management management 15 responsible for
identifying the nsks facing the Company's business and for
establishing controls and procedures to monitor and mitigate those
nsks. As part of those controls and procedures, the Company has
established an Enterpnse-wide Risk Management (ERM) programme
providing formal risk assessments. The ERM programme Is
co-ordinated through the Company's Risk department and the
Intemal Audit function provides the assurance role reporting
to managernent, the Commttee and the Board

The ERM programme 1s being embedded within operational

processes and will help to identify new business opportunities as
well as provide nsk analysis for all new projects and businesses.
The annual ERM prograrmme cycle passes through a number of
phases as it escalates through the business. The Committee receve
presentations from senior management covenng the nsks of the
operating units. Following such presentations and review, senior
management carry out a further risk consolidation process and then
present the Cornpany's overall rmajor nisks to the Board for
consideration of the top nsks which are then disclosed 1n summary
form within the published Report and accounts annually Details on
the Cornpany’s key risks can be found on pages 30 and 31

- Reviewing and monitonng the effectiveness of mternal controls
controls are monitored by senior managernent, Internal Audit and
the Committee Directors of each business team are required
annualiy to confirm comphance with intemnal control in therr area.
Serious control weaknesses (if any) are reported to the Board and
actions taken as approprate

The Committee 1s authonsed by the Board to seek any informaton
that it requires from any employee and to obtain, at the Company’s
expense, ndependent legal or professional advice on any matter within
its terms of reference and to call any employee to be questioned at a
meeting of the Cornmittee as and when required. The Cornmittee
mernbers are subject to the programme of continuing professional
developrment that applies to the full board

The Board 15 required to review, at least annually, all matenal intemal
controls including finanaal, operational, and compliance controls and
nsk management systems. The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal controls for the year
ended 31 Decernber 2009 In the opmion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the mtemal control requirements of the Combined
Code throughout the year, maintaning an ongoing process for
ident:fiing, evaluating and minimusing nsk.

Approval
The Audit Committee report was approved by the Board on 3 March
2010 and signed on its behalf by John Crmerod.
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Commuttee overview
Composition

The Committee 1s cornpnsed entirely of non-executive directors.
The current members are

— Baroness Usha Prashar (Chaimman)

- Mike Clasper (appointed 2 February 2010)

- Andy Haste

— Archie Norman (appointed 2 Februany 2010)
- John Ormerod (appointed 1 March 2010)

Si James Crosby and Heather Killen served on the Committee during
the year until they stepped down from the Board on 31 December

Dear Shareholder,

MIIA3I SS3UISNY

On the following pages we set out the Remuneration report for 2009
The report comprises five sections.

— Delivening remuneration pelicy, The role of the Committee is to g
- Non-executive directors, and - approve the remuneration strategy and policy for the Senior 2

Executive Group, g
- Detalled audited disclosures. a

Commuttee overview,
Remuneration policy,

2009 Full detalls of attendance at Committee meetings can be found
in the table on page 48

Role

- review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the

Dunng the year, the Remuneration Committee (the Committee) has
endeavoured to ensure that arrangements remain focused, relevant
and aligned with the need to create shareholder value over the short,
medium and long-term In taking decisions dunng 2009, the
Committee has been mindful that the market in which the Company
operates continues to be complex and chaflenging The Cormmittee

remuneration policy;, and

— approve the design of, and determine targets for, the Company's
annual bonus arrangements and share incentive plans, and
determine the level of awards made under them as they apply
to the Senior Executive Group

would encourage shareholders to note the following

In considenng the overall remuneration package for executve
directors and senior executives of the Company (together the Senior
Executive Group), the Committee looks to balance the need to
attract and retain high quality talent with the need to be cost
effective and to reward exceptional performance As a result, a
significant proportion of the Semior Executive Group's remuneration
15 dependent on the achieverment of stretching performance
conditions that support the creation of shareholder value

In relation to 2009 performance, the Committee believes that the
level of bonus awards are a far reflection of Company performance
dunng the year and in particutar reflect the efforts made by the
Senior Executive Group to mantain operational progress across the
core business, reduce ITV's cost base and manage cash and working
capital, which have delivered strong finanaal results in a very
challenging advertising market.

In ight of the cument strategic review, we intend to undertake a full
review of Incentrve plans dunng 2010 n consuitation with major
shareholders. The am of the review will be to ensure incentve
arrangements are strongly aligned with the prionties ansing out

of the strategic review and support the transformation of ITV

Further details are set out in full over the following pages.

The Committee also maintains an aciive dialogue with shareholder
representatives.

Activities in 2009
The Committee’s actvties dunng the year induded

- ensunng that deasions taken In respect of the Senior Executive
Group's remuneration packages are sensitive to the activities being
undertaken in the wider group, while also remaining appropnate in
TV's commercial ervironment,

- considenng the terms of remuneration for the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive,

— agreeing performance targets in relation to the 2070 bonus, and

- agreeing remuneration packages for the Senior Executive Group and
termination amangements for those ndwduals whose employment
ceased

Advisers

The Committee obtains advice from vanous sources In order to ensure
it makes Informed decisions. The Committee’s main adwisers are set out
below, and certain exequtives and other external advisers are invited to
attend as appropnate No indmadual s nvolved in deasions relating to
therr own remuneration.

Adveer Areaof ane

Andy Doyle, Main internal adwiser, provides updates on
Baroness Usha Prashar Group HR Drrector - remuneration, employee relations and human
ghalng:"m. Remuneration Cornmittee resource 1ssues affecting the Company.

March 2010 Delortte LLP* Independent advisers on remuneration policy and
the external remuneration environment, providing
performance testing for LTIPs.

Lovells LLP Legal matters.
Towers Watson  Satany benchrnarking data.

“Durng the year Delortte also provded the Group with tax and coporate finance advce
under separate engagesment tenms.

%
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Remuneration policy

As a company that operates in the particularly competitive media
market, [TV aimns to balance the need to attract and retain the high
quality talent that 1s key to the Company's success with the need to be
cost effective and to reward exceptional performance The Committee
has designed a remuneration policy which balances these factors, while
also takuing inta account prevarling best practice and investor
expectations.

In addition to the above, the remuneration policy for the Senior
Executive Group 1s based on the following key principles.

- asignificant proportion of remuneration should be tied to the
achievemnent of speafic stretching performance conditions which
align remuneration with the aeation of shareholder value,

- performance 1s measured over clearly specified time honzons, over
the short, medium and long-term, and encourages executives to take
action in line with the business strategy without taking excessive
nisks, and

~ indmiduals should be rewarded for success and steps should be taken,
within contractual obligations, to prevent rewards for failure
Paymenits to directors on termination will only reflect contractual
obligations.

When developing remuneration policy, the Committee obtains advice
from the key adwvisers outhned on page 53 The Committee also
considers the wider context of the Group when taking decisions.

Components of reward

The reward package for the Senior Executive Group consists of a
combinaton of fixed and vanable elements intended to prowide
motwvation and reward for short, medium and long-term performance
and to retain key executives over the longer term Each component i
intended te fulfil a different function within the remuneration
framework as set outin the table below Details of how these
compaonents are delivered 1S set out I the Delivenng remuneration
policy section

Components Funcbon

Fixed

Base salary To recognise the indwdual's skills and expenence and
provide a market competitive base reward

Pensions To provide an opportunity for executives to build up an
incorme for retirement.

Otherbenefits  To ensure remuneration 1s market competitive

Vanable

Short-term To incentmse and reward exceptional performance

Incentives against financial and non-finanaal annual targets that
deliver value to sharehalders.

Long-term To dnve sustained long-term performanice that

Incentives supports the creation of shareholder value

By way of illustration, the balance between the fixed and vanable
elements of the total remuneration package {excluding pension) for
executive directors 15 illustrated in the charts below The charts illustrate
the mix at both target and maximum performance and show the
typical delivery of rernuneration through cash and shares, over the short
and longer term. Broadly there 1s a 5050 spiit between fixed and
vanable pay at target performance and a 25 75 spiit at maximum
performance, shawing the high proportion of perforrmance-related pay
that is ‘at nisk’ in the total remuneration package

Shareholder akgnment

The Committee continues to recognise the importance of executive
directors alkigning their interests with sharehalders through the
comrmitment of a significant amount of their own Investment capital
Shareholding guidelines are In place, which encourage executive
directors to build up and hold ITV pic shares with a value equivalent to at
least 100% of their salary within five years of appointment. Details of
the executive drectars’ curent personal shareholdings are shown on

page 61
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Delivering remuneration policy

Base salary
Market positioning of base salary 15 approached on an indwidual basss,
and the Committee takes account of robust salary surveys and an
indviduals skills before reaching its condusions. The atm s for base
salary to be set around market median, whilst recognising the need
on occasion for an appropnate premium to attract supenor talent
Executive directors’ base salaries are reviewed on an annual bass,
effective from 1 January In January 2010 the Company completed its
annual pay review and concluded that there should be no increase In
base safary for any TV employees, This means the salanes of John
Cresswell, lan Grffiths and Rupert Howell have not increased since 2008
The base salanes for the executive directors are set out In the
emoluments table in the Detarled audited disdosures section

Pensions

As with gther companies, the forrm in which persion benefits are
delivered has changed for ITV In recent years. Since 2002, the Company
has been offening a defined contnbution pension scheme to all new
employees, The majonty of the Senior Executive Group receve their
pension through defined contnbution pension amangernents. The
executive directors’ pension arrangements are set out on page 61

Other benefits
Other benefits include private medical Insurance and car related
allowances which are offered where appropnate

Short-term mcentves
Annual mcentives are provided for the Senior Executive Group through
the ITV Annual Bonws Scheme (Bonus) The performance conditions
that apply are set on an indvidual basis and are dosely linked to the
Cormpany’s corporate, financial and strategic prionties The Bonus
extends to all ITV employees, prowding a cormprehensive and fully
integrated bonus framewark which rewards all employees when ITV 1s
successful

The total Bonus opportunity for executive directors will not normally
exceed 150% of a particpant’s annual salary Typically half of any
pre-tax Bonus award to the executive directors has been automatically
defemed into restricted shares or nil-cost options under the Deferred
Share Award Plan (DSA), vesting 12 and 24 months after the end of the
financial year to which the Bonus relates. Participants have been able to
elect to take the balance of the Bonus in cash or as further share awards
under the DSA. The DSA does not provide for any form of matching
award

2009 Bonus: Bonus opportunities for the Senior Executive Group in 2009
were designed to focus on profit generation (EBITA before exceptional
iterns), cost savings, the efficent management of cash (profit to cash
conversion) and employee engagernent, with stretching targets set at
the start of the financial year In addition, the Committee determined
that 2009 Bonus awards may be scaled back if profits were below a
threshold level In early 2009, it was also the Committee’s intention to
make all awards wholly in the form of nil-cost options or restncted
shares.

ITVs performance i 2009 1n these key financal areas has been
strong, particularty n a challenging advertising market. As set out In the
Business review section, operational progress across the core business
has been maintained, significant cost savings have resulted m profits
being stabilsed, and extensive efforts on cash conversion have resulted
n improved cash and working capital management, As a result, all the
financal targets set under the Bonus were met in full. The Committee
has therefore determined that the 2009 Bonus awards will not be scaled
back and believes the leve] of Bonus to be a fair reflection of the
Company's performance dunng the year For executive directors awards
will be made in the typical way with half being deferred into restncted
shares under the DSA and the balance in cash

2010 Borws: The Committee has set 2010 performance targets to
ensure they are heawly weighted to corporate finangial performance,
and with a strong emphasis on ITV's strategic goals. In setting these
targets, the Commuttee has determined there will be no Bonus awards
made if the Comnpaniy's profit is below a threshold level In addiion, the
performance scales have been set such that maxmum bonuses will
only be paid for performance that is well above budgeted performance

it 5 antiopated that awards made to the executive directors for 2010
performance will continue to be made partly in deferred shares and
parthy n cash However, this may form part of the incentives review that
will be undertaken dunng 2010

Long-term incerrtives
The Committee keeps the Company’s long-term incentive plans under
regular review to ensure they remain appropnate n fulfiling thewr
objectives and that the performance conditions continue to represent
the best way to dnve the areation of shareholder value

The plans under which awards have been made 1o date, and are still
outstanding, are

- Performance Share Plan. thts was the only long-term incentive used
for awards made in 2009 Awards were made on 1 June 2009 after
the cost savings review was completed, and were scaled back from
histonic levels to a maximum cf 100% of salary The performance
conditions that apply to the 2009 awards are outhned in the table on
page 56 The ntention 15 to make awards under this planin 2010

- Tumaround Plan. no awards have been made under this plan since
2008 Awards in the form of nil-cost options were made to a number
of key senior executives in 2007 and 2008 with a maximum value
of up to 550% of the Indwvidual's salary Individuals who recerved
this award did not receve an award under the Company’s other
long-term incentive plans in 2007 or 2008

Up to 50% of the portion of the award subject to TSR (25% of the
total award) was subject to performance over the three-year pertod
to 31 December 2009 As the TSR condition was not met, 25% of the
total award has lapsed The balance will be tested at 31 Decernber
201

- Commutment Scherne. no awards have been made under this
scherne since 2006 John Cresswellis the only executive director
with outstanding awards.

The table on page 56 outlines the key features of the above plans.
The Company also operates an all employee Save As You Eam (SAYE)
scheme The executive drectors’ participation in this scheme are set out
in the Detailed audited disclasures section

In line with the Tumaround Plan (TP), a corresponding long-temm
cash-based Incentive also exists for the wider employee population, not
including participants in the TP, known as the Turnaround Incentive
Opportunity, which is dependent on the same performance conditions,

Performance graph

The graph below shows the Total Shareholder Retum (TSR)
performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 index
over the five year penod to 31 December 2009 Both ndices have been
shown as the Company has been a constrtuent of both over the
previous five years.
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Performance Share Pan Tumaround Ban Cornentment Scherme
(PSF) (TP) {CS)
Corvestment requrements  None Redquuenment tor Requirernent. tax

- acquire a number of shares with a value of up Lo
100% of salan) withmn a speafied penod from
date of grant; and

~hoid the shares for the durabion of the relevant
performance penod

- acuue a number of shares with a vakse of up to
300% of salany withen a speafied penod from date
of grant torecerve a matdhng award compnsed of
erther or both of ani cost opbon and market value
option each over a raamum of three tmes the

nurmber of shares committed; and
— hoid the shares for the duration of the relevant
perforrmanice period.
Performarce period = three years from the date of grant. - 25% of total award - 1 Januan 2007 to 31 ~ Upto50% of the matching award - three years
Decernber 2004 {see page 55) from the date of grant.
- 75% of total award - 1 January 2007 to 31 - remander - four years from the date of grant. ‘
Decernber 2011
Performance condibors TSETR 50% TSk 100% TSR
— measured equally agamst two distinct - measured aganst a the custorrised FTSE 100 = measured aganst the custorresed FTSE 100
comparator groups drawn from the FESE 250 cormparator group detated i the notes on page comparater group detaded in the nates on page
and a spedfic international ndustry peer group 60 certan ndustny sectors that areless. 60, exdudng certain inclustny sectars that are less
detalled i the nates on page 60 relevant as a benchmark of performance. redevant as a benchmark of perfomarnce.
25% STRATEGIC 50% STRATECK
- measured in equal aganst two = measured i equak proportions against four
strategi targets, which for awards made on ' June  strategc targets:
2009 were: Suateg: taget ey R tr—
Sustegc taget Theshodd ~ Maamum SOCI (ITV Fasvdy) 366% 385%
SOCI" (ITV Famidy) 366% 385% Revenue growth 2% pa. 5% pa
EPS Growth RPL+3% RPL+5% Adpsted EPS i lne 8p 12p
- Eamungs Per Share (EPS) growthwil e measred. With that reported n
over the relevant theeyear financal penod with @oup's financal
EPS for the 2008 finanaal year & the base year Staternents)
Share pnce £135 £225
— share pace wil be measured s an average over
any 28 day penod withm the final three years
of the TP
Vesting 75X TSR 50% TSR 100% TSR
- Bedow median - ni - Below median-rd = Below meghan -l
- Meden-nd - Median-25% - Medan-25%
- Lipper quartiie - 100% - Upper quartile— 100% - Upper quartie - 100% '
= Vestng will occur on a straght i bass in - Vestng will oo on a straxght fine bass ~ Vestng will occur on a straght e base in
between. between. between.
25% STRATEGIC 50% STRATEGK
— Threshold performance - 25% of the award - Threshold pesformance — 25% of the award
relating 1o each tanget will vest retating to each target will vest
= Maamum performance - 100% of the award - Maxgrmum performance — 100% of the award
relating to each target will vest refatng to eadh target will vest
- Vestng will occur on a strasght bne bass - Vesting will- ocour on a straught ine bases
n between, m between,
Exarase penod - One vested, awards can be exengsed for - Once vested, awards can be exerased untl - Oncevested, awarts can be exercsed forup to
12months 31 Decermnber 2012 ten years frorn date of grant.
- Any portion of the award that does not vestof s - Any porton of the award that does not vestoris. = Any portion of the award that does not vest of &
not exercesed will lapse not exerased by 31 Decernber 2012will lapseand  not exerased willlapse.
the TP wil termmate. |
Leavers Standard good leaver proviscns. appks (broadly relatng Lo compassionate anawmistances) and ndude pro-rabion far serace If a parbapant ceases; to be employed
for any cther reason, the award willlapse uness deterrrned otherwee.
Change of control Outstanding awards and opbions would nonmially vest and become exerasable on a dhange of control, subject to the satisfachion of any perfarmance condibons.

The propertion that vests may be capped depencing on the time elapsed snce grant.

=500 as a measure of perfarmance, and its Importance to the business, 1s explamed further m the Busness review
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Service contracts

Executive directors have serace contracts which provide for 12 months’
nobice on erther side There are no special provisions that apply in the
event of a change of control

Compersabon

PrOVEIONS

Nawreof  Notrepenod — Notice penod for ety

Okeof appantment  contrat  fomCompany  fromdiedor teominabon

John Cresswell 16January 2006 Roling  12menths 12 months Nore
lan Gnffiths 9September 2008 Rolfing  12months  12months None
Rupert Howel 2BFebruary 2008  Roling  1Zmonths 12 months None
Note

The Comparyy retains the nght 1o terminate employment by making payrment in hev of notice
nwhich case the executive would be entitied to receve 12 months' salany and benefits
{indudkng person contrbubions)
Executive directors’ non-executive directorships
With specific approval of the Board, executive directors may accept
extemal appointments as non-executive drectors of other companies
and retain any related fees paid to them

Duning the year Michael Grade retained fees for external non-
executive directorships as set out below

2009 2008
Company £000 £000
Pinewood Shepperton Pic 102 102
Ocado Limited 100 100

Payments to outgoing executive director

When agreeing the teams of Michael Grade’s departure the Committee
were keen to ensure that any payments made only reflected
contractual obigations.

As Michae! Grade indicated his intention to leave in April 2009 and
stood down in December 2009, the Committee agreed he should
receve payment for the residual four months of his contractual notice
period to Apni 2010 However, the Committee determined that this
payment should be made at the rate he would have been paid as
non-executive Chairman, rather than his Executive Chairman salary
As a result, a payment of £167,000 was made on his departure

Michael Grade's Bonus payrment in respect of 2009 performance was
assessed against performance targets set at the start of the finanaal
year and calculated in ine with the bonus payments for other executive
directors as disclosed on page 55 The payment made 1s inciuded in the
emoluments table on page 58

Details of Michael Grade’s outstanding awards under the Company’s
long-terrn incentive plans are autlined in the Detalled audited disclosures
section.

Intertn Chief Executive

John Cresswell was appointed to the position of Intenm Chief Executive
on 1 January 2010 and will hold the postion until Adamn Crozier joins the
Company as Chief Executive on 26 Apni 2010 In order to reflect the
Increase in hus responsibiities duning this transitional peried he will
receve an additional allowance of £125,000 per annum pro~ata for the
penod he serves as intenm Chief Executive

Non-executive directors

Each non-executive director has a contract of service with the Company,
further details of which can be found in the Corporate Governance
section. Fees paid to the non-executive directors are deterrmined by the
Board based on market information supplied by Delortte, and In
accordance with the restnctions contaned within the Cornpany’s
Artides of Assoctation Non-executive directors do not participate in
decisions conceming their own fees.

The fees are reviewed annually The additional fee for membership
of the Normination Committee ceased from 1 January 2010 There were
no changes to the level of fees paid dunng 2009, and none are proposed
for 2010 The annual fees payable are as follows

Non-executve drectors fees £000
Board member 55
Senior Independent Director 25
Audit Commuttee member 5
Audrt Commuttee Chairman 20
Remuneration Committee member 5
Rernuneratron Cornmittee Chaimman 15
Noter

Detaks of committee mermbership can be found in the Corporate Governance secion.

From 1 January 2009 the non-executive directors have used 25%

of their annual fees, after statutory deductions, to acquire sharesin
the Company The shares are purchased quarterly and are held by a
nominee an their behalf The shares release when they retire from the
Board Detals of therr shareholdings can be found on page 61

Chairman

Archie Norman joined the Company as Chairman on 1 January 2010
As announced at the trme of his appontiment, his remuneration will
comprise a cash fee of £300,000 per annum and an annual award of
400,000 shares over the Inibal three-year appotntrment term, He will
not be required to apply a percentage of his cash fee to acquire shares
as the Commuttee considers hirm to be sufficiently aligned with
shareholders’ interests followang his purchase of 380,000 shares on
appointment, together with the share element of his remuneration.
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Detailed audrted disclosures Aggregate directors’ remuneration
The following tables provide detals of each of the drrectors’ and former  The total amounts of directors' remuneration for the penod from
directors emoluments, pension entitlements, nghts to share options 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009 were as follows
and awards. All of these tables have been audited by KPMG Audit Plc 09 2008
£00 000
Emoluments 5309 2,893
Gans on exercise of share options 1,092 87
6401 2,980
Notes

(1} Gams on exercse figure for 2009 s fegher as it shows both the nilcost options awarded
urder the 2008 Bonus vestng and bewg exerased. and the value on release of the
restncted shares awarded under the 2007 Bonus. John Cresswell also exerased
hes rdheost opbions undes the Granada Commitment Scherme dunng the year Further
nformation is contaned in the tables on pages 59 and 60
2) ‘I'hevalueonreteaseofrestnctfedshaesawa'dedmdermeDSAMIbelndudedmthe
on exercise orward n order to make COMPansons
ga“srepresermatme %mmmmmemmm
£504,000

Directors’ emoluments
The directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in the table below The main reasons for the difference in total
emolurnents year-on-year are

2008 total emoluments £29 million

- The total emoluments figure does not include any 2008 short-term incentives (Bonus), as they were awarded n nit-cost options under the DSA
with no cash payments,

- The figures for Rupert Howell and lan Gnffiths are frorn the date of therr appomtrment to the Board, in February and September 2008
respectively If the total emoluments figure for 2008 induded their salary for a full year, as in 2009, then the 2008 total emolument figure Is
£3 2 mullion on a hike-for-like basis.

2009 total emoluments. £5 3 miltion
- The 2009 Bonus 1s higher as financial targets were met as described on page 53

Ermoluments
Shost-term Total for the Texal for the
Basc salany Benefits n Penson ncentives year ended year ended
Fees lard ™ contrbutions {cashf® 31 Decermber 2009 31 Decermber 2008
Narme of deector Nokes £000 £000 £000 EF000 £000 £000
Executive
Michael Grade 1,2 825 63 74 1,164 2,126 934
John Cresswell 575 20 - 363 958 599
lan Gnffiths 37 425 13 64 210 712 127
Rupert Howell 3,7 450 49 67 267 833 474
Non-executive
Mike Clasper 80 - - - &0 80
Sir James Crosby 100 - - - 100 100
Andy Haste 65 - - - 65 24
Heather Kiflen 65 - - - 65 65
John Ormerod 65 - - - 65 62
Baroness Usha Prashar 75 - - - 75 75
Sir George Russell 165 - - - 165 165
Agnés Tourane 65 - - - 65 65
Past director's remuneration (for comparative purposes} - - - - - 123
Total emoluments 2,955 145 205 2,004 5309 2893
Notes:

(1) Pension contnbubion represents a cash payment in keu of pension and is desaibed further i the pension entitlernents secton of thrs report.

2) MWﬁsnhﬂfwerMsamWMnhudmmmmawﬁﬁ:ﬂ

(3} Person contributions represent payments made into Personal Pension Plans and are desaribed n the persion entidernents section of thes repor.

(%) Thes desdosure ndudes the opst of pmvate medical mswrance and car related benefits

(5) Bxecutne directors will receve a 2009 Barus as follows. Michad Grade will receve 141% of sallany and will be paud fully n cash, John Cresswel will recerve 126X of salany and Rupert Howell
118.5% salany, with 50% pad n cash as shown above and 50% awarded as restncted shares under the DSA fan Gffiths will recerve 141% of salany and has slected to take 65X as restncted
sharesundler the DSA and the remander in Gsh,

(6) Norrexeautve directors' fees indude an elernent whach s used to purchase shares as desaibed on page 57 Detads of thew shareholdings are shown on page 61

(7} The figures for 2008 reflect emoluments from the date of appomitment to the Board which are set out on page 48.
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Directors’ interests in share options
information given in the table below s for the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 Decermber 2009

Share pnce
Share pnce doxeof Predaxgana
At Exprosed A wsedfor evercre)  date of exerceef
Thaary  Awarded  Released Lared 31 December award  Exercee prce Dateof exercse/ release ek Vesting ditef
Award dare hates 2008 nyear nyear nyear 209 (perce) ({perce) reledxse {pence) (2] Exeririe penod
John Cresswel
Deferred Shane Awand Plan
14 March 2008 1 28149 - 261497 - - 6530 - 31 Decernber 2009 S4.24 130985 -
24 April 2009 2 - 264314 264314 - - 3100 ~ 31 Decemnber 2009 G4 24 143634 -
264315 - - 264315 3100 - - - ~ 31 December 2010-
31 Decernber 2011
Performance Share Plan
13 Septernber 2006 A 607595 - - 607595 - 98.75 - - - - -
1 June 2009 B - 1608392 - - 1608392 3575 - - - - June 2012~
June 2013
Tumanound Plen
13 September 2007 4 A 2849100 - - N2275 2136825 11100 - - - - 31 December 2011-
31 Decemnber 2012
Save As You Eam scheme
4 Apnl 2008 5 32307 - - 32307 - - 5200 - - - -
17 Juiy 2009 5 - 54370 - - 54,370 3575 2860 - - - September 2014~
March 2015
Cormmitrment Scherme
22 August 2003 & 301785 - 301785 - - - - 20 October 2009 5098 153850 -
22 August 2003 6 471944 - - - &71,944 - 100.72 - - - 2005-
August, 2010
19 April 2005 10,C 283407 - - 283407 - - - - - - -
19 Apri 2005 10C 283407 - - 283407 - - 12575 - - - -
20 March 2006 110 518358 - - 259179 259179 - - - - - March 2010-
March 2016
20 March 2006 M0 518358 - - 259179 259179 - 11575 - - - March 2010~
March 2016
Executive Share Option Schermnes
22 Becember 2000 7 9593 - - - 959 - 21778 - - - Decernber 2003 -
December 2010
6 July 2001 7 36399 - - - 36399 - 13702 - - - Juby 2004-
July 2011
28 September 2001 7 113851 - - - 113851 - 9135 - - - 2004 -
Septermber 2011
9 January 2002 7 1,060 - - - 1040 - 146327 - - - Jaruary 2005 -
Jamaary 2012
10 July 2002 7 19,240 - - - 19,240 - 0625 - - - July 2005 -
July 2012
7 Januany 2003 718200 - - - 18200 - 7692 - - - January 2006 -
January 20i3
Michad Grade
Defemed Share Award Plan
14 March 2008 1 740352 - 7A0352 - - 6530 ~ 31 December 2009 5424 401,567 -
24 Apri 2009 P4 - 758468 - - 753468 3100 - - - - 31 Decernber 2009 -
31 Decemnber 2010
Tumaround Incertve Award
13 Septarnber 2007 8.A S657042 - - 1703648 39533% 106.06 - - - - 31 Decernber 2011 -
31 Decernber 2012
Save As You Eam scherne
4 Apei 2008 9 32307 - - - 12307 - 5200 - - - Januany 2010

Jure 2010
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Share prce
Shaye pce ddaeol  Pretacgana
AL Exerased/ AL wsad for exerosed  date of exenref
1oruay  Awaded  Released lapsed 31 December award  Exerose pce Date of exerasel release release Vesting datey
Awand date MNotes 2009 nyear nyexr nyear 009 (pence) (peree) relese {pence) {0 Exercse pernd
fan Gnffiths
Deferred Share Award Flan
2 October 2008 2 177515 - 177535 - - 4225 - 31 Decernber 2009 S424 96,284 -
24 Aprd 2009 2 ~  4BR40 48840 - - 3100 - 31 Becernber 2009 5424 26490 -
48847 - - 48 Bl 3100 - - - - 31 Decernber 2010~
31 Decernber 2011
Performnance Share Plan
1 June 2009 B - 1183812 - - 1188812 3575 - - - - June 2012 -
June 2013
Tumaround Pan
2 October 2008 4 A 4023669 - - 1005917 307752 42375 - - - - 31 Decemnber 2011-
31 Decernber 2012
Rupert Howel
Deferred Share Award Plan
14 March 2008 1 48,756 - 48756 - - 6530 - 31 Decernber 2009 5424 26445 -
24 April 2009 2 - 206855 206855 - - 31.00 - 31 Decemnber 2009 Sh.24 112,198 -
206855 - - 206855 3100 - - - — 31 Decernber 2010 -
31 Decermber 2011
Perforrnance Share Plan
1 June 2009 B - 1,101,399 - - 110139 3575 - - - - June 2012 -
June 2013
Tumanound Plan
3 0ctober 2007 4 A 2357143 - - 589.286 1767857 10500 - - - - 31 Decemnber 2011-
31 Decernber 2012
Notes:

(1) Awarded in the form of restncted shares.

(2)  Awarded n the form of ndcost opbors. The award rmade to lan Grffiths on 2 October 2008 was a one off award under the terms of his emplogment.

(3) The 2006 PSP awards reached the end of thew performnance penod in 2009 and lapsed as the TSR perfonmance condition was not met,

() 25% of the award was tested on 31 Decernber 2009 and as the performance condiion was not met thes portion of the award lapsed.

{5) John Cresswell chose Lo withdraw from the 2008 scherme m arder to pariapate in the 2009 scheme resuling in hs options

(6) The performnance condtion apphcable for the awards macde under the Granada Commstment Scheme was TSR relative to Granada's international reedia comparator group 25% of awards
vest at mechan, 100% vesting ocous at upper dedle. Up to 50% of these awards were capable of vesting after two years, with the remainder subject to performance over a four year penod.
The optiors are shown in TV pic shares and were adjusted follownng the rmerger of Granada with Carlton in 2004 The balance shown represents options that have vested at the refevant

dates, but not been exerased.
n ards outstanding under the Granada Media ang Granada Schermes. The options are shown i [TV pic shares and were adjusted following the merges of Granada with Caton n 2004
8 haccudatemmthemofmeaward.ZS%ufmemawardmemat31Decerrber20091ftheTSRcrrﬂtnnwassamﬂedAslheperfmnanceoordmnwasnolsausﬁed,ms

porbon of the award will be tested with the rernaining balance of the award on 31 December 2011 On cessabion of employrment on 31 Decermnber 2009, 75% of the award due to be testedon

31 Decemnber 2011 was pro-rated for servce and a proportion fapsed accordingly.
(3) On cessation of empioyment on 31 Decernber 2009, the award vested and becarme exercisable over a pro-rated number of shares for a penad of six months.
(10} Lapsed on 19 Apnl 2009 as performance conditions were not met.
(11} 50% lapsed on 20 March 2009 as performance condiions were not met, Remaning balance 15 unvested and will be tested on 20 March 2010

The comparator groups for each award are set out In the table below, and apply as marked in the notes column

A Bntrh Asways, Britrsh Skiy Broadcasting Group, BT Group Capta Group, Camval, Compass Group, Diageo, DSG intemational, Enterpse Inns, Home Retad Group, intercortnental Hotels Group,

Kingfisher, Marks & Spencer Group, Next, Pearson, Reed Bisewer, Thomson Reuters, SABMiller Scottish & Newcastle, Vodafone Group WPP and Yell Group.

B Thepoftnnoftheawardwb;ectmTSRvdlbennmedeman;aganstmdsmwnpaamrgmps.mmmdmmzmrﬂa(quﬁmwm

matenaks, finanaal seraces, of and g and ndustnal ndustnes), and an ndustny sector speal p of 23 companes: Batsh Sky Broadcasting Group, Sapps Networks, Canal Phus, Teleanca,
o ey

CBS, Tf1 (TwiFse 1), Daity Mal & General Trust, Time Wamer Me-Metropole TV Trinity Muror
WPP Group Prermuer AG, Yell Group, Proseiben Sat 1 Pf, Zon Muttimedia and RTL Group.

Viacom Dugrtal, Modem Tirmes Group, Vign Media, News Corporation, Vivend, Pearson,

C mmmMmmmmganmskysmammmmcmmmm&mmmmmmmmmmrm

Diageo, D5G International EMAP Enterprse bnns, Exel, Home Retail Group, Haus, InterContnental Hotels Group, Kingfisher, Ladbrokes, Marks & Spencer Group, Next, 02, Pearson, Reed Elsevier

Rentokil inetial, Thomson Reuters, Resam, SaBMler Scottish & Newcastle, Viodafone Group, Whitbread, William Hil WPP and Yefl Group.

D BAA Aliance Boots, Bramibies, Britrsh Awangs, Britrsh Sky Broadeasting Group BT Group Cabie 8 Wireless, Capita Group, Camwval, Compass Group MMWWTWD&G
ntemational, Enterpse inns, Home Retad Group InterContmental Hotels Group, Kingfisher Ladbrokes, Marks & Spencer Group, Next, PartyGamng, Pearson,
Thormson Reuters, Rexarn, SABMiller, Scottsh & Newcastle, Vedafone Group, Wokeley, WPP and Yell Group.
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Pension entitiernents

Dunng the year John Cresswell was a member of the Company's
defined benefit pension scheme and had accrued entitlerments
under the scheme as follows

Accrued noexen Acgued

persion accrued persion

1 Jarnuany personn 31 Gecernber

X008 theyear 009

Name of dreci £000 200 000
John Cresswell 108 1 119

The following table sets out the transfer value of his accrued benefits
under the scheme calculated in a manner consistent with the
Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulabions 2008
The pension benefits of John Cresswell are provided on a defined
benefit basis. The acgrued pension shown is that which would be
pawd annually based on service to the end of that year The increase
i accrued pension dunng the year reflects anincrease in the
pension entitlerment as a result of an additional year of service

Dunng 2009, ITV consulted with defined benefit scheme
members regarding changes to future benefit accrual With effect
from January 2010, pensionable salary increases for all defined
benefit rmernbers, nduding John Cresswell, are capped at 1%
Further information on this can be found in note 6 of the
consolidated financial staternents or on page 43

Ingexe
n trarsfer
Transfer value n Transfer
vaue  Contnbubors the year wake
1 Januany made by netof 11 Decermber
009 thedrector  contribytons'” 2009
Narme of director £000 £000 £000 £000
John Cresswell 1,240 45 201 1,487

Notes,

(1) Transfer values at 31 Decernber 2009 have been caloutated n accordance with the
transfer value members would receve if transferred thew pension etsewhere.
The Trustees of the TV Pension Scherne ed the transfer value factors over 2009
to aliow for ncreasing ewdence that peaple are Inang longer than previously expected
which has contnbuted to the indrease in the transfer value to 371 December 2009
The ingrease In the transfer value also mdudes the effect of fluctuations due to factors
beyond the control of the Company and dmactors, such a5 stock market moverments

{2) John Cresswell has a normal retrement age of 63

(3} Inthe event of the death of an exeautive duwctor 3 perrion equal to one half of
director's pensior will become payabie (o a sunmang spouse. A persion may become
payable to any srvving dependant chidren,

(4) i common with other members of the defined berefit penston scheme the
exacutive director may, wath the consent of the Company, recerve and draw a pension
atany time after ng the age of 50(55 from 6 Apdl 2010)

The following addibional Information 15 given to comply with the
requirernents of the Listing Rules which differ in some respects from
the equivalent statutony requirements.

noease in actued Transfer vahe of
peNnSon N the year nerease niheyear less
n excess of #flabon drector’s contnbubors
Name of dwector £000 £000
John Cresswell 11 59

The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or
payable to John Cresswell Instead they represent a potential liability
of the pension scheme

Michael Grade, lan Griffiths and Rupert Howell were not members
of any Company pension scheme dunng the year The Company
made contnbutions to Personal Pension Pians belonging to lan
Griffiths and Rupert Howell with a value of 15% of therr respective
basic salaries. Michael Grade receved a cash payment of 9% of his
basic salany in Leu of pension contnbutions. These payments are
induded in the emoluments table on page 58.

iNo directors were members of defined contnbution schemes
operated by the Group

Directors’ interests

The figures set out below represent shareholdings in the ordinany
share capital of ITV pk beneficially owned by directors and their
farmuly interests. Between the end of the financial year and 3 March
2010, there were no changes in directors’ interests in shares.

31 Decernber 310ecernber
2008

Dwedor 2009

Mike Clasper 46,784 18,000
John Cresswell 1260462 784,660
Sir Jarmes Crosby 138,388 98,058
Michae! Grade 879,816 436,407
lan Gnffiths 233358 100,000
Andy Haste 33302 10,000
Rupert Howell 199,350 48,755
Heather Killen 45302 22,000
John Omerod 75372 50,000
Baroness Usha Prashar 30,017 3,000
Sir George Russell 112,847 62,090
Agnés Touraine 124,301 100,000

Share pnce information

The market price of the ITV plc ordinany shares at 31 December 2009
was 52 35 pence and the range dunng the year was 17 50 pence to
5505 pence

|
The Rernuneration report was approved by the Board on 3 March
2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by Baroness Usha Prashar
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62 Other governance and statutory disclosures

Substantial shareholdings

As at 3 March 2010 the Company had receved notifications from
the following companies and institutions of the voting interests of
thernselves and therr clients in 3% or more of the issued ordinary
share capital (camying nights to vote in all circumstances) of the
Cormpany {numbers of shares and percentage interests are as at the
notification dates)

Shares x
Sky Holdings Ltd™ 291,684,730 750
Brandes Investment Partners, LP 275411157 708
Legal and General Investment 200,841,036 516
Management Ltd

Blackrodk, Inc. 194,695,694 501
AXASA, 170,580,317 439
Notes.

(1) Subrsciany of Brtssh Sk Broadcastrg Group pke

(2) A profie of shareholdings & set out on page 113

Share capital

Issued At the date of this report there were 3,889,129,751 ordinary
shares of 10 pence each in 1ssue, all of which are fully pard up and
quoted on the London Stock Exchange Further detalls of the
mavernents In the authonsed and 1ssued share capital of the
Company dunng the year are set out on page 11¢

Rights. The nghts attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares,

as well as the powers of the Comparny’s directors, are set out in the
Company's Articles of Association, copres of which can be obtained
from the Company's webstte at www tvplccom or by wiiting to the
Company Secretary

Restnctions. There are no restnctions on the transfer of ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company other than thase which may
be imposed by law from time to time In accordance with the Listing
Rules, certain employees are required to seek approval to deal in ITV
shares. The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that may result in restnctions on the transfers of
secunties and/or voting nghts. No person holds secunties in the
Company camying special nghts with regard to control of the
Company. Unless exprassly speafied to the contrary, the Company's
Articles of Association may be amended by speaial resalution of the
shareholders.

Purchase of own shares: The drrectors have the authonty to
purchase up to 388 9 million of the Company's ordinary shares. The
authonty remains valid untd the 2010 Annual General Meeting, or 13
August 20101 earlier

Trusts. The Company has a discretionary trust funded by loans to
acquire shares for the potential benefit of employees of the Group
Details of shares held by the trust at 31 Decemnber 2009 are set cut
in note 30 Dunng the year shares have been released from the trust
In respect of share schermes for employees. The trust waves the
nght to dmdends payable on those shares held by the trust that

are not subject to any share plan operated by the Company where
partiapants are the beneficial but not registered owners of shares.

Change of control

All of the Company’s share schemes contain provisions relating to a
change of control. Outstanding awards and options would nomally
vest and becorne exerasable on a change of control, subject to the
satisfaction of any performance conditions. Certan of the Group's
bonds/borrowing facilities have change of control clauses whereby
the 1ssuer can require ITV to repay/redeern bonds in the event of 3
change of control The Company is not aware of any other
significant agreemnents to which it is party that take effect, after or
terminate upon a change of control of the Company

Creditor payment policy

The Company’s policy, in refation to afl its suppliers, is to settle the
terms of payment when agreeing the tenms of the transaction,
ensure awareness of the terms and to abide by those terms

prowided that it 1s satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods
or services in accordance with the agreed terms and condrions. The
Company does not follow any code or standard payment practice
The number 6f days’ purchases outstanding for payment by the
Company as at 31 Decemnber 2009 was il days (2008, nil)

Pension Scheme indemnrtes

Qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions, as defined In
section 235 of the Comparues Act 2006, were in force for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 and remain in force for the
benefit of each of the directors of TV Pension Scheme Limited, an
associated company of TV plc. These indeminrty provisions cover, to
the extent permitted by law, certain losses or ltabilities incurred as a
drector or officer of ITV Pension Scherne Limuted.

Audrt

The directors who held office at the date of approval of the Directors’
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s
unaware, and each director has taken all steps that they ought to
have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
refevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditor 1s aware of that Information. As recommended by the Audit
Commttee, a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc
as auditor to the Company will be proposed at the 2010 Annual
General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting wil be held on Friday 7 May 2010

at 11 00 am at the Queen Hizabeth Il Conference Centre, Broad
Sanctuary, Westminster, tondon SW1P 3EE The Notice of the
Annual General Meeting contains an explanation of specal business
to be considered at the meeting A copy of the Notice s avallable on
the Company's website at www itvpiccom

By order of the Board

Andrew Garard
Company) Secretary
3 March 2010

TV plc

The London Television Centre
Upper Ground

London

SE19LT

Registered number 4967001

Contacts and documents for corporate govemnance

Chairman Archie Norman
Senior Independent Director mike Clasper
Intenm Chief Executive John Cresswell
Company Segetany Andrew Garard
Telephone 020 7157 3000

The following documents are available on the Cempany’s website
at www tvplccom.

— Terms of engagernent for non-executive directors;
- Schedule of matters reserved for the Board,

— Temmns of reference for Audrt, Disclosure, General Purpose,
Nomination and Remuneration Committees;

~ Guidehnes for seeking ndependent adwvice;
— Directors' indemninity; and
— Temns of reference for remuneration consultants.
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63 Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of
the annual report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and parent company finanaal staternents in accordance with
apphicable law and requlations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent campany financal statements for each finanaal year Under that law they are
required 1o prepare the Group financial statements In accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare
the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair vew of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that penod. In preparing each of the Group and parent company
financial staterments, the directors are required tor

- select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistentiy,
— make judgernents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
- forthe Group financial staterments, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financral staternents, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the parent cormpany financial statements, and

~ prepare the financal statements on the going concem basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Group and the parent company will
continue In business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safequard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for prepanng a Directors' Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and finanaal information nduded on the Company's website
Legslation n the UK governing the preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

Each of the directors, the names of whom are set out on pages 44 and 45, confirms that to the best of his or her knowledge

- the finanaial statements, prepared In accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets and
lrabihities, financial position and the profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

- the Directors’ report includes a review of the development and performance of the business and the posrtion of theissue and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a desciption of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

Andrew Garard
Company Secretary
3 March 2010
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64 Independent auditors’ report to the members
of ITV plc

We have audited the Consoldated and Company financial statements of ITV plc for the year ended 31 December 2009 set out on pages 63 to 112
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the consohdated financial statements s apphcable law and
International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financal statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Cornpany's members, as a body, for our audrt wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and audrtors

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement set out on page 63, the directors are respensible for the preparation of the
finanval staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit the finanaal staterments in accordarce
with applicable law and international Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements
A descrption of the scope of an audtt of financial staterments 15 provided on the APB's website at www frcorg ukfapbfscope/UKP

Optnion on finanaal statements
In our opinion

- the Consolidated and Company financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2009, and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

- the Group finanaal statements have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

- the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Opmion on other matters presaibed by the Compantes Act 2006
In our opinion

- the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Cormpantes Act 2006, and

- theinformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the finanaal statemnents are prepared 1s consistent with the
financal statements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

— the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audrted are not in agreerment with the
accounting records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

~ we have not receved all the mformation and explanations we require for our audit.
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the Directors’ report, set out on page 42, in relation to going concem, and

the part of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combmed
Codf\speafied for our review

Bawdan (Senior Statutory Audrtor)
dand on behalf of KPMG Audit P, Statutony Auditor
briered Accountants

8 Salisbuny Square
London EC4Y 888
3 March 2010
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65 Consolidated income statement
2009 2008

For the year endd Y1 Decermber Note £m £m
Revenue 2 1,879 2029
Operating costs {(1677) (1,818}
Eamings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional items 202 21
Net operating income/(costs) - exceptional items 5 53 97)
Arnortisation of Intangible assets 13 {59) (66}
impaiment of ntangible assets - {2,695)
Total operating costs 4 {1,683) {(4,676)
Operating profit/(joss) 196 (2.647)
Financing incorne 2N 316
Financing costs (292) (376)
Net financing costs 8 (91) (60)
Share of profit or loss of joint ventures and assoctated undertakings 14 {7 (15)
Investrnent Income - 1
Loss on sale and impaiment of non-current assets (exceptional iterns) 5 (22) a7
(Loss)gain on sale and imparment of subsidianes and investments (exceptional itermns) 5 (51) 6
Profit/(loss) before tax 25 (2,732)
Taxation 9 69 178
Profit/(loss) for the year 9 {(2,554)
Profit/(loss) attnbutable to

Qwners of the company N {2,556)

Nor-controlimg interests 3 2
Profit/(loss) for the year 9% (2,554)
Eamings/(loss) per share
Basic eamings/(loss) per share 1L 23p (659)p
Diluted eamings/(loss) per share 11 23p  (659)p

Operating exceptional items dunng the year mainly compnise reorganisation and restructunng costs, onerous property provisions and gains ansing

from pension scheme changes (see note 5 for details)
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66 Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2008

For the year ended 31 Decermber zu‘: {m
Profit/(lcss) for the year 94 (2,554)
Other comprehensive income.
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations (4) 16
Revaluation of avallable for sale financial assets 2 2
Armounts recycled to the income staterment in respect of cash flow hedges 9 -
Other movements in respect of cash flow hedges - 4
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schermes (391) (124)
Incorne tax on other comprehensive iIncome 101 35
Other comprehensive cost for the year, net of mcome tax (301) {67)
Total comprehensive cost for the year (207)  (2,621)
Total comprehensive cost attitbutable to

Owners of the Cornpany (210) (2623

Non-controlling interests 3 2
Total comprehensive cost for the year {207)  (2,621)
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67 Consolidated statement of financial position

31 Decemnber 31 Decernber

00 2008
Note Em fm
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 161 220
Intangible assets 13 1,030 1,140
Investrments in joint ventures and assocated undertakings 14 5 66
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 1 5
Held to matunty investrments 22 149 - E
Denvative financia instruments 25 151 199 E
Distribution nghts 16 16 13 3
Net deferred tax asset 9 50 - 2
1,563 1,643
Current assets
Programme nghts and other inventary 17 388 516
Trade and other recewvables due within one year 18 432 Lidy
Trade and other recevables due after more than one year 18 7 10 g
Trade and other receivables 18 439 454 -
Denvative financial nstruments 25 5 19
Cash and cash equivalents 2 582 616
Assets held for sale 27 78 3
1,492 1,608
Current liabilies
Borrowings 22 9 (259 )
Dervative financial instrurments 25 (4) )] §
Trade and other payables due within one year 19 (646) (748) E
Trade and other payables due after more than one year 20 {31) (26) ’g
Trade and other payables (677) (774) 2
Current tax habiities (31) (56)
Provisions 26 (&7) (43)
Liabiities held for sale 27 (3) -
7y (1,139

Net current assets 721 469
Norn-current Labilibes
Bomowings 22 (1431 (1,264)
Denvative financial instruments 25 {30) (25)
Defined benefit pension defiat 6 (436) (178)
Net deferred tax habiliy 9 - (55)
Other payables 2 (12) (15
Provisions 26 (29) (41)

(1,938) {1,578)
Net assets 346 534
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share caprtal 30 389 389
Share premium 120 120
Merger and other reserves 308 273
Translation reserve 11 24
Avallable for sale reserve 8 6
Retained losses (491) (286)
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 345 526
Non-controlling mterests 1 8
Total equity 346 534

lan Gnffiths -
Group Finance Diregtor
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68 Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attrbutable to equety shareholders of the parent company

Share Share Merger and Trarstaton Available for Retared Norwcontroling Toudh
capeta presmum othes reserves reserve sale resene oses Total nterests ety
£m £m im 3] £m Em fm m im
Balance at 1 January 2009 389 120 273 24 6 (286) 526 8 534
Total comprehensive iIncome for
the year
Profit - - - - - N 91 3 9%
Other comprehensive
mcome/(cost)
Revaluation of avallable for sale
financal assets - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - (&) - - {4) - )
Arnounts recycled to the incorme
staternent In respect of cash flow
hedges - - - (9 - - 9 - 9
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemnes - - - - - (397} (391) - (391)
Incorme tax on other
comprehensive income - - - - - 101 101 - 101
Total other comprehensive
Income/(cost) - = - (13) 2 (290} (301) - (301)
Total cornprehensive income/(cost)
for the year - - - (13) 2 {199) (210) 3 (207)
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contnbutions by and distributions
to owners
Equity dividends - - - = - - = (2) 2)
Equity portion of the convertible
bond - - 35 - - 1 36 - 36
Movements due to share-based
compensation - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Total contrbutions by and
distributions to owners - - 35 - - 9 44 (2) 42
Change in ownership nterest in
subsidianes that do not result na
loss of control
Non-controlling interest acquired - - - - - {15) {15) (8) (23)
Total changes in ownership interests
in subsidianes - - - - - {15) {15) (8) (23)
Total transactions with owners - - 35 - - (6) 29 (10) 19
Balance at 31 Decernber 2009 389 120 308 L 8 {&91) 345 1 346
Merger and other reserves

Merger and other reserves at 31 December 2009 include merger reserves ansing on the CGranada/Caritan and previous mergers of £119 mullion (2008.
£119 rmullion), capital reserves of £112 milion (2008 £112 million), capital redermption reserves of £36 milhon (2008 £36 rmullion), revaluation reserves
of £6 milion (2008 £6 mihon) and £35 million (2008 £ril) In respect of the equity element of the 2016 convertible bond In 2008 a transfer of
£2,429 million between retained losses and merger reserves was made in respect of the iImpairment of goodwall that arose on the Granada/Cariton
and other mergers.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing on the translation of the accounts of, and investments in, foreign
operations. Induded within the moverment in the year s £9 mallion recycled to the income staterment in respect of cash flow hedges (2008
£4 rrvihon movernent).

Available for sale reserve
The available for sale reserve compnses all movernents ansing on the revaluation and disposal of assets accounted for as avallable for sale
(see note 24)

Non-controlling tnterests
Included within the net £7 mullion movernent in the year 1s £3 million profit attnbutable to non-controlling interests, net of £2 million for dvidends
paid to such interests and £8 mullion in respect of the 25% non-controlling interest element purchased 1N GMTV in Novernber 2009
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69 Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent compary

Share Share Merger and Trandabon  Avalable for Retaned Non-controling Total
capdal premum  olher reserves. reserve sPeresve  eaTINSAIoNSes) Total witerests ey
£m £y im £m £m Em fm £m im

Balance at 1 January 2008 389 120 2,702 4 4 14 3,233 6 3,239
Total comprehensive income/{cost)
for the year
(Loss)yprofit - - - - - {2,556) (2,556} 2 (2,554)
Other comprehensive g
income/(cost)
Revaluation of available for sale &
financal assets - - - - 2 - 2 - 2 %
Exchange differences on translation
of forexgn operations - - - 16 - - 16 - 16
Movernent m respect of cash flow
hedges - - - 4 - - [ - 4
Actuanat losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - {124) {124) - (124)
Incorne tax on other
cormnprehensive Incorme - - - — - 35 35 - 35
Transfer from merger reserve - - (2429) - - 2429 - - -
Total other comprehensive costs - - (2,429 20 2 2,340 (67) - 67
Total comprehensive Income/{costs)
for the year - - (2,429) 20 2 {216) (2,623) 2 (2,621)
Transacttons with owners, recorded -
directly i equity z
Contnbutions by and distributions §
to owners a
Equity dividends - - - - - (96) (96) - (96) g
Movements due to share-based 3
compensation - - - - - 12 12 - 12 w
Total contnibutions by and
distributions to owners - - - - - (84) (84) - (84)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (84) (84) - (84)
Batance at 31 December 2008 389 120 273 24 6 (286) 526 8 534
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70 Consolidated statement of cash flows
2009 2008

For the yearended 31 Decermber Note £m £m im fm
Cash flows from operating actmties
Operating profit/(loss) before exceptional items 143 (2,550)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 38 36
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 13 59 2,761
Share-based compensation 7 11 10
Degeasel(increase) n programme nghts and other inventony, and distnbution nghts 125 {82)
Decrease/(increase) m recenvables Ll (34)
{Decrease)increase n payables (15) 49
Movement in working capital 121 (67)
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 72 190
Cash flow relating to operating exceptional iterms.

Net operating income/(costs) 5 53 (97}

(Increase)decrease in payables and provisions and the impact of the exceptional

pension gamn (116) 57
Cash outflow from exceptional items (63) {40)
Cash generated from operations 309 150
Defined benefit pension defict funding (31) (39)
Interest received 44 40
interest paid on bank and other loans (116) (99)
Interest paid on finance leases (&) (4)
Net taxation received i 43

{66) (59)

Net cash inflow from operating actvities 243 91
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired
and debt repaid on acquisition 29 (50) &)
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale - 35
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 1
Acguisition of property, plant and equipment (14) (32)
Acquisition of Intangible assets (13) (21)
Acquisition of associates and joint ventures - (3)
Loans granted to associates and joint ventures 14 {6} (26)
Loans repaid by associates and jont ventures 14 4 20
Proceeds fror sale of subsicharies and avallable for sale iInvestments 4 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (71} (32)
Cash flows from finanang activities
Bank and other loans — armounts repaid (508) (25)
Bank and other loans - amounts raised 516 110
Caprital element of finance lease payments 7 (6)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 29 {23) =
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interest {2) -
Repayment of loan by employees' benefit trust - 2
Purchase of own shares via employees’ benefit trust (3) -
(Purchase)/sale of held to matunty investments 22 (150) 100
Equity dmdends paid (25) (123)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from finandng activities (202) 58
Net (dearease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (30 17
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 22 616 498
Effects of exchange rate changes and farr value moverments on cash
and cash equivalents = 1
Less. cash related to disposal group (note 28) 28 (%) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22 582 616
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71 Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

11) Bass of preparation
The Group accounts consolidate those of TV pic, (*the Company*), a company domuctled i the United Kingdom and its subsidianes (together
referred to as "the Group”) and the Group's Interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.
As required by EU law (1AS Regulation EC 1606/2002) the Group's accounts have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS™}
The accounts are principally prepared on the historical cost basis. Areas where other bases are applied are identified in the accounting
polices below
The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP
The disclosures on pages 40-42 in respect of lquidity nsk and going concem form part of the audited accounts.
The Group has adopted the following standards and amendments effective from 1 January 2009 that are relevant to these financial statements:

- IAS 1 *Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Finanaal Statements — A revised presentation” The Group has presented both a consclidated
statement of comprehensive Income and a consolidated statement of changes in equity as pnmary financial statements. The consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income effectively replaces the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense As a result, the Group
presents In the consohdated staternent of changes in equity all owner changes in equity, where as all non-owner changes in equity are presented
in the consohdated statement of comprehensive Incormne The Group has elected to present a separate consolidated iIncome staterment.
Cornparative information has been re-presented so that it 1s also in conformity with the revised standard, Since the adoption of this accounting
standard only impacts presentation aspects there 15 no iImpact on eamings/(loss) per share

— IFRS 2 "Armendrment {o IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment. Vesting Condrtions and Cancellations” The defirtion of vesting conditions has been
amended to danfy that vesting conditions are limrted to service condrtions and perforrmance conditions. Conditions other than service or
performance conditions are considered non-vesting conditions. This has had no matenal impact on the Group's results.

- IFRS 7 “Amendments to IFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments” These amendments enhance disclosures over far value
measurements relating to financiak instruments and iImproving disclosures over liquidity nsk. Specifically, as aresult of adopting the amendment,
the Group has ntroduced a three-level disclosure hierarchy for finanaal instruments held at fair value (see note 24) Since the adoption of this
accounting standard only impacts presentation aspects there 1s no iImpact on eamings/(loss) per share

~ Improvernents to IFRS 1 - Various standards amended - The improvernents contain 24 amendments that result in accounting changes for
presentation, recagrition or measurement purposes and 11 terminology or editonal amendments that have no or onfy minimal effects on
accounting but have been reflected where relevant in the accounting polices set out in Note 1210 130

The Group has also chosen to early adopt the following standards that are effective from 1 July 2009

— IFRS 3 "Business Combinations (2008)" and 1AS 27 "Consolidated and Separate Financial Staternents (2008)” for all business combinations and
acquisitions of non-controlling nterests occurnng in the financial year starting 1 January 2009 The Group has apphied these standards for the
acquisittons disclosed in note 29 Under the new accounting poticy, the acquisition of the non-controlling interest of 25% in GMTV 1s accounted
for as a transaction with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefare no goodwilt 1S recognised as a result of such transactions.
Previously, goodwill was recognised ansing on the acquisition of a non-controlling nterest n a subsidiany, which represented the excess of the
cost of the additional mvestrment over the carrying amount of the interest in the net assets acquired at the date of acquisition The change in
accounting poliay 1s applied prospectively and had no matenalimpact on eamings/(toss) per share

The accounting pohicies set out below, except as noted above, have been applied consistently in presenting the consalidated
finanaial nformation

12) Revenue recognition

Revenye 15 stated exclusive of VAT and consists of sales of goods and serices to third parties. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of ownership and control of the goods sold and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Key classes of revenue are recognised on the following bases.

Advertising and sponsorship on transmission

Programme production on delvery

Programme nghts when contracted and avallable for explotation
Partiaipation revenues as the service 1s provided

Revenue on barter transactions is recognised only when the goods or senvices being exchanged are of a dissmilar nature Parbigpation revenues
relate to nteractive and ‘red button’ services.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

13) Segmental analyss
In accordance with IFRS 8, operating segments are reported in a manner that is consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Board
of Drectors, the chief operating decision maker

14) Subsidianes, assoaates, special purpose entiies and joint ventures

Subsidianes are entrties that are directhy or indirectiy controlled by the Group Control exists where the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating pohcres of the entity so as to obtain benefits frorm its activities. in assessing control, potential voting rights that are cusrentiy
exercisable or convertible are taken nto account

A jaint venture 1s an entity in which the Group holds an interest under a contractual arrangement where the Group and one or more other
parties undertake an economis actvity that 1s subject to joint control The Group accounts for Its interests in joint ventures using the equity method.

An assocate 1S an enbity, other than a subsidiany or joint venture, over which the Group has sgrificant influence Significant influence is the
power to partiopate In the financial and operating decisions of an entity but s not cantrol or joint control over those policies. These investments
are accounted for using the equrty method. Under the equity method the investment in the entity 1s stated as one line item at cost plus the
Investor's share of retained post-acquisition profits and other changes i net assets.

The Group establishes special purpose entities (SPES) for trading and investment purposes. An SPE is consolidated If, based on an evaluation of
the substance of 1ts relationships with the Group and the SPE's nisks and rewards, it 1s conduded that the Group controls the SPE SPEs controlled by
the Group are established under terms that impose strict imitations on the decisilon-making powers of the SPES’ management and that result in the
Group recemving the majonty of the benefits related to the SPE's operations and net assets, being exposed to the majorrty of nsks incidentai to the
SPE's activities and recerve the majonty of the residual or ownership risks related to the SPE's or therr assets.

15) Cumrent/non-current distinction
Current assets include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and assets expected to be realised in, or intended
for sale or consumption In, the course of the Group's operating cycle Alfother assets are classified as non-current assets.

Current lrabilittes include iiabilities held prmanly for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settled in the course of the Group's operating
aycle and those liabilities due within one year from the reporting date All other labiltres are classified as non-current habilities.

16) Accounting estmates and judgements
The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies It afso requires the use of estirmates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, abilities, ncome
and expenses. Actual resutts may differ from these estimates. Estmates and underlying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the pencd in which the estimates are revised and in any future peniods affected

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where the most sensitive estimates and assumptions are significant to the
financial statements, are set out In accounting pelicies 17 - 1 14 below

17) Intangible assets
Business combinattons and goodwill All business combinattons that have occurred since 1 Januany 2009 are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method Goodwill 1s measured as the far value of the consideration transferred induding the recogrised amount of any non-controling
interests i the acquiree, less the net recognised amount (generally farr value) of the dentifiable assets acquired and lhabilities assumed, all measured
at the acquisition date Subsequent adjustments te the farr values of net assets acquired are made within 12 meonths of the acquisition date where
onginal fair values were determined provisionally These adjustments are accounted for from the date of acquistion The Group measures a non-
controlling interest at its proportionate interest in the identifiable net assets of the acquiree Transaction costs that the Group incurs In connection
with a business combination, such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional and consulting fees, are expensed as Incurred All business
combinations that have occurred since 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2008 have been accounted for by applying the purchase method in
accordance with IFRS 3 *Business Combinations {2004)" Goodwill on these combinations represents the difference between the cost of the
acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired

For business combinations pror ta 1 January 2004, but after 30 September 1998, goodwili 1s included at its deemed cost, which represents the
amount recarded under UK GAAP at that time less amortisation up to 31 Decemnber 2003 The dassification and accounting treatment of business
combinations occurnng pnor to 1 Januany 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under IFRS 1 Goodwillis
stated at its recoverable amount being cost less any accunulated impairment losses and 1s allocated to cash generating units.

Goodwll ansmg on acquisitions prior to 30 Septermber 1998 was recognised as a deduction from equity.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

17) Intangible assets (continued)
Other mtangible assets Other intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation except those identifiable
intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination which are shown at fair value at the date of acquisiion less accumulated amortisation
identifiable Intangible assets are those which can be sold separately or which anse from legal nghts.

In determining the farr value of intangible assets arising on acquisttion the directors are required to make Judgements regarding the timing
and amount of future cash flows applicable to the businesses being acqured, discounted using an approprate discount rate Such judgernents are
based on cument budgets and forecasts, extrapolated for an appropnate period taking into account growth rates, expected changes to selling prices,
operating costs and the expected useful lives of assets following purchase judgements are also made regarding whether and for how long licences
will be renewed The directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre tax rates that reflect curent market assessments of the ime value
of money and the nsks speafic to the businesses being acquired The values of brands acquired are assessed by applying aroyalty rate to the
expected future revenues over the Iife of the brand Licences are valued on a start-up basis. Custarner relationships and contracts are valued based
on expected future cash flows from those existing at the date of acquisiion Contributory charges from other assets are taken as appropnate with
cash flows then being discounted back to their present value

Amortisation Amortisation Is charged to the income statement over the estimated useful lves of intangible assets unless such lives are judged to be
indefinite Goodwill 1s not amortised but is tested for impairment at each reporting date Internally generated scftware development costs inrelation
toitv comn are expensed as incurred The estimiated useful iives and amortisation methods for each major class of intangible asset are as follows.

Film libraries Sumof digits 20 years
Licences Straight line 11t0 17 years
Brands Straight line up to 11 years
Customer contracts Straight line up to 6 years
Custorner relationships Straight line 5 to 10 years
Software development costs Straight line 110 5years

18) Impaimnent of assets

Non-financral assets that have an indefinite usefui Iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for Impairment. Non-financial assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impaiment whenever events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the
carmying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised in the incorme statement for the amount by which the asset’s camying
amount exceeds Its recoverable amount, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating unrts)

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use The value In use 1s based on the discounted present
value of the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash generating unit to which the asset relates Estimates are used in denving these cash
flows and the discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the nsks specific to the asset and the time value of money The complexity
of the estimation process and issues refated to the assumptions, risks and uncertainties inherent with the application of the intangible asset
accounting poliaes affect the amounts reported in the financial staternents. In particular, if different estimates of the projected future cash flows
or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-tenm growth rate were made, these changes could matenally alter the projected
value of the cash flows of the asset, and as a consequence matenally different amounts would be reported in the financial staterments.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carying amount of goodwill allocated to
these units, and then te reduce the camying amount of other assets in the unit on a prorata basis

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impaimment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s camying amount does not exceed the carmying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if ne iImparrnent loss had been recogrised Impairment losses inrespect
of goodwill are not reversed

19) Programme nghts
Where programming, sports nghts and film nghts are acquired for the pnmary purpose of broadcasting, these are recognised within current assets.

Assets are recognised when the Group contrals, In substance, the respective assets and the nsks and rewards associated with them For acquired
programme nghts assets are recognised as payments are made and are recognised in full when the acquired programming 15 available for
transmussion Programming produced intemally, erther for the purpose of broadcasting or to be sold in the normal course of the Group's operating
cyde, 15 recognised within current assets at production cost.

Programme costs and nghts, including those acquired under sale and leaseback arrangements, are written off to aperating costs in full on first
transmmussion except certain film nights and progranming for digital channels which are wiitten of f over a number of transmissions. Programme
costs and nghts not yet written off are included in the statement of finanoal position at the lower of cost and net realisable value In assessing
net realisable value consideration Is given to the contracted sales prce and estmated costs to complete for programmes i production, and the
estimated arime value of programme stock, sports nghts and film nghts. In assessing the artime value of prograrmme stock and film nghts
consideration is given to whether the number of transmissions purchased can be efficiently played out over the licence penod Any reversals
of write downs for programme costs and nghts are recognised as a reduction in operating costs.

ITV entered into sale and leaseback agreements In retation to certain programme titles, Related outstanding sale and leaseback obligations,
which compnise the pnncipal and accrued interest, are inciuded within borrowings. The finance related element of the agreement 15 charged to the
Incorme statement aver the temm of the lease on an effective interest basis. Sale and leaseback obligations are secured against an equivalent cash
balance held within cash and cash equivalents.
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1 Accounting pohicies (continued)
110) Trade recevables

Trade recewvables are recogrised initially and subsequently at amortised cost. The Group prowdes goods and services to substantially all its custorers

on credit terms. Eshmates are ysed in determining the level of recevables that will not, in the opimion of the directors, be callected These estimates
inctude such factors as histoncal expenence, the curment state of the UK and overseas econormies and industry specific factors. A provision for
imparment of trade recevables is established when there 1s sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all arnounts due according
to therr ongmnal temms.

111) Taxatron
The tax charge for the penod compnses bath current and deferred tax and is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date Taxation s recognised In the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and the staterment of changes In
equity according to the accounting treatment of the related transaction

The Group recognises hiabilities for anticipated tax 1ssues based on estmates of the addibonal taxes that are lkely to become due which requires
Judgement. Amounts are accrued based on management’s interpretation of specific tax law and the hkefihood of settlerent. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters s different from the amounts that were intially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the penod in which such determination 1 made

Cumment tax 1s the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustrment to tax payable n respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax 15 provided on any temporarny differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for finanaal reporting purposes
and those for taxation purposes. The fallowing temporary differences are not provided for

- the mtial recogrutton of goodwill,
- the intbial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and
- differences relating to investments in subsichianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse In the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities.
A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it.is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utiise the temporary
difference Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore, involves judgement regarding the timing and level of future taxable income Deferred tax

assets and hiabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they refate to taxes levied by the same authonty and the Group has the nght of set off

112) Employee benefits
Defined contnbubion schermes Gbligations under the Group's defined contnbution schemes are recognised as an operating cost in the iIncome
statement as incurred

Defined benefit schemes The Group's abligation Inrespect of defined benefit pension schemes is calculated separately for each scherne by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for therr service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determmine s present value and the fair value of scherme assets 1s deducted The discount rate used 1s the gield at the valuation date
on high quality corporate bonds. The Group takes adwice from independent actuanes relating to the appropnateness of the assumptions which
nclude life expectancy of members, expected salany and pension increases, Inflation and the return on scherne assets. It 1s important to note,
however, that comparatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the Income statement and statement
of financial position

The calculations are performed by a quabified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuanial gans and losses are recognised in full
in the period in which they anse through the statement of comprehensive incorme

Share-based cornpensation The Group operates a nurmber of share-based compensation schemes The fair value of the equity instrument 1s
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting penod through the income statement with a comesponding increase in equity The fair value

of the share options and awards 1s measured using erther a Monte Carlo or Black-Scholes mode! as appropnate taking into account the terms and
conditions of the Indvidual scheme Under these vatuation methods, the share price for ITV plc 1s projected to the end of the performance penod
as1s the Total Shareholder Retum for TV ple and the comparies in the cormparater groups. Based on these projections, the number of awards that
will vest and their present value 1s determined The valuation of these share-based payments also requires estimates to be made in respect of the
number of options that are expected to be exeraised Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. Vesting condrtions are imited to service condrtions and performance condrtions. Conditions other than service or performance
conditions are considered non-vesting conditions. At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision to onginal estimates, If any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

113) Denvative finanaal insttuments and hedging activities
The Group uses a imited number of denvative financial nstruments to hedge Its exposure to fluctuations in interest and ather foreign exchange
rates. The Group does not hold or 1ssue denvative instruments for speculative purposes.
Derivative finanaal instruments are inially recogrised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at far value with the moverment recorded
In the Income statement within net financing costs. Denvatives with a positive farr value are recorded as assets and negative fair values as liabilities.
The farr value of foreign currency forward contracts 1s determined by using the difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted
forward exchange rate at the reporting date The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would receve or pay to
terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of swap counterparties.
Third party valuations are used to farr value the Group's dervatives. The valuation techniques use inputs such as interest rate yreld curves and
currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying mstruments and correlations between inputs.
Where a dervative financial instrument 1s designated as a hedge of the vanability in cash flows of a recogrised asset or liability, or a hughly
probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or less on the denvative financial nstrument 15 recognised directly m equity.
Any ineffectve portion of the hedge 1s recognised immediately n the income statement.
For financial assets and liabilities dlassified at fair value through profit or loss the farr value change and interest income/expense are
not separated

114) Provisions

A provision s recognised In the staternent of finanaal position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ansing from past
events, it 1S probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be measured reliably
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows by a rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money and the risks speafic to the liabiity The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a financing cost. These provisions are estimates for which
the amount and timing of actual cash flows are dependent on future events.

115) Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Certam itemns of property,
plant and equipment that had been revalued to fair value pnor to 1 Januany 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, are measured on the basis of
deemed cost, being the revalued amaount less depreciation up to the date of transition.

Leases Finance leases are those which transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee Assets held under such leases are
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated on a straight ine basis aver their estmated useful ives. Outstanding finance lease
obligations, which compnse the pnnaipal plus accrued interest, are ncluded within berrowings. The finance element of the agreements is charged to
the income staterment over the term of the lease on an effective tnterest basis.

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis aver the lease term

Depreaation Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estmated residual value on a straight ine basis
over thetr estimated useful lives. The annual depreciation charge 1s sensitive to the estimated useful life of each asset and the expected residual
value at the end of its life The major cateqones of property, plant and equipment are depreciated as follows.

Freehold land not depreaated

Freehold buildings up to 60 years

Leasehold properties shorter of residual lease term or 60 years

Leasehold improvernents shorter of residuat lease term or estimated useful Iife
Vehicles, equipment and fitings 3to 20 years

116) Distnbution nghts

Programme rights acquired pnmanty for the purposes of distnbution are classified within the statement of financal position as non-cument assets.
They are recognised initially at cost and charged through the income staterment over either a three or five year penod depending on genre

The estimated lives are based on historical expenence with similar nghts as well as antiapation of future events.

117) Available for sale financial assets

Avallable for sale financial assets cormpnse gitts and equity secunties that do not meet the defintion of substdiaries, joint ventures or associates.
They are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recogrised directlty in the available for sale reserve in equity, unless the loss 15 a

permanent impaimment when It 1s recorded in the ncome statement.

118) Forexgn cumenaes

Functional and presentational curenay ttems included in the financal statements in each of the Group's enttities are measured using the currency
of the pnmany economic ervironment in which the entity operates (*the functional currency’) The consohdated financial staternents are presented
1n pounds sterling ("£7), which 1s the Companty’s functional and presentational cumency

Foresgn currenay transactions Transactions in foreign cumrenaes are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity at the
rate of exchange ruting at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date are translated

into the functional currency of the respective Group entity at the rate of exchange ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences anaing on
translation are recogrised in the Income statement. Non-monetarny assets and habiities measured at histoncal cost are transiated into stering
at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

118) Foreign cumenaes (continued)

Financial statements of foreign operations The assets and Irabilities of forergn operations are translated into the functional currency of the Group at
the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Group at the average rate of exchange ruling dunng the financial penod Exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised directly in the
translation reserve 1 equity and in other comprehensive Incorne

Net investment in foreign operations Exchanige differences arising on the translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken directly
to the translation reserve within equity

Inrespect of all foreign operations only those translation differences anising since 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, are presented
as a separate companent of equity On disposal of an Investment i a foreign operation the assocated translation reserve balance s released to the
Incorne statement as part of the gain or foss on disposal

119) Exceptional items

Exceptional tems, as disclosed on the face of the iIncome statement, are items which due to their matenal and non-recurming nature have been
classified separately in order to draw them to the attention of the reader of the accounts. They are included in the adjustrnents that, in
management’s judgernent, are required in order to show more accurately the business performance of the Group in a consistent manner

and to reflect how the business 1s managed and measured on a dau-to-day basis.

1.20) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and ¢ash equivalents compnses cash balances, call deposits with matunty of less than or equal to three months from the date of acquisition,
cash held to meet certain finance lease commitments and giits over which unfunded pension promises have a charge

1.21) Trade payables
Trade payables are recogrised intially at far value and subsequently at amortised cost.

1.22) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised inbially at farr value including directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent measurernent at amortised cost
using the effective nterest rate method The difference between the amount inrtially recogrised and the redernption value 1s recorded in the
Incorne staterment over the penod of the liability on an effective interest basis

Where the Group has identified that any such liabilities result in a mismatch between the accounting liability and the related dervative, the
Group has adopted the fair value option provision of IAS 39 (revised) to efiminate this accounting mismatch Managerment consider that this fair
value treatrent 1s mare appropnate than amoartised cost as the moverments in these financial instruments largely offset each other and, as a result,
they are managed on an aggregated basis. The effect of this s that the Group recogrises any such financial labilities at fair value in all penods
subsequent to imitial recognition, with resultant gains or losses recorded in the Income staterent.

123) Non-current assets held for sale, disposal groups and discontinued operations
Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are available for mmediate sale and sale 15 highly probable

On initial dlassification as hetd for sale, non-current assets or compeonents of a disposal group are re-measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carmying amount and fair value less costs
to sell Any impaimnent loss on a disposal group 15 first allocated to goodwill and then to remaining assets and liabilities on a pro-rata basis except to
programming nghts and other inventory, financial assets and deferred tax assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting polices. Impaiment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised in
the Income statement. Gains are not recognised In excess of any cumulative tmpasment loss

No amortisation or depreciation 1s charged on non-current assets (Including those In disposal groups) dassified as held for sale Assets classified
as held for sale are disclosed separately on the face of the staternent of financial position and dassiied as current assets or habiliies, with disposal
groups being separated between assets held for sale and habilities held for sale

Disposal groups are dassified as discontinued operations where they represent a major line of business or geographical area of operations,
The income statement for the comparative penod is re-presented to show the discontinued operations separate from the continuing operations.

1.24) MMV shares held by Employees’ Benefit Trust (EBT)
Transactions of the Group-sponsored EBT are included in the Group's accounts. In particular, the EBT's purchases of shares in iTV pic are debrted
directly to equity

1.25) Dmdends
Dmdends are recognised through equity on the earlier of ther approval by the Company’s sharehclders or ther payment.

1.26) Investment income
Investment income compnses dvidends receved from the Group's Investments. Dmdend tncame is recognised in the income statement on the
date the Group's nght to receve payment Is established

1.27) Net financing costs

Net finanang costs compnses interest income on funds invested (Induding gilts classified as avallable-for-sale financial assets), gans/flosses on the
disposal of financial nstruments, changes in the fair value of financial Instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss, interest expense
on borrowings and finance leases, unwinding of the discount on provisions and foreign exchange gans/tosses. Interest income and expense 15
recogrised as it acaves in profit or loss, using the effective interest method

1.28) Derecognibion and recognition

The Group recogrises a financial asset or iability when it becomes a party to the contract. Financial instruments are derecognised from the balance
sheet when the contractual cash flows expire or when the Group no onger retains control of substantially all the nsks and rewards under the
instrument.

1.29) Held to matunty assets

Where the Group has the positive Intent and ability to hold financral assets to maturity, they are classified as held to matunty Held to maturity
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value induding any directly attnbutable transaction costs. Subsequent to initral recognrtion, held to
matunity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any Impaimment losses.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

130) Compound finanaal instruments
Compound financal Instrurments 1ssued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the option of the holder
The liability component of a compound financial instrument 1s recogrised initially at the fair value of a simlar hability that does not have an
equity conversion option The equity component is recogrised initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound finanaal
mnstrument as a whole and the fair value of the hability component. Any directly attnbutable transaction costs are allocated to the lability and
equity components in proportion to their initial camying amounts.
Subseguent to intial recognition, the ability component of a compound finanoal instrument 1s measured at amortised cost using the effective
nterest method The equity compenent of a compound finanaal instrument s not remeasured subsequent to Nl recognition

131} Application of new EU endorsed accounting standards, amendments to existing EU endorsed standards and interpretations

Set out below are the standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective n 2009 but are not considered refevant to the Group's results

New standards, amendments and interpretations endorsed by the EU and effective in 2009

Not retevant to the Group's results
TAS 39 Amendment to |1AS 39 Reclassification of  This amendment darified the effective date and transition requirernents of the
Financial Assets: Effective Date and amendment to |AS 39, and states that the entities will apply this amendment
Transition onor after 1 July 2008
IAS 23 Amendrrent to [AS 23 Borrowang Costs. Comprehensive revision to prohibit immediate expensing of borrowing costs for
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiion, construction or production
of a qualifying asset.
IFRST1&IAS27  Amendments toIFRS 1 and 1AS 27 The armendrnents allow first-time adopters relief frorn certain requirements of
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1AS 27 and by remaoving the defirution of the cost method from the standard
Jointly-Controlled Entity or Assocate and replacing it with a requirement to present dividends as income in the separate
financial statements of the investor
IAS 1 &IAS 32 Financial Instrurnents Presentation - The amendments provide exemptions from the requirement to dassify as a

Amendments to IAS 32 and 1AS 1 Puttable hability, financial instruments under which an entity has an unavoidable obligation
Financial Instrurnents and Obligations to delver cash
Ansing on Liquidation

IFRIC 12 Servce Concession Arrangements. This Interpretation provides guidance to operators of public to private service
concession arrangement in relation to certain recogrition and measurement issues.
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction Thus interpretation deals with the accounting for revenue ansing frorm agreements
of Real Estate for the construction of real estate
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in This interpretation deals with hedge accounting for the foreign currency nsk ansing
A Foreign Operation from a net nvestment in a foreign operation

Other than those standards the Group has elected to adopt early {as disclosed in Note 1 1), a number of new standards, amendments and
nterpretations are not yet effective for the Group and have not been applied in prepanng these consolidated financal statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations endorsed by the EU but not yet effectve

Not relevant to the Group’s results
1AS 39 Amendment to IAS 39 Finanoal The amendment danfies how the prnciples that deterrmine whether a hedged
Instrurments. Recognition and risk or portton of cash flows s eligible for designation should be applied in particutar

Measurement: Eligible Hedged tems. situations. The amendment addresses two particular situations, nduding the
designation of a one-sided nsk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation in
particular situations. The amendment applies to hedging relationships in the scope
of 1AS 33 and 15 effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

IFRIC9&1AS39  Amendments to IFRIC 9 and I1AS 39 Amendment toIFRIC 9 and IAS 39 requires an entity to assess whether an
Embedded Dervatves embedded denvative 15 required to be separated from a host contract when the
entrty reclassifies a hybnd financial asset out of the farr value through profit or loss
category and 15 effective for annual penods beginning on or after 30 June 2009

IFRIC17 Distnbutions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners. The interpretation addresses the accounting when an entity distnbutes non-cash
assets as dvdends to its owners, by focusing on the measurement of the dwdend
payable and is effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 Juty 2009

IFRIC18 Transfers of assets from customers. This interpretation deals with the accounting for contnbuted property, plant and
equipment, whereby an entity receves from a custorner an rtem of property, plant
and equipment that the entrty must then use erther to connect the customer
to a netwark or to provide the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods
or services or to do both. It 1s effective for annual peniods beginnuing on or after
1 July 2009

1AS 32 Classification of Righits Issues. The amendment requires that nghts, options or wamrants to acquire a fixed number
of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any cumenay are
equity instruments «f the entity offers the nghts, options or warrants pro rata to all
of its existing owners of the same dlass of 1ts own non-dervative equity instrurments.
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2 Operating segmental information
The Board of Directors considers the business prmarily from a product perspective The reportable segments are therefore Broadcasting & Online,
ITV Studios and Other All of the segments reported meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8, which the Group first adopted in 2007

Management has determmined the reportable segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors. The Broadcasting & Online
segrment now includes the results of the previously disclosed Online segment which 1s now managed as part of the Broadcasting business.

The comparatives have been restated in this note to reflect this sgnificant change in the nature of the Group’s operations. The Global Content
segment has changed its name to [TV Studios to reflect the rebranding of this business durng the year

Broadcasting & Online 15 responsible for commissioning and scheduling programmes an the ITV channels, marketing and programme publicrty
and onhne nghts explortation It denves its revenue primarily from the sale of advertising artime and sponsorship Other sources of revenue are from
online advertising, prermium rate services and the digital terrestnai mulbiplex, SDN The Broadcasting & Online segment also Includes the Group's
Investment in 5TV Group plc.

ITV Studios (formerly Global Content) derves its revenue primarly from ITV Studtos UK (a commeraal programme production company),
international production centres IN Amenca, Germany, Sweden and Australia and the businesses in ITV Studios Global Entertanment. A proportion
of revenue 1s generated intemally via programime sales to the Broadcasting & Online segment. ITV Studios Global Entertainment sells programrming,
explaits merchandising and licensmg worldwide, and 15 a distnbutor of DVD entertainment in the UK,

Other comprises the Group’s 100% interest in Carlton Screen Advertising ("CSA™), which sells cinema screen advertising in the UK, and was put into
creditors voluntary iquidation in the year and its 50% interest i Screenvision US and Europe, which operate cnema screen advertising businesses in
continental Europe and the United States and were held for sale at the reporting date

The segment information provided for the reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 Decernber 2008 15 as follows:

Broadaasting & Onfine TV Studios. Other Corsolidated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm m £m fm im £m fm
Total segment revenue 1,543 1,683 597 622 1 40 2,141 2,345
Intersegrment revenue - - (262) (316) - - {262) (316)
Revenue from extemal
customers 1,543 1,683 335 306 1 40 1,879 2,029
EBITA before exceptional
Items m 120 91 90 - 1 202 21
Share of {loss)/profit from
Joint ventures and
associated undertakings (&) (4) - - (3) {11) {7) {15)
Total segment assets 1,295 1,704 745 645 - 65 2,040 2414
Total assets include
Investments in associates
and joint ventures 3 14 2 1 — 51 5 66
Additions to non-current
assets (other than
financia! instruments) 35 37 29 44 - 10 64 91
Total segment habidibes (489) (519) (256) {294) - {3 (745) (818)

Depreqation in the year was £38 million {2008 £36 mulfion), of which £25 milien (2008 £25 million) relates to the Broadcasting & Online, £13 mullion
(2008 £10 million) to ITV Studios and £nil (2008 £1 mullion) to Other

Sales between segments are camied out at am's length The revenue from external parties reported to the Board of Directors 1s measured in
amanner consistent with the income staterment. Incorne staternent and statement of financial position allocations between reportable segments
are performed on a consistent basis with the exception of pension costs, which are allocated, and pension assets and liabilities, which are not
This reflects the basis of reporting to the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors assess the performance of the reportable segments based on a measure of EBITA before exceptional items, which s
defined as operating profit/(loss) before imparment and amortisation of iIntangible assets and operating Incomef{cost) - exceptional iterms.

This measurement basis excludes the effect of non+ecuming income and expenditure Amortisation, investrment income and share of
profit/{losses) of joint ventures and assocates are also excluded to reflect more accurately how the business is managed and measured on aday to
day basis. Net finanaing costs are not allocated to segments as this type of activty is driven by the central treasury function, which manages the
cash position of the Group

A reconcliation of EBITA before exceptional items to profit/{loss) before tax 1s provided as follows:

x09 2008

£m fm

EBITA before exceptional tems 202 211
Operating income{costs) — exceptional tems 53 (97)
Amortisation and iImpairment of intangible assets (59) (27610)
Net financing costs (91) (60)
Share of lgsses of joint ventures and associated undertakings ) (15)
Investment income - 1
Loss on sale and impaimment of non-current assets {exceptional items) (22) (17
{Loss)/gain on sale and impaimnent of subsidianes and iInvestments (exceptional items) (51) 6

Profit/(loss) before tax 25 (2,732)
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2 Operating segmental information (continued)
The amounts prowided to the Board of Directors wath respect to total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that of the finanaal
staternents. These assets are aflocated based on the operations of the segment.

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows.

009 208

m £m

Segment assets 2,040 2414
Unallocated:

Held to matunty investments 149 -

Assets held for sale 78 3

Total denvative finanaal assets 156 218

Net deferred tax assets 50 -

Cash and cash equvalents 582 616

Total assets per the statement of finanaal position 3,055 3,251

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with respect to total liabilties are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financal
statements. These habilties are allocated based on the operations of the segment.
Reportable segments' habilibies are reconciled to total habilities as follows

2009 2008
£m fm
Segment labiities 745 813
Unallocated
Interest accruals 23 30
Dvidends payable - 25
Total dervative finanaal habilities 3% 32
Total borrowings 1,640 1,523
Current tax habilities N 56
Net deferred tax liability - 55
Defined benefit pension deficit 436 178
Total babilites per the statement of finanaial position 2,709 2,717

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom. Its revenue from external customers i the United Kingdomn 1s £1,621 million
(2008 £1,821 million), and the total revenue from extemal custorners in ather countries is £258 muliion (2008 £208 million)

The total of non-cumrent assets other than financial nstruments, deferred tax assets, and ernployrment benefit assets (there are no nghts ansing
under iInsurance contracts) located in the UK 15 £1,212 millon (2008 £1,443 miltion), and the total of these noncurrent assets located in other
countresis £1 million (2008 £1 million)

Revenues of approximately £324 million (2008 £382 million), £226 million (2008 £236 mulion), £194 rillon (2008. £222 million) and
£190 milion {2008 £193 mullion) are denved from four extemal customers. The Group's major custorners are all media buying agencres.

These revenues are attnbutable to the Broadcasting & Online segment and are from the only customers which indmvidually represent over
10% of the Group's revenues.

3 Staff costs
2009 2004
£m £m
Wages and salanes 254 287
Socil secunty and other costs 3 36
Share-based compensation (see note 7) 11 10
Pension costs 16 14
Total 304 347
Staff costs within exceptional items were £32 million (2008 £26 mullion) pnnapally relating to redundancy payments and reorganisation costs.
Total staff costs nduding exceptional tems for the year ended 31 December 2009 are £336 million (2008 £373 million)
In addrtion to the pensicn costs shown above, 1s a net debit to net finanang costs of £15 mulion (2008 credrt of £16 million) and a net debit
to retained eamings in respect of actuanal losses of £391 mullion (2008, losses of £124 milion).
The weighted average number of employees employed by the Group duning the year was.
2009 2008
Broadcasting & Online 2,606 3,320
TV Studios 1,908 2338
Other 5 139
Total 4519 5,597

Detalls of the drectors’ emoluments, share options, pension entitlernents and leng-term incentive scheme interests are set out in the
Remuneration report.
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4 Total operating costs

2009 2008
£m fm

Staff costs
Before exceptional tems 304 347
Exceptional itemns 32 26

336 373
Depredation, amorttsation and impaitnment
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 59 2,761
Depreciation 38 36

97 2,797
Other operating costs
Broadcasting schedule costs 1,006 1,125
Broadcasting transmission costs 97 94
Broadcasting industry costs 40 44
Licence fees 22 30
CSA direct costs 1 33
ITV Studios non-staff costs 233 217
Operating lease costs 14 19
Other operating exceptional items (85) 71
Audit and non-audit fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc (see below) 2 2
Other 106 97
1,436 1,732

Less. Staff costs and other costs charged to broadcasting schedule costs {186) (226)
Total operating costs 1,683 4,676

ITV Studios non-staff costs are net of the recharge for programmes supplied to ITV Broadcasting channels (which 1s elminated on consolidation
as intemal revenue)

The Group engages KPMG Audit Pic ("KPMG") on assignments addrtional to therr statutary audit duties where therr expertise and expenence with
the Group are important. The Group's policy on such assignrments is set out in the Audit Committee report.

Fees paid to KPMG dunng the year are set out below

2009 2008

£m ¢m

Fees payable to KPMC for the audit of the Group's annwal accounts 07 09

Fees payable to KPMG and its associates for other senvices.

The audt of the Group's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 02 02

Other services supplied pursuant to legislation 04 01

Other services relating to taxation 02 05
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed to be

entered into by or on behalf of the Group or any of its assoqates 06 06

All other services 01 -

Total 22 23

Fees paid to KPMG for audit and other services to the Company are not disclosed in its indwidual accounts as the Group accounts are required to
disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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5 Exceptional items

2009 9 X8 2008
£m im £m £m
Operating exceptional tems:
Reorganisation and restructuring costs (40) (40)
PRS reimbursements and fines - (6)
Onerous contract provisions (1 (50)
Onerous property provision {14) -
Pension scheme changes 110 -
Kangaroo closure costs (2) (1
Total net operating exceptional itemns 53 (97)
Non-operating exceptional items
Loss on sale and )mpaiment of non-Current assets (22) (a7
(Loss)/gain on sale, net of impaiment, of subsidianes, joint ventures and associates (52) 17
Gamn/{loss) on sale, net of iImpaimment, of avarlable for sale finanaal assets (1) (7)
Gam/(loss} from sale of Kangaroo jont venture assets 2 {4)
(Loss)gain on sale and irmparment of subsidianes and Investrments (51) 6
Total non-operating exceptional terns (73) an
Total exceptional tems before tax (20) (108)
2009
In 2009 a charge of £40 million was incurred in respect of reorganisation and restructunng costs in relatian to announced efficiency savings
programmes.

An Increase In provisions In respect of onerous contracts for sports nghts of £1 million were put n place N 2009 as a consequence of the forecast
significant dechine in the advertising market over the Iife of those contracts

A £14 milhon charge was incurred in respect of a property vacated as a result of the significant headcount reductions in the year

Pension scheme changes have taken place following consultation with the Schermne memibers to implerent a cap on increases {0 pensionable
satany levels and to offer retired members the option of altenng the structure of therr pension by receving an uplift now In return for gving up nghts
to future annual increases. Both of these changes wilt reduce the future cost and nsks of operating the Pension Schernes and have resufted in a gain
of £110 million, £38 rrullion of which relates to a past service cost and £72 million to a curtadment gain (see note &), and a corresponding reduction in
the defined benefit pension deficit.

A £2 million charge was incurmed in the year relating to dlosure costs assocated with Kangaroo A £2 rillion gain 1s ncuded within non-operating
exceptional itemms. This reverses an imparment taken n the pnor year in respect of the Group's mvestrnent in Kangaroo following the sale of the
Joint venture’s tangible assets during the year

The £22 rmuflion charge for loss on sale and imparment of nen-current assets relates to a £5 million impairment on properties included within
assets held for sale to reflect their estmated market value, a £14 mullion impairment on property, plant and equipment to reflect therr estimated
recoverable amount and a net £3 million loss on the disposal of property plant and equipment. This includes a £2 mifion gain on disposal of a
Manchester property for £2 million cash consideration, offset by the disposal of plant and equipment with a net book value of £5 rmullion fer £rul
cash consideration following the efficiency reviews, pnmanly in regional news and studios related properties.

The net £52 million loss on sale, net of iImpaiment, of subsidianes, joint ventures and associates ncludes an impairment loss of £32 million on
the remeasurement of the Friends Reunited disposal group to the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell It also mciudes anet
loss on sale of subsidianes of £5 million, £6 mallion loss on the sale of Enable Media Limited off set by a £1 mullion gain on the sale of JFMG Limited
Net impairments of joint ventures and assocates of £9 million include £7 milion fior ITN The remaining £2 million of this comprises numerows
mavements disclosed innote 14 A £6 million charge was also Incured during the year in relation to Cariton Screen Advertising Limited being put
into creditors’ voluntany iquidation. The charge incurred is equal to the value of its net assets no longer consolidated by the Group following the
transfer of control of the entity to the iquidator The Group has a £29 million other debtor due from Carlton Screen Advertising Limited, which 15
fully provided for pending the outcome of the hquidation

The net £1 million loss on sale, net of impaimment, of available for sale assets includes a £1 midlion mpaisment incurred on marking the Group’s
investment In STV Group plc ta its fair value following a sigruficant and sustained decline in 1t's share pnce, a £1 milion impaimment of the Group's
10% investment in Electnc Farm Entertanment LLC and a £1 mullion gan on disposa! of shares in Ambassador Theatre Group Lirnited.

2008
In 2008 a charge of £40 milllon was incumed in respect of reorganisation and restructuning costs. This includes £18 miliion related to Regional News
and £22 million as a result of other efficency programmes.

On 8 May 2008, Ofcomn anncunced a fine to ITV of £6 mullion in respect of breaches of the programme code relating to premium rate services
on ITv1 and TV2 At the date of approval of the 2007 accounts, the requlator had not yet confinmed the level of any fine that right have been
impaosed in this context. Therefore no provision for a fine was able to be included in the 2007 accounts.

Provisions in respect of onerous contracts for sports nghts of £50 mullion were put in place in 2008 as a consequence of the forecast significant
dedhine in the advertising market over the life of those contracts.

A £1 million charge was incurred In the year relating to dosure costs assocated with Kangaroo A £4 million charge, included within non-operating
exceptional iterns, related to the impairment of the joint venture investment to £rul

An impamment of £14 million was charged on the Manchester properties prior to ther redassification from assets held for sale to fixed assets
and animpairment of £3 milion has been charged on the remaining property dassified in assets held for sale

Bunng the year, as part of the ongoing process to dispose of non-core businesses and investments, the Group sold its 50% interests in Arsenal
Broadband Limited and Liverpool FCtv Linuted, resulting in gains of £12 mullion and £13 rmuflion respecively. These and other smaller gains were
partially offset by £9 rmiflon of dosure costs relating to CSA and a £3 mudlion impairment in the Group's investrnent in Screenvision Holdings (Europe)
urnited both of which are disclosed in the “other” reporting segment.

An impairment of the holding in STV Group plc, which s held in the Broadcasting segment, of £7 milhon was made in 2008 following a sgnificant
and sustained decfine in its share price
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6 Pension schemes
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes.

The pension scherne assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund to meet long-tesm pension liabiities to past and present employees.
The trustees of the fund are required to act in the best interest of the fund's beneficanes. The appointment of tustees to the fund 15 detemmuned
by the scheme's trust documentation.

Defined contribution schemes
Total contributions recognised as an expense in relation to defined contribution schemes during 2009 were £4 million (2008 £4 million)

Defined benefit schemes

The Group prowides retirernent benefits to some of its former employees and approximately 25% of current monthly paid employees through
defined benefit schemes. The Group's main schermne was formed from a merger of a number of schemes on 31 January 2006 The level of
retirement benefit 1s prinapally based on penstonable salary at retirerment.

The Iisbilites of the defined benefit scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paxd out by the scherme
wsing the projected urit method This amount s reflected in the defiat in the consolidated statement of financal position The projected unit
method 15 an acaued benefits valuation method in which the scheme habilities make allowance for projected eamings. The accumulated benefit
oblgation 15 an actuanal measure of the present value of benefits for service already rendered but differs from the projected unit method in that it
includes an allowance for early leaver statutony revaluation rather than projected pensionable salany increases. At the reporting date the
accumuiated benefit obligation was £2,720 mithon (2008 £2,310 rmuilion)

The assets and liabilites of all of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes recognised in the consolidated staterment of financial position
at 31 Decemnber 2009 under IAS 19 (as explained in detail in this note) were £2,251 million (2008. £2,161 rmillion) and £2,687 million (2008
£2,339 milion) respectively, resuiting In a riet deficit in the defined benefit schernes of £436 million (2008 £178 million)

An alternative methed of valuation to the projected unit method s a solvency basis, often estimated using the cost of buying out benefits at the
consolidated statement of financia! position date with a suitable insurer This amount represents the amount that would be required to settle the
scheme liabilies at the consolidated statement of finanaal position date rather than the Group continuing to fund the ongoing iiabilities of the
scheme The Group estimates the shortfall in the amount required to settle the scheme’s Iiabilities at the consotdated staterment of financial
position date 1s £1,500 million (2008 £1,800 mulion)

The statutory funding objective 15 that the scheme has sufficent and appropnate assets to pay its benefits as they fall due This is a long-term
target. Future contributions will always be set at least at the level required to satisfy the statutony funding objective The general pninciples adopted
by the trustees are that the assumptions used, taken as a whole, will be sufficiently prudent for pensions and benefits already in payment to
continue to be paid, and to reflect the commitments which will anse from members’ accrued pension nghts.

The Group's main scherne, formed by rmerger on 31 Januany 2006, consists of three sections, A, B and C The first tnennial valuation of section A
was cornpleted as at 1 January 2008 by an independent actuary for the Trustees of the [TV Pension Scheme The first tnennial valuation of sections
B and C were completed as at 1 January 2007 and the next triennial valuation of these sections are being undertaken as at 1 January 2010
The Group will monitor funding levels annually

The levels of angoing cantnbutions are based on the current service ¢osts and the expected future cash flows of the defined benefit scheme
Normal employer contnbutions into the schemes in 2010 for current sefvice are expected to be in the region of £9million (2009 £11 rillion)
assurming current contribution rates continue as agreed with the scheme trustees In addition, deficit funding payments of £30 rrullion per annum
are expected for the next four years. The Group estimates the average duration of UK scheme liabiliies to be 14 years (2008 14 years)
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6 Pension schemes (continued)
The movernent in the present value of the defined benefit obhgation for these schemes is analysed below

2009 2008

£m £m
Defined benefit obligation at 1 Januany 2,339 2,603
Cument service cost 7 12
Curtailment gain {redundancies) {2) 2)
Operating exceptional curtallment gain (salary cap) (72) -
Past service cost (augmentations) 1 -
Operating exceptional past service credit {(one off change o pension payment) (38) -
Interest cost 143 146
Net actuanal loss/(gain) 435 (314)
Contributions by scheme partiapants 4 6
Benefits paid (134) 112
Defined benefit abligation at 31 December 2,687 2339
The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s analysed between wholly unfunded and funded defined benefit schemes in the table below

2009 2008

£m £m
Defined berefit obligation in respect of funded schermes 2,653 2309
Defined benefit obligation in respect of whally unfunded schermes 35 30
Total defined benefit cbligation 2,687 2,339
The miovemnent in the fair value of the defined benefit scheme assets s analysed below

2009 2008

£m fm
Farr value of scheme assets at 1 January 2,161 2,491
Expected retum on assets 128 162
Net actuaral gain/(loss) 48 (438)
Employer contributions b 52
Contributions by scheme participants 4 6
Benefits and expenses paid (134) (112)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2,251 2,161

The assets and liabilities of the scheme are recognised in the consolidated statement of financia! posibon and shown within non-current liabiitres,

The total recognised 5.

2009 2008 x0T 2006 205
£m im £m im fm
Total defined benefit scherne assats 2251 2,161 2,491 2372 2,072
Total defined benefit scheme obligations (2,687) (2,339 (2,603) (2,657 {2,604)
Net amount recognised within the consolidated statement of financal position (436) (178) 12 (285) (532}
Amounts recognised through the income statement are as follows.
2009 2008
& &m
Armnount dharged to operating costs:
Current service cost ) (12)
Curtaiment gain {redundanaes) 2 2
Past service cost (augmentations) m -
(6) (10)
Amount credited to operating income - exceptional items:
Curtalment gain 72 -
Past service credrt (one-off change to pensions payment) 38 -
110 -
Amocunt (charged)/credited to net finanaing costs:
Expected return on pension scheme assets 128 162
Interest cost (143) (146)
{15) 16
Total credited in the consohdated income statement 89 6

Two operating exceptional gains were recogrised in 2009 i relation to changes made to the ITV Pension Scheme a curtalment gain of £72 million

in relation to the cap on naease to pensionable salanes, and a past service aredit of £38 mullion in relation to the one off change to pension

payrments. These are Induded within the figures above
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6 Pension schemes (continued)
The amownts recognised through the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income/(cost} are

2005 2008
£m £m

Actuanal gains and {lossesy
Ansing on scheme assets 48 (438)
Ansing on scheme liabilities (439) 314

(391) (124)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income since 1 Januany
200415 an actuanal loss of £319 rmilhion (2008 £72 militon gain)
Included within actuanal gains and losses are expenence adjustrments as follows.

2009 2008 2007 22005 x05

fm £m £m fm Em

Experience adjustments on scherme assets 48 (438) 15 32 219
Experience adjustiments on scheme liabilities - - (18} (12) 9

At 31 Decernber 2009 the scheme assets were nvested in a diversified portfolio that consisted pnmanly of equity and debt secunties.
The fair value of the scheme assets are shown below by major categony

Market Market
vk value

2008 2008

£m fm

Market value of assets - equity-type assets 869 704
Market value of assets - bonds 1,263 1,330
Market value of assets —other 119 127
Total scheme assets 225 2,161

Exposure through the different asset classes is obtained through a combination of executing swaps and investing in physicat assets. Some of these
bond investrnents are ssued by the UK Govemment. The nisk of defautt on these 15 very small compared to the nsk of default on corporate bond
Investments, although some nsk may remain The trustees also hold corporate bonds and other fixed interest securriies, There 1s a more significant
risk of defauit on these which is assessed by various rating agencies. In 2009 yields have reduced relative to gitts which 1s partly attrbuted to a
decrease In default risk in respect of these bonds.

The trustees also have a substantial holding of equity-type iInvestments (predominantly equities with some exposure to hedge funds and
Infrastructure) The nvestment retumn related to these 1s variable, and they are generally considered much “nskier” investments, it 1s generally
accepted that the yield on equity investments will contain a premium (“the equity nsk premium”™) to compensate investors for the additional
nsk of holding this type of Investment. There Is significant uncertainty about the likely size of this nsk premium

In respect of overseas equity investments there 1s an addtional nsk assoaated with the exposure to unfavourable currency movernents,

To reduce this nsk, the scheme aims to hedge broadly 60% of the overseas equity investment aganst currency movernents,

The expected return for each asset class 1s weighted based on the target asset allocation for 2010 to develop the expected long-term rate
of retum on assets assumption for the portfolio

The benchmark for 2010 1s to hold broadly 47% equities and 53% bonds. The majonty of the equities held by the scheme are in Intemational
blue chip entities. The aim 1s to hold a globally diversified portfolio of equities, with a target of broadly 22% of equities being held in UK and 78%
of equities held overseas. Within the bond portfolio the aim 1s to hold 58% of the portfolio in government bonds (gilts) and 42% of the portfolio
In corporate bonds and other fixed interest secunties.

The expected rates of retumn on plan assets by major categony and target allocations are set out below

Expected Expected
longemte  FMonedaset onglermirke  Planed aset
of retum alocation of return Ahocam
a0 ano 2009 00
% pa % of aets Xpa % of assets
Equity and Property 8.1 &7 75 47
Bonds 40-50 53 36-63 53

The expected retumn on plan assets is based on market expectations at the beginrung of the financial penod for retums over the Iife of the related
obligation The expected yield on bond investrnents with fixed interest rates can be derved exactly from their market value

The actual retumm on plan assets in the year ended 31 December 2009 was an increase of £176 millon (2008. degease of £276 million)

The pnnapal assumptions used i the scherne valuations at the end of the reporting penod were

2009 2008
Rate of general Increase in salanes 4£.40% 380%
Rate of pensionable salany increases 090% 380%
Rate of incTease in penston payment (LP1 5% pension increases) 3130% 270%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 340% 280%
Discount rate for scherne fiabilities S70% 630%

Inflation assumption 340% 2.80%
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6 Pension schemes (continued)

IAS 19 requires that the discount rate used be determined by reference to market yields at the reporting date on high quality fixed income
Investments. The cumency and term of these should be consistent with the currency and estimated termn of the post-employment obligations.
The discount rate has been based on the yield available on AA rated corporate bonds of a term similar to the habilities.

The expected rate of inflation ts an important building block for salary growth and pension Increase assumptions. A rate of inflation is “implied”
by the difference between the yields on fixed and index-inked Govemnment bonds. However, differences in demand for these can distort this
implied figure The Bank of England target inflation rate has also been considered in setting this assumption

The Group has used PAS2 year of birth tables wath medium cohort improvements, with a 1% per annum undespin and a one year age rating
(1e tables are adjusted 5o that a member 15 assumed to be one year cider than actual age) Using these tables the assurmed life expectations on
retirement are

MR SSALIISNG

2009 2009 208 2008
Retinng today at age 60 65 60 65
Males 265 216 265 216
Females 298 248 298 248
Retiring in 20 years at age 60 65 60 65
Males 285 234 285 234
Fernales 39 267 319 267

2OUBWRWOD

The tables above reflect published mortality investigation data in conjunction with the results of investigations into the mortality expenence
of scheme members.

The sensitvities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the schemie’s liabilities are set out below The illustrations consider the
single change shown with the other assumptions assumed to be unchanged In practice, changes in one assumption may be accompanied by
offsetting changes in another assumption (although this is not always the case) The Group’s hiability 1s the difference between the scheme labilities
and the scheme assets. Changes in the assumptions may occur at the same time as changes in the market value of scherme assets. These may or

may not offset the change 1n assumptions. For exampte, a fall in interest rates will increase the scheme liability, but may also trigger an offsetting o
increase in the market value of certain scheme assets so there 15 no net effect on the Group’s hability g
Assurmption Change n assumphon trmpact onscherme abxibes %
Discount rate increase/decrease by 0 5% Decreasefincrease by 7% g
Rate of inflation Inarease/decrease by 0 5% Increase/decrease by 7% E:

3

&

Life expectations Increase by 1 year Increase by 2%
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7 Share-based compensation

2009 208

weghted

Numberof  average exerche Numberof  average exrcze

options price opLors pree

000) (perce) 000) (pence)

Quistanding at 1 January 116,454 7188 131,803 7946

Granted dunng the year - nil pnced 26,81 - 20929 -

Granted dunng the year — other 13,498 28.60 15,132 5200

Forferted dunng the year (12,794) 3923  (15295) 5299

Exerased dunng the year {8,772) - {11,351) 663

Expired durning the year (33,218) 5219 (24,764) 8094

Outstanding at 31 December 101,989 6394 116454 7188

Exercisable at 31 December 33,694 160 42 42,057 15148
The average share price dunng 2009 was 38 37 pence (2008 52 34 pence)

2009 008

Wesghted Wewghted

Fverage average

Wesghted remaning Weghted remanay)

average oIt Nurmber of mntractual  average exer(se Nomber of contractual

price options ife pnce optons e

Range of exertise pnces (pence) {(pence) ('000) {years) (pence} (000) (years)

Nil - 47,851 323 - 53,272 420

20:00-4999 2860 13326 in - - -

50006999 5540 5377 258 5380 14,106 354

7000-9999 8475 1,462 199 8495 4,546 268

10000-10999 10190 11,321 104 10196 12,032 204

1100011999 11414 6,787 422 11455 11,957 573

12000-14999 137.33 3,401 1.87 13363 6,367 397

20000-24999 21778 1,035 098 21778 1,200 198

25000-29599 27009 11337 0.54 27025 12,882 154

30000-38599 38531 91 040 38531 91 140

Share schemes

Full detalls of the Turnaround Plan, Cormmitment Scheme, Performance Share Plan and Deferred Share Award Plan ¢can be found in the

Remuneration report.

Awards made under the Granada Media and Granada Commitment schernes, the Granada Media, Granada and Carlton Executsve Share Option
schemes, the Carlton Equity Participation Plan, and the Carlton Deferred Annual 8onus Plan have all reached the end of therr vanous performance
periods, and have vested or lapsed accordingly Details of the performance cnitena that applied to these awards have been detailed in the notes to
previous accounts, and In previous Remuneration reports. The Granada and ITV Save As You Eam schernes are Inland Revenue Approved SAYE
schermes. Afthough some awards remain vested but unexerased under these Plans, they are not considered matenal for the purposes of disdosure

n this note

Exercises can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares, No new shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the
Deferred Share Award Plan Dunng the year all exerases were satisfied by using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Emplayees’

Benefit Trust rather than by ssuing new shares,
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7 Share-based compensation (continued)
Assumptions relating to grants of share options dunng 2009 and 2008

Share pnee Exercre Expected Cross dhwdend Rk free
Daxe of & grank. proe volatiftyy Expectedife weid rate Farvalue
Scherme name gant {perce) {pence) X {years) X X {perce)
Save As You Eam
TV - three year D4-ApI-08 6500 5200 2500% 325 284% 393% 1700
ITV — five year 04-Apr-08 6500 5200  2500% 525 286% 409% 1900
TV three year 17009 3500 2860  5300% 375 — 240% 1700 &
TV - five year 17-Ju09 3500 2860  4300% 525 - 310% 1800 ﬁ
Performance Share Plan 3
ITV — three year 01-Jun09 4000 - 5300% 300 - 210% 3020 2
Tumaround Plan
ITV — three year 12-Sep-08 4990 - 2500% 225 296% 504% 1400
ITV —five year 12-5ep-08 4990 - 2500% 425 296% 498% 1800
ITV — three year 02-0ct-08 4230 - 2500% 225 296% 504% 1200
ITV - five year 02-0ct-08 4230 - 2500% 425 296% 498% 1600

i

The expected volatility has been revised upwards for awards made in 2009, reflecting histonc volatility of TV plc's share price and equity markets as
awhale over the preceding three or five years, dependent on the expected Iife of the award, por to the grant date of the share options awarded
The expected volatility of the 2008 awards was based on the histonc volatility of ITV plc, which was formed on the merger of Granada plc and
Carlton Communtcations Plc on 2 Februany 2004

The awards made under the Commitment Scherne, Performance Share Plan and Tumaround Plan all have market based performance
conditions which are taken into account in the fair value calculation using a Monte Carlo pricing model The Black-Scholes model s used to value
the Save As You Eam Schernes as these do not have any market performance conditions.

Share-based compensation charges totalled £11 mition in 2009 (2008 £10 mullion) %1
8 Net finanang costs z
w0 7008 5
Em £m g
Finanang income 3
Interest ncome 23 3
Expected retum on defined benefit pension scheme assets 128 162
Gain on bong exchange 14 -
Change in fair value of iInstruments dassified at fair value through profit o loss - 123
Foreign exchange gain 36 -
201 316
Financing costs.
Interest expense on financial liabilies measured at amortised cost (93) (110)
Interest on defined benefit pension plan obligations {143) (146)
Losses on early settlernent (8) -
Change in farr value of Instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss {37) -
Foreign exchange loss - (116)
Qther interest expense {11) (%)
(292) (376)
Net finanang costs (91) (60)

The foreign exchange gam/loss 1s econormically hedged by cross cumency interest rate swaps. See note 25 for further detalls,
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9 Taxation
2009 2008
fm im
Current tax
Current tax charge before exceptional items (13) (28)
Current tax credit on exceptional items 10 23
(3) (5)
Adjustment for prior penods 68 198
65 193
Deferred tax,
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 21 (3)
Deferred tax on exceptional items {31) -
Adjustment for prior periods 14 (12)
4 (15)
Total taxation credit in the income statement 69 178
Reconciliation of taxation credit
2009 2008
£m £m
Profit/(loss) before tax 25 (2,732)
Taxation (¢charge)/credit at UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2008 28 5%) (7) 779
Non-taxable/non-deductible exceptional tems 21) (8)
Non-taxable Income/non-deductible expenses (8) (6)
Tax losses 26 -
Over provision In pnor penods 82 186
Impact of tax rate change - 1
Impact of goodwill Impairment - (768)
Other {3 {6)
69 178

In the year ended 31 Decernber 2009 the effective tax rate 1s lower (2008 lower) than the standard rate of UK corporation tax pnmarly as a result
of adjustments in respect of prior periods due to progress i the agreement with revenue authonittes of prior periods’ tax habibities. In addition, a tax
credit totaling £101 mullien (2008 credit of £35 miflion) has been recognised directly In equity representing current tax of £nil (2008 credit of Enil)

and a deferred tax credit of £101 mition (2008 credit of £35 million)

Tax losses of £26 milion {2008 £nil) relate to a credit for utilisation of [oan relationship deficits of £23 milkon (2008 £nil), offset by a charge for
unrecognised deferred tax on tax losses ansing in the year of £9 million (2008 £nil) and a credit for other tax losses ansing in the year of £12 million

(2008 £nil)
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9 Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets/(labilities) recogrised and their movernents are

At Recogneed AL

tlnuay  ntenome Reogreed 31 Decernber

2009 gRement N equity 2009

im im £m m

Property, plant and equipment {15) 16 - 1
Intangible assets (95) 13 - (82)
Programme nghts 4 {2) - 2
Pension scheme deficits 49 (25) 98 122
interest-beanng loans and borowings, and denvatwes (1) - - (1)
Share-based compensation [ - 3 7
Unremitted earmings of subsidianes, associates and joint ventures (3) - ~ (3)
Other 2 2 - 4
(55) 4 10 50

A Recogresed A

1lagay  ntheincome Recognsed 31 December

008 staterment. nequily 2008

£m £m £ £m

Property, plant and equiprent {13) (2) - (15)
Intangible assets {113) 18 - (95)
Programme rights 3 1 - 4
Pension scheme deficits EY (17) 35 49
Pensions funding payments 11 an - -
Interest-bearing loans and bosrowings, and dervatives (2 1 - 0]
Share-based cornpensation 4 - - 4
Unrernitted earnings of subsidianes, assoaates and joint ventures (2) (1) - (3
Other 6 {4} - 2
{75) {15) 35 (55)

At 31 December 2009 total deferred tax assets are £136 million (2008 £59 million) and totat deferred tax kabilites are £86 mullion
(2008 £114 mullon)

Deferred tax assets of £625 million and £60 million (2008 £625 miflicn and £83 mulion) In respect of capital losses of £2,230 rmilhon (2008
£2,233 rmullion) and loan refationstup deficits of £214 rillion (2008 £296 million) respectively, have not been recognised due to uncertainties as to
their amount and whether gain or income will anse in the appropnate form and refevant terntory against which such losses could be utilised For the
same reasons, deferred tax assets In respect of overseas fosses of £10 million (2008 £10 million) which time expire between 2017 and 2026 have not
been recognised

10 Dividends
Dwvidends declared and recogrised through equity in the year werer

2009 2008
£m fm

Equrty shares.
Final 2007 dradend of 18 pence per share - 70
Intenm 2008 dividend of 0675 pence per share - 26
- 96

No 2009 intenm dividend was declared No final dwvdend will be deciared for 2009 (2008 £nif)
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11 Eamings per share

2009 2008
testated)
Basc Dihced B Dited
£m £&m fm £m
Profit/{loss) for the year attrbutable to equrty shareholders of the parent company 91 92 (2,556}  (2,556)
Exceptional items (ncluding related tax effect of a debit of £21 million,
2008 credit of £23 mullion) 41 41 85 85
PrafitKloss) for the year before exceptional items 132 133 (2,471) (2471)
Amortisation and imparrment of acquired ntangible assets (including related tax credit
of £14 milkior, 2008 £14 million) 37 37 2,739 2,739
Adjustments to net finanang costs (including related tax effect of a credit £3 million,
2008 debit of £6 million) 9 9 (11 (11
Prior penod tax adjustments (82) (82) {186} (186)
Other tax adjustments (26) (26) - -
Profit for the year before exceptional items, amortisation and imparrment of acquired ntangible
assets, net finanaing cost adjustments and prior penod and other tax adjustrments 70 71 71 A
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — rmilhon 3,882 3,882 3877 3,877
Dilution impact of share optrons — million - 13 - 9
Dilution iImpact of convertible bond — million - 192 - -
3,882 4,087 3,877 3,886
Eamings/(loss) per ordinary share 23p 23p (659)p (659p
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share
Basic eamings/(loss) per ordinary share 23p 23p (659)p (659p
Add Loss per orcinany share on exceptional items 11p 10p 22p 22p
Eamings/(loss) per ordinany share before exceptional items 34p 33p (63 7)p (637p
Add Loss per ordinary share on amorbsation and impainment of acquired ntangible assets 10p 09p 706p 706p
Add Gain/(loss) per ordinany share on adjustments to net financing costs 0.2p 02p (03)p (03)p
Subtract. Profit per ordinary share on prior period tax adjustrments 21)p 21)p (48)p 48)p
Subtract. Profit per ordinary share on other tax adjustrments 07p (06)p - -
Adjusted earmings per ordinary share for the year 1.8p 17p 18p 18p

An adyusted earrungs per share figure has been disclosed because in the view of the directors this gives a farrer reflection of core business
performance The basis for adjusted eamings per share has been changed in the year to rmore accurately reflect this and the 2008 comparison has
been restated accordingly. Net finanaing costs are now adjusted for the non-cash imputed pension interest charge, mark-to-market movements on
swaps and foreign exchange movernents on bands, the impact of amortised cost adjustments from coupon step-ups, one off gains and losses on
exchanges and buybacks of bonds and the effective Interest on the cnerous contract provision Intemally generated intangible asset amortisation (s

now also induded within adjusted earmings.

Diluted eamings per share have been impacted in 2009 by the issue of the £135 mullion Convertible Eurobond 2016 in Novernber 2009

The conversion of share options in 2008 1s ant-dilutive, so the diluted loss per share in 2008 has been shown as the same as basic loss per share

In accordance with 1AS 33 “Earnings per Share”
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold kand Improvernents Lo leasehokd
and buikdings tard and buldings Vetuces, equaprent and fttngs Total
Long Short Owned  Fnanoe Leases
£m £m fm £m £m m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 23 66 21 251 16 377
Additions - - - 2 - 21
Reclassificabion from assets held for sale 27 3 - - ~ 30 g
Disposals and retsrements M - M 31 i) (34) g
At 31 December 2008 49 69 20 241 15 394
Addrtions - - - 14 - 14 %
Redassificabion 5 (1) - (&) - -
Reclassification to assets held for sale - (14) - - - (14)
Disposals and retirements - (&) - (40) - (44)
At 31 Decermnber 2009 54 50 20 211 15 350
Depreciation
At 7 January 2008 - 12 8 144 2 166
Charge for the year 1 1 30 3 36
Disposals and retirements (1 - (M {25) nm (28)
At 31 Decemnber 2008 - 13 8 149 &4 174
Charge for the year 3 3 2 27 3 38
Impament charge for the year (see note 5) 6 2 4 2 - 14
Reclassification 3 - - (3) = - %,1
Reclassification to assets held for sale - (5) - - - (5} &
Disposals and retirernents - {1) - (31) - (32 =
At 31 Decemnber 2009 12 12 145 144 7 189 g
Net book value é
At 31 December 2009 42 38 6 67 8 161
At 31 December 2008 49 56 12 92 11 220

Included within the bock values above is expenditure of £3 million (2008 £10 million) on praperty, plant and equiprment that 1s in the course
of construction The amount of contractual commigments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in note 33

13 Intangible assets

Customer Fim
contracts and Softwere branes and
Coodwd Brands retabonshes Licences. developrment other Total
m £m fm Em £m £m fm

Cost
At 1 Januany 2008 3,478 199 338 121 26 83 4,245
Acquisition of subsidiaries 6 - - - - 1 7
Purchase of brands and software development - 1 - - 20 - 21
At 31 December 2008 3484 200 338 121 46 84 4,273
Purchase of software development - - - - 13 - 13
Redassification to assets held for sale (115 (26) (8) - - (3 (152)
Disposals {4) (1) (2 - 7) (2 (16)
At 31 December 2009 3,365 173 328 Lral 52 3 4,118
Amortsation and impaiment
At 1 Januan) 2008 40 68 212 29 1 22 372
Charge for the year - 18 22 8 8 9 66
Impairment charge 2,695 - - - - - 2695
At 31 December 2008 2,735 86 234 38 9 31 3133
Charge for the year - 17 21 9 8 4 59
Redassification to assets held for sale (81) (9) (5 - - (2) (97)
Disposals - - (" - (5) (1 9]
At 31 December 2009 2,654 94 249 47 12 32 3,088
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 M 79 79 74 40 47 1,030
At 31 December 2008 749 4 104 83 37 53 1,140

Included within the book values above 1s expenditure of £6 million (2008 £mil) on software development that 15 in the course of development.
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13 Intangible assets (continued)
Amorusation of intangible assets 1s shown withmn operating costs in the income statement.

impairment tests for cash generating units containing goodwall
The following units have significant carmying amcunts of goodwilk

2009 2008

£m £m

Broadcasting 265 265
Online 30 68
CMTV 33 33
SDN 76 76
ITV Studios 307 307
Fak 749

The recoverable amount of each CGU s based on value in use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on the Group's curent five-year plan Cash flows beyond the five-year penod are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate
of 1%-2 5% depending on the CGU and are appropnate because these are long-term businesses. The growth rates used are consistent with the
long-term average growth rates for the industry

Irmpairment tests are camed out annually, or when indicators show that assets may be impaired The impairment tests camed out as a
consequence have resulted In no impaimment charge for the year (2008 £2,695 million) being applied against the goodwill in these CGUs,

A pre-tax market discount rate of 129% has been used In discounting the projected cash flows for each CGU The pre-tax market discount rate
used in the previous year on the same basis was 119% The discount rate has been revised to reflect the latest market assurptions for the Risk
Free-rate and Equity Risk Prermium and also to take into account the net cost of debt Managernent believe that a consistent discount rate can be
applied to all CGUs due to simianty of the nsk factors affecting thern and their gecgraphical spread Management believe that there 1s currently
no reasonably possible change in discount rate that would reduce the headroom in any CGU to zero

Broadcasting

The goodwall in this CGU arase as a result of the acquisition of broadcasting businesses since 1999, the largest of which were the acquisition by
Granada of United News and Media's broadcast businesses in 2000 and the merger of Cariton and Granada in 2004 to form ITV plc. In 2007, asa
result of the early adoption of [FRS 8 Operating Segments, this goodwill was apportioned between the Broadcasting and Online CGUs based on the
relative Net Present Value of the cash flows of the two segments.

No impaiment charge arose in the Broadcasting CGU dunng the course of 2009 (2008 £2,309 million), due to the anticipated stabilisation in the
advertising market in 2010 and the cost savings achieved in 2009 Managernent believe that cumently no reasonably possible change in the
advertising market would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero Broadcasting goodwill was reduced i the year by £nil (2008 £57 millior)
as required by 1AS 12, following the recognition of deferred tax assets not recognised at the time of the Carlten/Granada merger

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flows were based ncdude the television share of advertising market, share of commercial
Impacts, prograrmme and other costs. The key assumption In assessing the recoverable amount of Broadcasting goodwill 1s the size of the TV
advertising market. in formning its assumphions about the TV advertising market, the Group has used a combmation of long-term trends, industry
forecasts and in-house estimates which place greater ermphasis on recent expenence These are broadly in the range of -3% to +3% for 2010 and
+2% to +5% for 2011, with gur assumptions at the cautious end of these ranges It s also assurmed that ITV elects to renew its broadcasting licences
In 2014

The impairment charge in 2008 arose as a result of the downtum in the short-term outlook for the advertising market. The outlook
for advertising, ncluding Online, improved in particular towards the end of 2009 and video on demand continued to grow

Online
As noted above, in 2007 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 8, Broadcasting goodwll was apportioned between the Broadcasting and Onlme
CGUs based on the relative net present value of the cash flows of the two operating segments. This resulted in £257 million of Onhine goodwall
The remainder of the Online goodwall arose on the acquisition of Friends Reurted in 2005

No impairment charge arose in the Online CGU dunng the course of 2009{2008 £308 mullion) However, a net £34 million (2008 £nil) of goodwill
assoaated with the disposal groups has been transferred from intangible assets to assets held for sale and a net £4 million was disposed of on the
sale of the Enable Media business.

The key assumption on which the cash flows were based is the Group's online advertising revenue growth. Online advertising is dependent on
a number of factors including Online's share of the total advertising market, as well as page Impressions, unique users, average dwell times, vdeo
views and advertising rates (CPT) generated by the Croup's online sites. However, no ane factor 1s key in determining the Group's onhine advertising
revenue The Group's online reveniue growth assurnptions have been determined by using a combination of industry forecasts and in-house
estimates of growth rates which are based on recent expenence Industry estimates of growth in the online advertising market range from 4% to
17%1n 2010 and 9% to 20% 0 2011

Managerment believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the revenue assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero
The mpairment charge in 2008 arose as a result of the downturn in the short-termn outlook for the advertising market which is an area highly
exposed to the general downtum in the economy and the over-supply of white-space advertisng on online sites, leading to a significant fall
In rates. The outlock for advertising, induding Online, improved in particular towards the end of 2009 and wideo on dernand continued to grow

GMTV
The goodwall in this CGU arose initially on the acquisition of a 75% shareholding in GMTV Limited i 2004 The remaining 25% interest i this
subsidiary was purchased in Novernber 2009 and did not give nse to an adjustrnent to goodwill In accordance with 1AS27

No impairment charge arose in the CMTV CGU dunng the course of 2009 (2008 £21 rmilion) The man assumptions on which the forecast
cash flows are based are as descnbed under the Broadcasting CGU above Management believe that curently no reasonably possible change in
the advertsing market would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

The impairment charge in 2008 arose as a resuft of the downtum in the short-term outlook for the advertising market, which has since recovered
n 2009
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

SDN
The goodwill In this CGU arose on the acguisition of SDN (the ficence operator for DTT Multiplex A) n 2005 and represented the wider strategic
benefits of the acquisition to ITV plc The strategic benefits were principally the enhanced ability to promote Freeview as a platform, business
relationships with the channels which are on Multiplex A ang additional capacity avallable from 2010

The mamn assumpbions on which the forecast cash flows were based are income to be eamed from medwm-term contracts and the market price
of available multiplex wdeo streams in the penod up to and beyond digrtal switch over These assumptions have been determined by using a
combination of cumrent contract temns, recent market transactions and n-house estimates of video stream availability and pnang I 15 also assurned
that the Multiplex A licence 1s renewed to 2022. Management believe that currently no reasonably possible change 1n the income and availability
assumpticns would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero

ITV Studics
The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of production businesses since 1999, the largest of which were the acquisition
by Granada of United News and Media's production businesses in 2000 and the merger of Cartton and Granada in 2004 to form [TV plc.

The key assumptions on which the forecast cash flows were based indude revenue (including the share of total network programme budget
cbtained) and margin growth These assurmptions have been determined by using a combination of extrapolation of histoncal trends within the
business, Industrny estmates and in-house estimates of growth rates in all markets. Management believe that curenthy no reasonably possible
change in the revenye and margin assumptions would reduce the headroorn in this CGU to zero

14 Investments in joint ventures and associated undertakings

Jont  Assocated

ventune undertalangs Total

£m fm

At 1 Januany 2008 63 16 79
Additions 17 10 27
Share of attnbutabte losses (18 - (18)
Repayment of loans 7 (10) a7
Impairment (N - {7
Exchange movernent and other 2 - 2
At 31 December 2008 50 16 66
Addrtions 3 3 6
Share of attnbutable losses (5) (2) £]
Repayment of loans - (4) (4)
Transfer to assets held for sale {47) - {47)
Impairment (1) (8) (9
At 31 December 2009 - 5 5

The £3 milhon of addiions to joint ventures dunng the year relate to further loans granted of £3 million to Freesat,

The £5 million share of losses of joint ventures includes £3 miflion from Screenwision US and £2 million from Freesat. Of the share of attributable
losses of jont ventures, £3 million was allocated to assets held fer sale in ine with therr statement of financial position classification

The £47 million transfer to assets held for sale relates to the carmying value of the joint venture investment in Screenvision US, now held for sale
(see note 27) As an asset held for sale equity accounting ceases at the date of dassification This has resulted in unrecogrised profits of £5 mullion.
The jont venture investment in Freesat has also been impaired by £1 milhon dunng the year The investment 1 now camed at its esumated value In
use of £l Any unrecognised losses following its impairment to £mil, when equity accounting ceases, are Immaterial.

The £3 mullion of addrtions in associated undertakings include loans granted of £2 mullion to ITN and £1 million to Carbony Media Lirnited, a new
assocated undertaking in the year The £2 millton share of attnbutable losses in assocated undertakings include £2 million from ITN ITN made £4
milion of loan repayments dunng the year The £8 million mpaiment of associated undertaking investrents includes £7 mulhon for ITN and £1
rnilhion for Crackit Productions Limuted Both are camied at ther estimated value n use amount.

The aggregated summary finanaal information in respect of assoaates in which the Group has an interest 1s as follows.

2003 008

Em []

Assets 52 66

Liabilities (70) (63)

Revenue 106 122

{Loss)prafit {5) -
The aggregated summany financalinformation in respect of the Group's share of interests In jont veritures s as follows:

2009 2008

fm £m

Non-current assets n 37

Current assets 46 75

Cument liabilibies (24) (37)

Non-currertt iabilitres (63) (33)

Revenue n 84

Expense (73) (102)

The Group's Interests in significant joint ventures and assooated undertakings are listed in note x in the ITV plc company finanaal statements
section of thisreport.
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15 Available for sale financal assets

2009 2008

ém £m
At 1 January 5 10
Addibions - 2
Impairment (2) 7)
Disposals (2) -
At 31 December 1 5

The Group’s interests in avallable for sa'e financial assets are listed in note ix i the TV plc Company financial statements section of this report The
Group’'s Investrnent in STV Group plc 1s marked to market. However, following a significant and sustained dechine in its share pnce an impairment of
£1 million has been taken against this investrnent in the year A further impairment of £1 million relates to the impairment of the Group's 10%
investment in Electric Farm Entertainment LLC to £nil. The £2 million disposal relates to the sale of the Group's interests in Ambassador Theatre
Group Limited to a consortium including Exponent Private Equity LLP for a £3 million cash consideration resutting in a £1 mullion gan on sale {see
note 5)

16 Distribution rights

2009 2008
fm Em

Cost
At 1 Januany 82 68
Additions 17 14
At 31 Decernber 99 82
Charged to income statement
At 1 January 69 61
Expense for the year 14 8
At 31 December 83 69
Net book value 16 13
The expense for the year is accounted for within operating costs in the income statement.
17 Programme rights and other nventory

2009 2008

fm £

Commissions 73 125
Sports rights 23 57
Acquired films 207 237
Production 48 62
Prepayments 36 29
Other 1 6

388 516

Net prograrmme nghts and other iInventory written off in the year was £11 million (2008. £29 mitlion), including £rul (2008 £2 rmilhon) for reversals
relating to inventory previously witten down to net realisable vaiue In addition to these amounts, there are exceptional costs for anerous contract
provisions In respect of sports nghts of £1 million (2008 £50 million), as disciosed in note 5 Of the total provision £4 mullion (2008 £5 mullion) has
been written off against sports nghts and £nil (2008 £1 mulkion) has been written off against prepayments above £35 million (2008 £44 rmillion)
remains In provisions, see note 26
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18 Trade and other receivables

203 X008
£m £m
Due within one year

Trade recewvables 353 336
Other recevables 22 24
Prepayments and acaued income 57 84
432 A4

Due after more than one year
Trade recevables 7 9
Prepayments and accrued Income - 1
7 10
Total trade and other recevables 439 454

As at 31 Decernber 2009, trade recevables of £8 million (2008 £14 millior) were imparred and provided for The individuatly impaired recevables
relate manly to the Broadcasting & Onlfine and ITV Studios segments due to concemns over therr recoverability Movements in the Group provision
for impaiment of trade recevables are as follows.

2009 2008

Em im

At 1 Januany 14 9
Charged dunng the year 4 9
Recewables written off dunng the year as uncollectible 6) (1)
Unused armounts reversed (%) 3)
At 31 December 8 14

Trade recewables that are less than three months past due are not usually considered imparred As at 31 Decernber 2009, trade recevables
of £130 million (2008 £134 million) were past due but not impaired Of this, £88 million (2008 £52 mullion) relates to non-consolidated licensee
customers in the Broadcasting & Online segment where the Group has supplier and customer relationships. Further amounts relating to these same
customners of £1 million {2008, £4 rmidlion) and £7 million (2008, £14 millon) are included in current trade recevables and other recevables
respectively There Is also a credit of £61 million (2008, credit of £42 rlion) included in trade and other payables relating to these customers.

The net balance due from non-consolidated licensees 15 £36 rmillion, the majority of which relates to STV Group plc

2005 2008
£m fm
Current 230 211
Up to 30 days overdue 43 48
Between 30 and 90 days overdue 8 2
Over 90 days overdue 79 65
360 345

19 Cument liabilities — trade and other payables due within one year
2008
2009 £m
&m (restated:
Trade payables 83 93
Soclal security 13 13
Other payables 162 223
Acauals and deferred incorne 388 394
Dmdends - 25
646 748

The 2008 comparatives for current labiities have been restated to reflect the current year dassificauon This 1s to show a better reflection of the
nature of the Group's habiiies. The Group’'s VAT aeditor has been redassified from trade payables to other payables and film aeditors have been
reclassified from trade payables to acauals where, at the reporting date, the programme is in nghts but ne nvoice has been received,
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20 Current habilities — trade and other payables due after more than one year

2009 2008

£m im

Other payables 31 26
21 Non-current liabilities — other payables

2009 2008

£m £m

Other payables 12 15

22 Analysis of net debt
Cumenay and

Tlanuay  Netcashflow noncash 31 December

209 and amguestions maovements. 2009

fm im £m £m

Cash 503 (20 &) 479

Cash equivalents 113 (11} 1 103

Cash and cash equivalents 616 (31) (3) 582

Cash held within the Disposal Group - - 4 [

Held to maturty investments - 150 (1) 149

Loans and loan notes due within one year {252) 249 2 1)

Finance leases due within one year {7 7 (8) (8)

Loans and loan notes due after one year {1,192) (221) 47 (1,366)

Finance leases due after one year (72) - 7 (65)

(1.523) 35 43 {1,640)

Currency component of swaps held against Euro denorminated bonds 147 - (39) 108

Convertible Bond Equity Component - (36) 1 (35)

Amortised cost adjustment 30 - (10} 20

Net debt {730 118 - {612)

Currency and

1hruay  Netcshfiow non-Gsh 11 Decernber

2008 and acqughons movements 2008

£m fm fm Em

Cash 381 122 - 503

Cash equivalents 117 (5 1 113

Cash and cash equivalents 498 117 1 616

Held to matunity investments 100 (100} - -

Loans and loan notes due within one year (27) 25 {250) (252)

Finance leases due within one year {6) 6 {7} ]

Loans and loan notes due after one year (1,184) (110) 102 {1,192

Finance leases due after ane year (79) - 7 (72)

(1,296) (79) (148)  (1,523)

Currency component of swaps held against Euro denominated bonds 30 - 117 147

Amortised cost adjustment - - 30 30

Net debt {668) (62) - (730)
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22 Analysis of net debt (continued)
Included within cash equivalents is £62 million (2008 £67 malion), the use of winich is restricted to meeting finance lease commitments under
prograrnme sale and leaseback commitrnents and gitts of £34 million (2008 £33 mullion) over which the unfunded pension promises have a charge

The purpose of the amortised cost adjustment 15 to exclude the impact of the coupon step-up on total net debt. ITV's Standard & Poor's aedit
rating was lowered to BB+ in August 2008, resulting in a coupon step-up in the 2011 and 2017 bonds. The recalcutation of the amortised cost
camying values as required by IAS 39 resulted in an increase in net debt of £30 mdlion as at 31 December 2008 This increase will be unwound N
future years as a reduction in interest expense

In February 2009 [TV raised a net £50 million through a £200 millior: covenant free loan with a maturity of March 2019, secured against the
purchase of 4 5% March 2019 gilts with a nominal valye of £138 million (for a cost of £150 milion) The cash receipt retating to the £200 mdlion ioan
and the cash payment relating to the £150 rmullion gilts are both presented within cash flows from financing actvities in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, as the qilts are held as securtty for the £200 million ioan and thus form an integral part of the finanang transaction The cost of the
£200 rrullion foan 1s fixed at 8 85% for the first three years and a vanable rate thereafter, depending in part on the performance of an interest rate
algonthm The total retum on the gilts receivable by ITV 15 11% of the nominal value The gilts are accounted for as a held to matunty investment.

in March 2009 ITV repaid 1ts £250 million Eurobond and drew down a £125 million covenant free loan with a matunty of May 2013 at a vanable
rate of 12-month stering LIBOR plus 6814% In May 2009 ITV completed a £100 million tap of the existing £325 million Cctober 2015 Eurobond
raising net proceeds of £58 millon with an effective interest rate of 15 6%

In June 2009, under the terms of an exchange offer, [TV repaid €81 million (£69 million) of the €500 mitlion October 2011 bond and exchanged
at par €188 million of the 2011 bonds for the 1ssuance at par of new bonds with a maturity of June 2014 and carrying a coupon of 10%, this resulted
in an accounting gain of £14 million A pro rata proportion of the cross-cumency interest rate swaps entered into at the time of ssue of the 2011
bond were restructured and extended to match the terms of the new 2014 bonds. Under the terms of the swaps ITV receives 10% on a notonal
amount of €188 muilion and pays 12 9% on a notional amount of £63 million and three-month sterling LIBOR plus 7 9% on a notional amount of £63
mullion At maturity of the swaps ITV receives €188 million to match its prinapal repayment to bondholders and pays £126 million

In Gctober 2009 ITV repurchased £75 million of the £125 mullion May 2013 loan at a loss of £6 million

In Novernber 2009 [TV 1ssued a £135 mulhion convertible Eurobond with a maturity date of November 2016 The coupon on the bond 1s 4 0% and
the invtial conversion pnce is 70 44 pence, a prernium on 1ssue of 40% The bonds are accounted for partly as debt and partly as equity, net of 1ssue
costs. The debt and equity components are accreted to par over the Iife of the bond, the accretion of the equity component 1s accounted foras a
transfer from other reserves to retatned losses. The effective interest rate on the carrying value of the debt cormponent s 93%

In Novernber and December 2009 ITV repurchased €114 millon nominal value of the remaining October 2011 bonds, resulting in an accounting
loss of £2 milllon As at 31 December, 2009 €118 million of these bonds rernained outstanding Subsequent to the repurchase, TV entered nto new
Cross cumency interest rate swaps to offset existing swaps Under the terms of the cross curency interest rate swaps matching the €118 mithon
2011 bonds, ITV receves 4 75% on a notional amount of €118 million and pays 26 7% on a notional amount of £5 million and three-month LIBOR
rminus 4 1% on a notional amount of £33 millon The net interest rate payable by ITV reflects the impact of exchange and interest rate differences
between the oniginal swaps and the new swaps. At maturity of the swaps ITV receives €118 million to match its pnncipal repayment to bondholders
and paus £38 million

As at 31 December 2009 the currenay element of the cross currency interest rate swaps 1s a £108 million asset (2008 £147 mullion asset) and this
offsets the exchange rate movemnent of the 2011 and 2014 bonds The interest element of the swap 1sa £12 miflion asset (2008 £5 million asset)
resutting in an overall net asset total at 31 Decemnber 2009 of £120 million (2008 £152 millon net asset total)

2008
In July 2008 ITV 1ssued a £110 million bond with a maturity of March 2013 and a coupon of three-month sterling LIBOR plus 2 7% During 2008
ITV redeemed loan notes totalling £25 rmillion

In Novernber 2008 TV redeerned for cash a £100 million senior note 1ssued by UBS AG {*UBS™) under UBS’s Eurc Note Programme
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22 Analysis of net debt (continued)

Ageing of borrowings
2000 2008
Lo and France Loars ad Fnance
loan notes lnonses Total oan nates leases Total
im im £m im £m iyl
Current
In one year of less, or on demand 1 8 9 252 7 259
Non-current
In more than one year but not more than two years 106 9 115 - 8 8
In more than two years but not mere than five years 316 39 355 603 26 629
In more than five years 94t 17 961 589 38 627
1,366 65 1,431 1,162 72 1,264
Total 1,367 73 1,440 1,444 79 1523

Loans repayable between one and two years
Loans repayable between one and two years as at 31 December 2009 comprise an unsecured €118 million Eurobond which has a coupon of 60%
and matures in October 2011 After cross curency swaps the net amount repayable sn October 201115 £38 rmullion

Loarns repayable between two and five years

Loans repayable between two and five years as at 31 Decermnber 2009 includes an unsecured £50 milion bank loan which has a coupon of 12-month
sterling UBOR plus 6 814% and matures in May 2013, an unsecured £110 mion Eurobond which has a coupon of three-months sterding LIBOR plus
27% and matures in March 2013 and an unsecured €188 rmillion Eurobond (£126 million net of cross currency swaps) which has a coupon of 100%
and matures in June 2014

Loans repayable after five years

Loans repayable after five years includes an unsecured £425 million Eurobond which has a coupon of 5375% and matures in Cctober 2015, an
unsecured £135 million convertible Eurobond which has a coupon of 4 0% and matures In Novernber 2016, an unsecured £250 mullion Eurobond
which has a coupen of 7 375% and matures in January 2017 and an unsecured bank loan for £200 million which has a coupon of 8 85% for its first
three years and a vanable rate thereafter which matures in March 2019

Finance leases
Finance lease labilities are payable as follows.

2009 2008

Minimusm jease Mownum
pAgEnts Interest Prinopal  lease payments nterest Prnapad
£m £m £m £m im
In one year or less 12 4 8 11 4 7
In more than one year but not more than five years 58 10 48 45 1 34
in more than five years 18 1 17 40 2 38
88 15 73 96 17 79

Finance leases pnncipally compnse the lease of programme titles under sale and leaseback arrangements and an embedded lease relating to the
provision of news,
The net book value of assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2009 was £9 million (2008. £11 rmullion)
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23 Finanaal risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks: market nsk (induding currency nsk, pnce nsk and interest rate nsk), aedit nsk and
hquidity nsk. The Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance The Group uses denvative financal instrurments to hedge certain nsk exposures.

Treasury pohcies have been approved by the Board for managing each of these rsks induding levels of autherty on the type and use of financial
Instruments. Transactions are only undertaken if they relate to underlying exposures. The treasun, department reports regularly to the Audit
Committee and treasury operations are subject to penodic reviews.

Market nsk

a) Currency sk
The Group operates Internationally and 1s therefore exposed to currency risk ansing from various curency exposures, pimanly with respect to
the US dollar and the Euro Foreign exchange nsk anses from future commeraal transactions, recogrised assets and habilities and net investments
in foreign operations

The Group's foreign exchange policy 1s to hedge matenal foreign currency denominated costs at the time of comrmitrment and to hedge
a proportion of foreign currency denorminated revenues on arolling 12-month basis unless a natural hedge exists.

The Group ensures that its net exposure to foreign denominated cash balances 1s kept to an acceptable level bi) buying or selling foreign
curencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Euro denominated interest and principal payments under the €118 mifkion and €188 million bonds have been fully hedged by coss-currency
interest rate swaps.

The Group's Investments n subsidianes are not hedged as those currency positions are considered to be long term innature

At 31 Decemnber 2009, If sterling had weakenedfstrengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been £2 milion (2008 £2 milion) higher/lower Equity would have been £13 rmullion (2008 £9 mullion) higher/lower

At 31 Decernber 2009, If sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Euro with all other varrables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been £3 rullion (2008 £2 million) higherAower Equity would have been £2 miflon (2008 £5 mulion) higher/lower

b) Pnce nsk
The Group 1s not exposed to any matenal price nsk.

©) Interest rate nsk
The Group's pnnapal interest rate nsk anses frorm long-temm borrowings and associated interest rate swaps. Bomowings issted at or swapped
to floating rates expose the Group to interest rate nsk,

The Group's Interest rate policy 1s to have between 50% and 70% of its total ndebtedness held at fixed rates over the medwm term in order
to provide a balance between certainty of cost and benefit from lower floating rates. The Group uses interest rate swaps and options in order to
achieve the desired mix between fixed and floating rates.

Ali of the Group's interest rate swaps are classified as fair value through profit or loss so any movernent in the farr value goes through the ncome
staternent rather than equity

At 31 Decemnber 2009, if Interest rates had inaeased/decreased by 0 1%, post-tax profit for the year would have been £1 milion (2008 £1 million)
lowerfhigher

Credit nsk

Credit nsk 15 the nisk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
It anses prinapally from the Group's recevables from customers, cash and held to matunty investments, There s also credit nsk relating to the
Croup's own credit rating as this impacts the availability and cost of future finance

a) Trade and other recenvables (see note 18)

The Group's exposure to credit risk s influenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of each customer The majonty of trade receivables relate
to arime sales contracts with advertising agences and advertisers. Credit insurance has been taken out against these companies to minimise the
impact on the Group In the event of a possible default

b) Cash and held to matunty nvestments

The Group operates stnct investment guidelines with respect to surplus cash and the emphasis 15 on preservation of capital Counterparty imits

for cash deposits are largely based upan long-term ratings published by the major credtt rating agenaes and percerved state support. Deposits langer
than six months require the approval of the General Purpose Committee

<) Bomrowings
IMV's credrt ratings with Standard & Poors and Moody's investor Service are B+/B1 respectively and are “sub-investment grade” with both agenaes.
The combination of ITV's lower aedit rating and the detenoration in credt conditions adversely impacts the availabilty and costs of future finance

Liquidity nsk
Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet s financial obligations as they fall due The Group's finanang policy is to fund tself
for the long term by using debt iInstruments with a range of matunties. It s substantially funded from the UK and European caprtal markets and it
has a bilateral bank faahty

Managemestt monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (compnsing undrawn bank faciities and cash and cash equivalents)
on the bawis of expected cash flows. This monitening includes finanaal ratios to assess possible future credit ratings and headreom and takes into
account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2009 the Group has avallable £75 rmifbon (2008: £650 rrullion) of undrawn comimitted faciliies. The £75 milkon faailty s
provided by one bank and s secured on advertising recevables. The faality has ne finanoal covenants and matures n May 2013 The reduction from
2008 reflects the canceflation of the £45¢ million syndicated faality and the drawang down of a £125 million loan.
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23 Finandal risk factors (continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial labiities and denvative financial liabiities inta retevant maturity groupings based on the penod

remaining until the contractual matunty date The armounts disclased in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows 5o will not afways

reconale with the amounts disclosed on the statement of financial position.

Total mntrachuadl Lesthan Behwern Between Over
ash flows Tyear land2years  ZandSyears Syears
At 31 Decermnber 2009 £m im & m £m
Non-denvative finanaal liabilittes
Bomowings {(2,167) {108) (215) (639) {1,205)
Held to matunty investments 288 15 15 45 213
Trade and other payables {677) {646) (23} 8 -
Other non-cuirent payables (12) - (10 (2) -
Denvative financal instruments
Interest rate swaps 165 13 79 64 9
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges
Outflows - - - - -
Inflows - - - - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts — far value through profit or lgss
Outflows (77} {61} (16) - -
Inflows 77 61 16 - -
(2,403) (726) (154) {540} (983)
Total contractual Lessthan Between Between Over
cach flows 1year 1and 2years Zand 5 years Syears
AL 31 Decernber 2008 (restated) fm £m £m £m £m
Non-dervative finanaal liabilities
Borrowings {1933) (347) (82) (780) (724)
Trade and other payables (774) (748) {18) (n 0
Other non-current payables (15) - (1 (14) -
Dervative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 187 9 8 155 15
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges
Qutflows {31) 31 - - -
inflows 40 40 - - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - fair value through profit or loss
Outflows (80) {57) {17) {6) -
Inflows 87 60 20 7 -
(2519)  (1074) (50) (645) (710}

2008 1s restated as danfied by the amendment to IFRS 7 and now includes contractual nterest. Bomowings are now shawn gross rather than net of
cross curency swaps relating to the 2011 €118 mullion and 2014 €188 million Eurobonds, which are now shawn separately withn denvative financial

Instruments.

Held to maturity investments are included within the table above because the £138 million March 2019 gilts are used as secunity against the

£200 rulion 2019 loan, and the net repayment in 2019 15 £62 million.
Capital

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which indudes borrawings disdosed in note 22, cash and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable
to equity holders of the parent company (“equity™) Equity compnses issued capttal, reserves and retained eamings disclosed in the consohidated
staternent of changes In equity. The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safequard the Group's ability to continie as a going concem in
order to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal caprtal structure to reduce the cost of

capital The Group 1s not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

In order to maintain or adjust the caprtal structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dwdends paid to shareholders, increase gross debt by
I1ssuing new debt or drawing down upon facilities or reduce net debt by ssuing new shares or selling assets.
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24 Finanaal nstruments
a) Farr values versus carmying amounts

The tables below provide fair value infarmation for all financial instruments listed in note 24 (c), other than those where the camying vatue 1s 3
reasonable approximation of far value

Book vahue Fax vale

2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets Maturity £m £m £m fm
Held to maturity investments Mar 19 149 - 143 - ﬁ
The fair value of held to matunty investments 1s based on quoted market bid pnces at the reporting date ﬁ
Book value Fax o %

2009 2008 2009 2008

Laabiites Matuity £m £m e £m

€118 million Eurobond (previously €500 millon Eurobond) Ot 11 106 493 105 391

£110 million Eurobond Mar 13 110 110 105 110

£50 million loan . May 13 50 - 58 -

€188 million Eurobond Jun 14 156 - 187 -

£425 million Eurobond (previpusly £325 million Eurobond) Oct 15 384 323 387 2

£135 million Convertible bond Nov 16 96 -~ 147 -

£250 million Eurobond Jan 17 264 266 240 163

£200 million loan Mar 19 200 - 244 -

Other loans 1 2 1 Z

1,367 1,194 1,478 877

Farr value, which 15 determined for disclosure purposes, 15 calculated based on the present value of future pnncipal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date

The book value of the 2011 Eurobond decreased in the year pnnaipally as a result of an exchange offer and repurchases of the 2011 bonds In
Novernber and Decernber 2009 (see note 22) After taking account of cross currency interest rate swaps, ITV's net principal repayment on the 2011
Eurabond will be £38 millionin 2011

The book value of the 2015 £425 million Eurobond ncreased due to the £100 mullion tap of the existing £325 million Eurobond on the same
termns, raising net proceeds of £58 million

The fair value of the £135 million Convertible bond 1s based upon the par value, whereas the bonds are accounted for partly as debt and partly
as equity, net of Issue costs, as described N note 22
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24 Finandal instruments (continued)
b) Far value hierarchy for instruments measured at far value

Fait vole Level t Lieved 2 Lewed 3
31 Decernber 2009 31 Decasmiber 2009 31 Decmmber 2009 31 Decamber 2009
Assets e 2t fair vohoe £m &m £m £m
Available for sale finanaal instruments
STV shares 1 1 - -
Avallable for sale gilts 34 34 - -
Finanaal assets at far value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 154 - 154 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 - 2 -
Total 1M 35 156 -
Falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2009 31 December 2009 31 Decernber 2009 31 Decermnber 2009
Liablites d ot fokr o £m £m £m £m
Finanaal liabilittes at fair value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 33 - 33 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 - 1 -
Total 34 - 34 -
Levei 1

Fair valyes measured uaing quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Fair values measured using inputs, other than quoted prices Included within Leve! 1, that are observable for the asset or hability either directly

or indirectly

Interest rate swaps and options are accounted for at therr far value based upon termination pnices. Forward foreign exchange contracts

are accounted for at the difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date

Level 3

Farr values measured using Inputs for the asset or Irabilrty that are not based on observable market data.
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24 Finanaal instruments (continued)
¢) Finanaal nstruments appixation

The accounting policies for finanaal nstruments have been appfied to each finanaal position caption as follows:

Held to At Fair vohue Derivatives
maturty Loanand  through profit used for Avallable
ivestments receivables orioss hedging for ale Total
AL 31 Daceriber 2005 im £m £m £m £m m
Statement of financal position assets
Avallable for sale finanaal assets - - - - 1 1
Held to matunty investments 149 - - - - 149
Denvative financal Instruments - - 156 - 156
Trade and other recevables - 439 - - - 439
Cash and cash equivalents* - 548 - - 34 582
149 987 156 - 35 1327
At faxr value Deshvatives Othes
through profit used for finandal
orloss hedging Gabilties Tol
AL 31 Decrrrber 2000 m £m Em £m
Statement of finanaal position liabilties
Borrowings - - 1,640 1,440
Dervative financial nstruments 34 - - 34
3% - 1,440 1,474
ALl value Dernatnes
Loanang  through profit used for Avakable
recevables o loss hedgng for sale Jotd
At 31 Decernber 2008 fm fm Em £m fm
Statement of finanoal posrtion assets
Avallable for sale financial assets - - - 5 5
Denvative finanaal Instruments - 208 10 - 218
Trade and other recevables 454 - - - 454
Cash and cash equivalents 583 - - 33 616
1,037 208 10 38 1,293
At far vaiue Dervatws Other
through profit wsed for firancal
olos hedgiyg fabibtes Total
At 31 Decernber 2008 im £m £m im
Statement of finanaal position hiabiies
Borrowings 250 - 1,273 1,523
Denvative finanaal instruments 3 1 - 32
281 1 1,273 1,555

"Exciudes cash in the disposal group of £4 miion.
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25 Derivative finanaal instruments
The following table shows the farr value of dervative finanaal instruments analysed by type of contract

2009 2008
Assets Liabiltes Agsets Liahiihes
£m £m £m £m
Cumrent portion

Interest rate swaps — farr value through profit or loss 3 (3) 2 (2}
Forward foreign exchange contracts —cash flow hedges - - 10 (1)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — fair value through profit or loss 2 (1) 7 (4)
5 ® 19 (7

Non-current partion
Interest rate swaps — farr value through profit or loss 151 (30) 194 (25)
Forward foreign exchange contracts —cash flow hedges - - ~ -
Forward foreign exchange contracts — far value through profit or loss - - 5 -
151 (30) 199 {25)
156 (34) 218 (32)

Interest rate swap assets as at 31 December 2009 indude £120 mullion of cross currency interest rate swaps relating to the €118 million 2011
Eurobond and the €188 million 2014 Eurcbond (see note 22}

The remaining £34 rullion of assets relates to a number of floating rate swaps. ITV has a £125 millon swap matched against half of the 2017
£250 million bond Under this swap ITV receives 6 125% (to match the onginal bond coupon) and pays three-month stering LIBOR plus 0 51% with
the three-month sterling LIBOR capped at 5 25% for rates between 5 25% and 8 0% TV also has a £162 5 milton swap matched against part of the
2015 £425 mulion bond Under this swap ITV receves 5 375% (to match the bond coupon) and pays six-month sterting LIBOR plus 0 3% In addition,
[TV has other swaps totaling £162.5 millon matched against part of the 2015 £425 million bond Under these swaps ITV recerves 5 375% {to match
the bond coupon) and pays a weighted average of three-month sterling LIBOR plus 1 45%

Interest rate swap llabilities of £33 million as at 31 December 2009 relate to vanous fixed rate swaps. [TV has a £162 5 milion swap with a
matunity of October 2015 under which it recesves three-month stering LIBOR and pays 4 35% The bank has the nght to cancel the swap MV also has
a £162 5 miflion swap with a matunty of October 2015 under whuch it recenves six-month sterling LIBOR plus 0 3%, and pays the higher of six-month
sterling UBOR rrnws 0 2% or six-month US$ LIBCR minus 1 0%, set 1n arrears or in advance In addition, TV has a £125 millien swap with a maturity
of January 2017 under which 1t receives three-month sterling LIBOR and pays 4 31% The bank has the nght to cancel the swap

All forward foreign exchange contracts hedge underlying currency expesures. The forward foreign exchange contracts which were designated
as cash flow hedges related to contractual payments for sport and other programme nghtts and transponder costs. All cash flow hedges outstanding
at 31 December 2008 matured dunng 2009

26 Provisions

Contract Restructunng Property Other

POVEONS. PROVSIONS provsions PrOvEDS Total

£m im £m fm m

At 1 January 2009 47 16 2 19 84
Addrtions in the year 1 7 16 - 24
Unwind of discount 3 - - - 3
Utihsed in the year {16) (15) m (3) (35
At 31 December 2009 35 8 17 16 76

Of the provisions £47 million (2008 £43 million) are shown within current habilibies.

Contract provisions of £35 miflion are for onerous sports nghts commitments; there were additions of £4 rmullion in 2009, ncluding £3 rmillion
from the unwind of the discount on the provision, and £13 million was utilised The remaining £3 rmullion of the CSA contract provision was utilised in
the year

Restructuring provisions of £8 rmuflion are in respect of previously announced efficency programmes. The £15 million utihsed n 2009 was in
respect of regional news.

Property provisions of £17 rmufion mainly relate to onerous lease contracts due to empty space aeated by the sgruficant reduction in headcount
In 2009 Utlisation will be over the antiapated life of the leases or earlier i exted. Of the addrhons of £16 million, £14 rmullion has been dassified as an
operating exceptional cost in relation to a prowvision in respect of Gray's Inn Road.

Qther provisions of £16 milkon mainly relate to potential iabilitres that may anse as a result of Bexclever having been placed into adnunistration,
meost of which relate to pension arrangements.
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27 Assets held for sale

2009
£m
Property, plant and equipment 7
Investment in joint ventures 43
Disposal group assets (note 28) 28
Assets held for sale 78
2009
Em
Disposal group liabilities (note 28) (3)
Liabidities held for sale )
The liabilities held for sale are new in the year and are disclosed below
The movernents in assets held for sale are summarnsed in the table below
2009
fm
At 1 Januany 2009 3
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 9
Impairment of properties held for sale (5)
Transfer from investments in joint ventures and assocated undertakings 47
Net repayment of Igans from investments in joint ventures and associated undertakings (&)
Assets dassed as disposal group (note 28) 60
Impairment of disposal group (note 28) (32)
At 31 Decemnber 2009 78

During the year the Group began actvely markebing properties in Birringham and Bnstol, which are deemed to be surplus to future operating
requiremients and for which disposal 1s antiopated to be completed within one year These properties were transferred from property, plant and
equipment at a net book value of £9 million The property in Bedford, dassified as an asset held for sale N prior penods, continues to be classified
as held for sale at the end of the year Impaimments of £5 million have been recogrused i respect of these properties reflecting the currently
challenging property market conditions.

The Group 15 actively marketing s S0% interest in Screenvision US (Techricalor Cnema Advertising LLC) and has classified this joint venture
investment as an asset held for sale camed at £47 million The investment being sold 1s not care to the Group's main actvties and 15 discdosed in the
Other segment {note 2} During the year the Group receved net repayments of loans of £4 midlion from this entity This sale 1s expected to complete
wrthin one year

The Group continues to also actively market its interest in Screenvision (Holdings) Eurape Limited, an asset held for sale camed at £nil
The investment being sold 1s not core to the Group’s man actwities and 1s disclesed in the Other segment.

28 Disposal group
The disposal group consists of the non-core business, Friends Reuntted In August 2009, the Croup announced that it had agreed to sell Fnends
Reunited to Brightsolid Limited for a total cash consideration of £25 million with a vanable compaonent dependent on the net current assets of the
business on the date of completion On 2 November, the Office of Far Trading referred the acquisition to the Competition Commussion for further
Investigation. The Competiion Commussion is cumently reviewing the propesed transaction with a final decision expected by 16 Aprl 2010 The
Friends Reunited social networkang business, within the Broadcasting & Online segment, 15 consequently presented as held for sale

At 31 December 2009 the disposal group compnsed assets of £28 million less liabiities of £3 rrullion

Anmpaiment loss of £32 mullion on the remeasurement of the disposal group to the lower of its camying amaount and farr value less costs to sell
has been recognised n non-operating exceptionals (see note 5)

31 Decmmber
2003
£m
Intangible assets 23
Trade and other recevables due within one year 1
Cash and cash equwvalents 4
Disposal group assets 28
31 Decermber
2000
fm
Trade and other payables due within one year (3)

Disposal group liabifities (3)
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29 Acquisitions and disposals of businesses

Acqussttions and disposals in 2009

GMTV
0On 26 Novemnber 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 25% interest in the shares of GMTV Limited, the national breakfast tre channel 3
licensee, taking 1ts total percentage of shareholding to 100% The results of this entity have always been disclosed within the consohdated income
statement of the Group at 100% with an adjustment made to reflect the previous nan-controiling interest's share The impact of the acquisition of
the remaining non-controling interest 1s reflected in the consolidated staterment of changes in equity

The fair value of the consideration paid 1s £23 mullicn The non-controlling interest reserve of £8 mulion was debrted on acquisiion with the excess
of consideration over the identifiable net assets acquired of £15 million debrted to retained losses i accordance with IAS 27

Frends Reuruted
In January 2009 the Group paid £50 milion in respect of the final payment of the eam-out arangement relating to the Frends Reunited acquisition
undertaken in 2005 previously disclosed within other payables in note 19 of this report.

Disposals

The Group disposed of 1ts 100% interest in Enable Media Limited on the 22 September 2009 for £mil cash consideration resulting in a loss on dispesal
of £6 milion The Group’s 63% nterest In JFMG Limrted was sold on 18 February 2009 for £1 million cash consideration resutting m a gain on disposal
of £1 miillon

30 Called up share capital
The Group's share capital s the same as that of ITV pic. Details of this are given In note vin the ITV pic Company financial statements section
of this annual report.

Employees’ Benefit Trust
The Group has investments In 1ts own shares as a result of shares purchased by the [TV Employees’ Benefit Trust. As at 31 Decernber 2009 the trust
held the following shares.

2009 2008

Number  Marketvae Mutber Marketvale

of shaves £m of shares m

ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust 3,528,761 2 4144550 2

The nominal value of own shares held 1s £0 35 mullion (2008. £0 41 million} The shares will be held in trust until such time as they may be transferred
to participants of the vanous Group share schemes Rights to dmdends have been wawved by the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust in respect of shares
held which do not relate to restricted shares under the Deferred Share Award Plan

The total number of shares held by the trust at 31 December 200915 3,528,761 (2008 4,144,550) ordinary shares representing 0 09%
(2008 0 11%) of ITV's issued share capital

In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trustees of the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust have the power to exeraise all voting nghts in relation to any
investment (ncluding shares) held within that trust. Duning the year the following ordinary shares were purchasedf(released) from the above trust to
satisfy awards vesting under the Group’s share schemes as follows.

Nurnber of shares Normnal value
Shares released fromt {refeasedYpurchased £ Scheme
MV Employees’ Benefit Trust (8,175,476) (817,548) ITV Deferred Share Award Plan
(64,945) (6,495) Cariton Deferred Award Bonus Plan
(531,785) (53,179) Granada Commitment Scheme
(634,112) (63,411) fTV Employee Bonus Plan
8,790,529 879,053 Shares purchased

Shares released under the ITV Employee Bonus Plan nclude 264,784 shares awarded to all employees in March 2009 and an additional 369,328
shares awarded to all eligible employees in December 2009 as described on page 27

31 Contingent liabilities

There has been a disagreement between the Group, STV Group plc and the two icence holding subsidiaries, STV Central and STV North, as to
the amounts of money due and payable to the Group A legal daim, based upon the balances outstanding at 30 April 2009, for approxmately
£38 millon i respect of outstanding invoices, was filed on 22 September 2009 and Particulars of Claim were served on 24 Septemnber 2005

The Group recognises that certan amounts are due to STV and these and other amounts are the subject of a counterclam served by STV on 13
Novernber 2009 Pror to the Iitigation, the Group and STV have come to an arrangement whereby amounts owed to each other will be set off,
although until the current litigation 1s resolved, that amount cannot be accurately entified For the period after 30 Apnl 2009, the Group and STV
have agreed to operate a monthly payment on account scheme so that the operations may continue effectively.

In a separate action STV Central and STV North issued proceedings on 16 Novermnber 2009 against TV Network and other Group compantes in
relation te the exploitation of new media rghts in the UK. Through the proceedings STV Central and STV North seek an njunction to prevent the mv
Network from entenng into any UK wide deals involving new med:a nghts and seek dedarations in relation to how the nghts are owned and may be
exploted The Croup rejects this darmn and intends to defend it robustly. No provision has been made in these financal statements for this dam.

0n 24 February 2010, STV issued a letter alleging that the Group has acted with unfar prejudice against the interests of STV and that ITv
Network is 1n breach of wts fiduciary duties to STV [TV Network rejects these allegations and will igorously defend any daim that is brought.

There are other contingent hiabiltues in respect of certain iigation and guarantees, and in respect of wamanties given in connection with certain
disposals of businesses.
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32 Operating leases
The total future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows.

2009 2008

£m £mn

Not later than one year 13 16
Later than one year and not later than five years 39 45
Later than five years 145 152
197 213

The Group leases a number of properties pnincipally comprising offices and studios under operating leases. Leases typically run for a period of
between five and ten years and may or may not have an option to renew after that date Lease payments are tupically inceased every five years
to reflect market rentals. None of the leases incfude contingent rentals.

The total future mmnirmum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the reporting date 1s £5 million
(2008. £8 rrulhon)

The total operating lease expendrture recognised during the year was £14 million (2008 £19 rmillion) and total sublease payments received
totalled £4 milion (2008 £4 mdlton}

33 Capital and other commitments
There are £1 mullion of capital commitments at 31 Decemnber 2009 (31 Decernber 2008 £1 rmilhion) There are also a number of operating
commitments in respect of programming entered into i the ordinary course of business

34 Subsequent events
In Janyary and February 2010 the Croup repurchased £42 mulhon of the 2015 £425 million Eurobonds. In February 2010 the Group repurchased
€27 rmullion (£23 mlliony norminal of the 2011 €118 millon Eurobonds, leaving the net repayable in 2011 after cross currency swaps as £15 million

35 Related party transactions

M SSRUNG
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Transactions with associated undertakings and joint ventures. T
00 ) :
£m £m &
Sales to assoctated undertakings 1 2 2
Purchases from joint ventures 2 1 g
Purchases from associated undertakings 43 42 g
The purchases from associated undertakings relate to purchase of news services from ITN
009 2008
Em £m
Amounts owed by Joint ventures 25 27
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 4 7
Amounts owed by pension scheme 1 1

Armounts owed by Joint ventures relate to loan balances with Screenvision (Holdings) Europe Lirmited which have been fully provided for at the
reporting date

All transactions with associated undertakings and joint ventures anse in the nomnal course of business on an amm's-length basis. None of the
balances are secured

Amounts paid to the Group's retirement benefit plans are set out Innote 6

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management consists of ITV plec executive, non-executive directors and ITV's senior executive team. Key managerment personnel compensation
15 as follows.

005 2008

£m £m

Shart-term employee benefits 10 6
Fost-employment benefits 1 -
Temmnination benefits 2
Share-based compensation 5 3
18 13
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Company balance sheet
2009 2009 x08 Xxs
AL 31 Decermbec Note m £m £m £m
Fixed assets.
Investments in subsidiary undertakings W 1,671 1,699
Held to matunty investrments 149 -
Dervative financral instruments 15 194
1,971 1,893
Cumrent assets:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 173 78
Prepayments and accrued incorme - 1
Cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits 146 283
319 362
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings v - (252)
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings (173) (83)
Accruals and deferred income (21) (33)
Other creditors - (53)
Dridends - (25)
{194} (451)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 125 (89)
Total assets less cumrent habilities 2,096 1,804
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings v {1,366) (1,192)
Derwvative financial nstruments {29) (25)
(1,395) (1,217)
Net assets 701 587
Capital and reserves.
Called up share capital v 389 389
Share premium Vi 120 120
Other reserves i Al 36
Profit and loss account v 21 42
Shareholders’ funds — equity 701 587

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2010 and were signed on its behalf by

ﬂnm N
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t Accounting poliaes

Basts of preparation
As permitted by section 408 (3) of the Cormpanies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account, dealing with the resutts of the parent company,
has not been presented

Under FRS 29 the Company 1s exermnpt from the requirement to provide its own financial nstruments disclosures, on the grounds that it 1s
induded in publicy available consolidated finanaal staterments which include disclosures that comply with the IFRS equivalent to that standard

Subsidianes

Subsidianes are entities that are directly or indirectiy controfied by the Company Control exists where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating poliaes of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its actmities. The Investrment in the Company’s subsidianes 1s recorded
at cost, adjusted for the effect of the adoption of UITF 41 Annual FRS 20 share based payment compensation costs are recharged to the
subsiciany’s through the profit and loss account.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterting at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Foreign currency
monetany assets and llabilities at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange nuling at that date Foreign exchange
differences ansing on translation are recognised in the profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets and llabilities measured at historical cost are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction

Borowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at farr value induding directly attnbutable transaction costs, with subsequent measuremment at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method The difference between initial farr value and the redemption value s recorded in the profit and loss account
over the period of the labiity on an effective Interest basis.

Denvatives and other financial instruments
The Company uses a imited number of denvative financial Instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in interest and other foreign exchange
rates. The Company does not hold or issue denvative instruments for speculative purposes.

Dervative financial mstruments are Inttially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with the maovement recorded
in the profit and loss account within net financing costs. Dervatives with a positive fair value are recorded as assets and negative farr values as
liabilities.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts s deterrnined by using the difference between the contract exchange rate and the quoted
forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date The fair vaiue of mterest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Company would recewve or
pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the cumrent creditworthiness of swap
counterparties.

Third party valuations are used to fair value the Company’s denvatives. The valuation techmiques use Inputs such as interest rate yield curves and
currency prices/yields, volatiies of underlying mstruments and correlations between inputs.

Where a dervatwve financal instrument 1s designated as a hedge of the variabiity in cash flows of a recogrised asset or liabiity, or a highly
probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the denvative financial nstrument 1 recognised directly iIn equity Any
ineffective portion of the hedge 1s recogrised immediately in the profit and loss account.

For financial assets and labilities dassified at farr value through profit or loss the fair value change and interest income/expense are not
separated

Dandends
Dmdends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.

it Employees
Four (2008 four) directors of ITV plc were the only employees of the Company during the year The costs relating to these directors are disclosed
in the Rernuneration report.

iii Investments in subsidiary undertakings
The pnnapal subsidiary undertakings are listed in note i The moverments dunng 2009 were as fallows.

im
At 1 January 2009 1,699
Impairment (28)
At 31 December 2009 1,671

Animpairment charge of £28 mullion was recognised 1n respect of Fiends Reunited now camed at its fair value less costs to sell of £25 million,

iv Borrowings

Loan repayable after more than one year

Loans repalyable after more than one year asat 31 Decemnber 2009 compnse an unsecured €118 million Eurobond wiuch has a coupon of 60% and
matures in October 2011, an unsecured loan frarm a bank for £50 mullion which has a coupon of 12-month sterling LUBOR plus 6.814% and matures In
May 2013, an unsecured £110 rmillion Eurobond which has a coupon of three-months steding UBOR plus 2 7% and matures in March 2013, an
unsecured €188 million Furobond wiich has a coupon of 10 0% and matures in fune 2014, an unsecured £425 rmilhon Eurobond which has a coupon
of 5 375% and matures n October 2015, an unsecured £135 mullion convertible Eurobond which has a coupon of 4 0% and matures in Novernber
2016, an unsecured £250 mullion Eurobond which has a coupon of 7 375% and matures in January 2017 and an unsecured loan from a bank for
£200 mullion which has a coupon of 8.85% for its first three years and a vanable rate thereafter wiuch matures in March 2019
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v Called up share capital

Adotied, sed
Authorsert and fuly pad
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m Em
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each
Authorised
8,000,000,000 (2008 5,826,377,627) 800 583
Allotted, 1ssued and fully pad
3,889,129,751 (2008 3,889,129,751} 389 389
Total 800 583 389 389

The Company's crdinany shares give shareholder's equal nghts to vote, receive dividends and to the repayment of capitak There have been no issued
ordinary share capital movernents dunng the penod

v Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Share Share Other Profit and
apua prermAIm resarves loss account. Tod
fm fm im £m £m
At 1 Januany 2009 389 120 36 42 587
Retained profit for year for equity shareholders - - - 67 67
Share-based compensation - - - 11 1"
Equity portion of the convertible bond - - 35 1 36
At 31 December 2009 389 120 7 121 70

The profit after tax for the year deatt with i the accounts of ITV pic 1s £67 milion (year ended 31 December 2008 loss of £218 million) before
didends declared of £nil (2008 £96 million)

vii Contingent liabilities
Under a group registration, the Cornpany 15 jointly and severally hable for VAT at 31 December 2009 of £25 million (31 Decernber 2008 £13 mullion)
The Company has quaranteed certain finance and operating lease obligations of subsidiany undertakings.

There are contingent liabilities n respect of certan itigation and guarantees and in respect of warranties given in connection with certain
disposals of businesses and in respect of certain trading and other cbligations of certain subsidiaries.

Where the Cornpany enters into financial quarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group, the
Company considers these to be msurance amangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract
as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

viii Capital and other commitments
There are no capital commitments at 31 Decernber 2009 (31 December 2008 none)
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X Pnncipal subsidiary undertakings and investments

Prnapal subsidiary undertakings
The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 December 2009, all of which are wholly-owned (dwectly or indirectly) and incorporated
and registered in England and Wales except where stated, are.

Name Prropal aciey
12 Yard Productions”’ Production of television programimes
3sixtymedia Lirnited™ Supplier of facilities for television productions
Carlton Communications Limited Holding company
Friends Reunrted Lmited Operation of community based websites
GMTV LUmited Production and broadcast of breakfast time telewision under national Channel 3 hicence
Cranada Limited Holding company
Granada Ventures Lrmited Production and distnbution of wdeo and DVD products
iTV Broadcasting Limited Broadcast of television programimes
ITV Consumer Limited Development of platforms, broadband, transactional and mobile services
TV Digital Channels Umited Operation of digital television channels
ITV Global Entertainment Lirmited Rights ownership and distnibution of television programmes and films
[TV Network Limited™ Scheduling and cormissioning television programmes
ITV Services Limited Provision of services for other companies within the Group
MV Studios Limrted Production of television programmes
ITV2 Limited Operation of digital televison channels
SDN Lirmited Operation of Freeview Multiplex A
Granada Media Australra Pty bimited”™ Production of television programimes
Granada Produktion fur Film und Femsehen GrmbH™ Production of television programimes
Imago TV Film und Femsehproduktion GrmbH™® Production of television programimes
Silverback AB"” Production and distnbution of television programimes
ITV Global Entertanment, Inc® Distnbution of television programi mes
ITV Studios, Inc. (formery Granada Entertainment usa® Production of television programimes
Jaffe/Braunstein Entertainmment LLC™ Production of television programimes
(1) Apartnership.

(2} 80% owned.

(3) Intenest n company brited by guarantee.
(4) Incorporated and regstered n Australia
(5} Incorporated and regestered in Germany.
(6) 6772% owned

(7 Incorporated and regrstéred in Sweden,
(8} Incorporated and regestered n the UISA.
(9 51% owned.

A bist of all subsidiany undertakings will be iInduded in the Company’s annual retum to Cormpanies House

MR SSAUSNG

juat
3
=]
=
Q,
o
W
2
-3
o
3
a3
3
@




IV pic Report and accounts 2009 Notes to the MV plc Comparty Anancial Staternents

112

ix Principal subsidiary undertakings and investments (continued)

Prnapal joint ventures, assooated undertzkings and mvestments
The Company iIndirectly held at 31 Decernber 2009 the following holdings in significant jeint ventures, assoaated undertakings and investments:

shuxre capaal share capal

2009 X008
Name Note L3 % Prncpal acvty
Carbon Media Limited a 2500 - Production of television programmes
Crackit Productions Limited a 2500 2500 Production of telewision programmes
freesat (UK) Limited b 5000 5000 Provision of a standard and high definition enabled digrtal
satellite proposition
independent Television News Lirmited a 4000 4000 Supply of news senvices to broadcasters in the UK and elsewhere
ISAN UK Limrted a 2500 - Operates voluntary numbenng system for the identification of
audiovisual works
Mammoth Screen bmited a 2500 2500 Production of television programmes
sareenvision Holdings (Europe) Limited”” b 50 00 5000 European anema advertising
STV Group pic *? ¢ 736 736 Television broadcasting in central and north Scotland
Techrucolor Cinema Advertising LLC™ * b 5000 5000 US anema advertising
Electnc Farm Entertainment LLC® C 1000 1000 Digital studio company

(1) Qassfied as an Asset Held for Sale.
(2) Incorporated and registered m Scotland.
(3) Incorporated and regrstered in USA.

X Post balance sheet events

3 Assocated undertaking.
b Jomtventure
¢ Avalable for sale fmanaal asser

In January and February 2010 the Company repurchased £42 million of the 2015 £425 million Eurobonds. In February 2010 the Company
repurchased €27million (£23 mullion} nominal of the 2011 €118 million Eurobends, leaving the net repayable in 2011 after cross currency swaps as

£15 mullion
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Folders Shares held

Nurnber % Miors X
Type of holder
Banks and nominee companies 2,514 349 366129 94 14
Indmduals 69,104 9587 15384 396
Others 462 064 7400 190
Totals 10000 10000
Size of holding
1-100 9,504 1374 036 om
101 -200 9,488 1316 142 004
201 -500 18,524 2570 622 016
50% - 1,000 13,153 1825 958 025
1,001 - 2,000 10,374 1439 1471 038
2,001-5000 6,410 889 2006 05
5,001 -10,000 2,162 300 1555 040
10,001 - 50,000 1,379 1M 2718 070
50,001 - 100,000 149 a2 1078 028
100,001 - 500,000 231 032 56 25 145
500,001 - 1,000,000 86 012 6117 157
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 132 018 30971 796
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 35 005 25053 644
10,600,001 - 50,000,000 36 Q05 69999 1800
50,000,001 and above 17 003 240562 6185
Totals 10000 10000
Informabon as at 31 December 2009
Registrars and transfer office Share dealing services

All adrninistrative enguines relating to shareholdings and requests to
receive corporate documents should, in the first instance, be directed
to Capita Registrars, Northern House, Woodsorme Park, Fenay Bridge,
Huddersfield, West Yorkshire HD8 OLA.

0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network

charges) frorm the UK and +44 20 8639 3399 from outside the UK

Altemnatively you could emal them at.
shareholder.services@capitaregistrars.com

Shareholders who receve duplicate sets of company mailings because

they have multiple accounts should witte to Capita to have the accounts

amalgamated

By fogging on to www capitashareportal com shareholders can benefit
from a number of anfine services as follows.

- (ast your proxy vote online,
~ Elect to receve shareholder communication electronically,
- View your holding balance, indicative share price and valuatton,

- View transactions on your holding and dwvidend payrnents you have

receved;

- Update your address or register a bank mandate instruction to have

dradends paid directly to your bank account;

- Access awide range of shareholder information including
downloadable fomms.

www caprtashareportal.com

You will need your investor code (IVC) whtch can be found on your share

certrficate(s) to register to use the Shareholder Portal.

The Cornpany's shares can be traded through most banks, building
societies and stockbrokers. Additionally, the Company's registrars offer
online and telephone dealing for UK resident shareholders through
Capita IRG Trustees Limited To use this service shareholders should
contact Capita.

0871 664 0364 from the UK (calis cost 10 pence per minute plus
network charges) or 1 890 946 375 from Ireland

www .capitadeal com

ShareGift

ShareGift 1s a chanty share donation scherne for shareholders who may
wish to dispose of a smali qguantity of shares where the market value
makes it uneconomic to sefl on a commission basis. The scheme 1s
administered by the Or Mackintosh Foundation and further
infarmation can be obtained by contacting them

02079303737
www sharegift.org

Share price nformation
The cusrent price of ITV plc ordinary shares 15 avallable on Ceefax and
on the Company website at www itvplccom.
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The Undaimed Assets Register

The Company participates tn The Unclaimed Assets Register, which
provides a search faality for finanaal assets, which may have been
lost or forgotten and which donates 10% of its public search fees to
awide range of UK charties. For further information and to obtain
a search request form contact

The Undaimed Assets Reqister
PO Box 9501
Nottingham NG80 TWD

08702411713
search@uar.co uk
WWW uar co uk

Unsoliated mail

The Company 1s legatly obliged to make its register of members
available to the public As a consequence of this some shareholders
might receive unsclicited mail Shareholders wishing to imit the amount
of such mail should write to the Matling Preference Serwice (MPS)
FREEPOST 29 LON20771

London W1E OZT

Alternatively you can register online or request an application form by
telephone or by emanl MPS will then notify the bodies that support ts
service that you do not wish to receve unsolicited mail

0845703 4599
mps@dma org uk
www.mpsonine.org.uk
Reqgistered office
The London Television Centre

Upper Cround
London SE1SLT

020 7157 3000
Company registration number 4967001
Company website

Investor and shareholder related information can be found on the
Company website at

www ftvplc.com
Finanaal calendar
Annual General Meeting 7 May 2010
Intenm Management Statement May 2010
Half year results announcement August 2010

Unauthonsed brokers (Boiler Room Scams)

Shareholders are advised to be veny wany of any unsolicited adwvice,
offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of free company reports.
These are typically from overseas based brokers who target UK
shareholders offening to sell them what often turn out to be worthless
or high nsk shares in US or UK investments. These operations are
cernmonly known as boller rooms.

If you receve any unsohcited nvestment advice
— Make sure you get the corect name of the person and organisation
- (heck that they are properly authonsed by the FSA befare getting
involved by visting.
www fsa.gov.uk/pagesiregister

~ Report the matter to the FSA erther by cafling 0300 500 5000 or by
wisting:

www.moneymadedear fsa.gov.uk
- If the calls persist, hang up

If you deal with an unauthonsed firm, you will not be eligible to receve
payment under the Financral Services Comipensation Scheme The FSA
can be contacted by completing an online form at.

www fsa.gov ul/pages/doing/requiated/law/alerts/overseasshtml

Detalls of any sharedealing facilities that the Company endorses will
only be induded in company mailings.

More detatled information can be found on the FSA website
www.moneymadedear fsa.govuk

identuty theft
Tips for protecting your TV plc shares.

- Ensure allyour certrficates are kept in a safe place or hold your shares
electronically in CREST via a nominee

- Keep all comespondence from Capita in a safe place, or destroy
correspondence by shredding

- If you change address inform Capita in writing or via the Shareholder
Portal. If you receive 2 letter from Capita regarding a change of
address but have not recently moved please contact them
immediately

- Consider having your dvdend paid directly inta your bank. This wil
reduce the nsk of the cheque being intercepted or fost in the post.

— f you change your bank account, Inform Capita of the details
of your new account. You can do this via post or online using the
Shareholder Portal Respend to any letters Capita sends you
about this.

- If you are buying or selling shares only deal with brokers registered
in your country of residence or the UK.
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televsion - UK terrestnial television broadcasting format
supporting five channels {BBC1, BBC2, TV1, Channel 4 and Five)

BARB - Broadcasters’ Audience Research Board — owned by
broadcasters and advertisers and providing data on viewing statistics in
UK households

Cable - cable television —often alse providing telephony and broadband
internet services

Cash bid - the fixed elernent of ITV and GMTV's licence fees

Channel 3 ficances - the 15 reqional hicences and one national licence
awarded to transrmit Chaninel 3 acrass the UK Eleven of the regronal
licences are held by ITV pic.

Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) - the rernedy agreed by Cariton and
Granada in 2003 as a pre-condrtion of the merger and which governs the
way inwhich ITV1 airtime 15 sold by ITV to its advertising customers

Responsibifity (CR) - term used to cover all areas of
responsible behaviour by companies including ethical behaviour,
corporate governance and environmental impact

Cost Per Thousand (CPT) - the price paid by an advertiser for 1,000
commercial Impacts

Defined benefit pension scheme - a pension scheme for employees
under which the ultrmate pension benefit s usually related to salary,
either at date of retirement/leaving or at date of accrual

Defined contnbution pension scheme — a pension scherme for
employees under which the uliimate pension is usually related to the
contributions paid into the scheme by employee and employer and to
the mvestment retums earmed on such contributions up t6 retirement

Digital Temestnal Television (DTT) - the digital transrmission system
{currently compnsing six mulbiplexes each capable of transrmitting
between six and ten television channels), that 1s often referred to as
Freeview, will fully replace analogue transmissions at switchover

Freesat - a platform broadcasting digital channels by satellite accessible
to viewers without paying a subscription

Freewview — the name by which UK free to air digital terrestrial television
is often known

High Definibion/HD Serces - channels or services broadcast In
substantially igher resolution than standard, providing improved
picture quality

Impact or commeraal impact — one advertising impact 1s one viewer
watching one 30-second commeraal (usually referred to as rate card
werghted and relating to a specific demographic group) Unless
otherwise stated, commercial impact figures cited throughout this
report refer to adult commercial impacts based on BARB data

MV adutt SOC! - SOCI for the adult demographic delivered on ITV1

Net Revenue (NAR) - the amount of money receved
by the broadcaster as payment for spot advertising net of any
comimission paid

Ofcom - the requlator established to govern UK broadcasting as well as
ather areas of the media and telephony industry

Office of Far Trading (OFT) — the Office of Far Trading 15 the UK's
pnncipal competition regulator

Peak-time - the evening penod of heaviest television viewing actmty
romnally between 700 pm and 10 30 pm

PQR Lewy - the vaniable element of ITV's licence fees representing a
percentage of NAR and sponsarship Income

Product placement — the inclusion of, or reference to, a product or
service within a programme in return for payment or other valuable
consideration to the programme rmaker or broadcaster

Prermium Rate Services (PRS) - usually a telephone number charging a
higher rate than normal focal calls and often used by television channels
for participation TV and guizzes. PRS may be accessed via the red button
on a TV remote control

Public Service Broadcasting (PSB) - the considerable requirements
placed on certain broadcasters including obligations to transmit
particutar matenal which may not be wholly commercial (eq religion
and current affairs) within therr schedules

Share of Commescial impacts (S0C1) — the term used to define the share
of total UK television commiercial impacts which 1 delivered by one
channel or group of channels. Unless otherwise stated, SOC figures ated
throughout this report refer to share of adult commeraial impacts based
on BARB data

Share of viewing/audience share - the share of the total viewing
audience duning a defined penod (for example, for a slot, hour, peak-
tirne or full calendar year) gained by a programme or channel Unless
otherwise stated, audience share figures cited throughout this report
refer to share of iewing for all ndividuals based on BARB data

Urque users (UUs) - a measure of the number of Indwidual users
visiting a website over a defined penod

Video on demand - the ability to deliver video content to a customer’s
telewision set or cornputer when the custorner requests it

Video vwews - a measure of viewing of online video A video view 15
generated when a piece of video content 15 delivered to a user's screen
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00 0 2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m fm

Resutts
Revenue 1879 2,029 2,082 2,181 2,196
Earmngs before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional tems 202 2N 311 375 460
Amortisation of intangible assets (59) (66) (56) (56) (481)
Irnparment of intangible assets - (2693 (28) (20) -
Share of profit or loss of joint ventures and associated undertakings (7 (15) 2 8 11
Investment Income - 1 1 3 5
Exceptional terms (20) (108) 9 4 (28)
Profitiloss) before interest and tax 116 (2672) 221 314 U6
Net finanang costs 91N (60) (33 (26) {35)
Profit/(loss) before tax 25 (2732 188 288 i
Taxation 69 178 (50) (66} (85)
Profit/{loss) after tax 94 (2554) 138 222 226
Non-controlling Interests (3) 2 M (3 (4)
Profiti{loss) for the financial year £l (2,556) 137 219 222
Basic earnings/{loss) per share 23p  (659p 35p S5 S54p
Diidend per share - 0675 315p 315p 312p
Consolidatad statement of financial position
Share caprtal 389 389 389 401 423
Reserves (4d) 137 2,844 2,755 2,870
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 345 526 3,233 3,156 3,293
Non-controlling interests 1 8 6 7 12
Net assets 346 534 3.239 3,163 3,305
Represented by
Property, plant and equiprment and intangible assets 1,191 1,360 4,084 4,088 4182
Investments 6 n 89 103 274
Distnbution nghts 16 13 7 11 13
Inventory 388 516 440 400 388
Trade and other receivables (including assets held for sale and denvative
financral iInstruments) 565 528 472 548 432
Deferred tax asset 50 - - - 74
Total assets 2,216 2,488 5,092 5,150 5363
Net debt (612) (730) (668) (734) (481)
Deferred tax liability - (55) (75) [¢4] -
Other habifities {1,182y (1,085 (1,079 (1,219 (1,525
Provisions (76) (84) (310 (27 (52)

346 534 3,239 3,163 3,305

This financial record sets out the balance sheet and results of the Group since its formation following the merger of Granada plcand

Carfton Communications plc.
Cash and cash equivalents are induded within net debt.
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